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We are

Placemakers

i .

} o
We create sutsthndin places which make 3 posph(/ei 1 i
difference to pebple sleveryday Lves. Our poi[fo 1 pfb[gh wf\;
quality commertial propenty 1s focused on retail @ceiﬁris g—%—;
around the UK and Lendon offices.

Our objective 1s to deliver long term and sustainable total
returns to all our stakeholders. We do this by focusing on




In this year’s
Annual Report

Our portfolio

Read more about our £14 & billion
property pot tfolie and how it has
performed this year

To read more go to

pages 36 to 47
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Major trends impacting
our markets

Read about the long term trends
in our markets and how we

are responding

To read more go 1o

pages 12 to 17

The importance

of people

Read abcut the wnportance
we place on our people and
how that fits into our st ategy

@ Ta read more go to
pages2Z2to 23
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Our strategy
Understand our approach
and how 1t drives value for
aur shareholdars

To read more go to
pages 18 to 20
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Our business model
Learn about what we do and
why that sets us apart

@ To read mare qo o
pages 10to 11

For more lIlfOI'lllﬂl'lOll

You witl find Links throughout this
Report to guide yau to further reading
ar relevant information

D For more information visit ourwebsite
www britishtand com

Feedback

We value your feedback Please contact us at
Qur corporate wehsite
www britishland com/contacts

, Follow us on Twitter
@BritishLandPLC

We are placemakers
Understand how our properties
enhance the lives of those who
work shop and Live in them

=) Yo read more go to
pages 26 to 35

Integrated reporting

We integrate social and environmental
information in this Report in ling with
the International Integrated Reporting
framework This reflects how
sustainability 1s ntegrated mto our
placemaking slrategy governance
and business operations Qur mndustry-
teading sustainability strategy1s a
powerful tool te deliver lasting value
far all our stakebolders

For rore infermation visit
www britishland com/sustamability




HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Partfalio valuation {pragortionally consolidated) Total property returs’
£14.6bn 11.3%
EPRANAV per share' IFRS neal assels
919, £9.619m
Dwidenc per share Total accounting returr’
28.36p 14.29%
Underlying Profit? IFRS profit befare tax
£363m S1,331m
Underlying EPS? IFRSEPS
34.1» 131.2»
Carbon intensity findex scorel Customer satisfaction
-40% 3609 79/10

- Strong full year resuits

- Valuation performance driven by improving ERV growth and lettings

- Placemaking skills delivering leasing success portfolio nearly fully let

- Allocating capital into our London campuses and multi-let Retait assets

- Modest committed development, but a significant pipeline wiith optionality

- Robust financiat position with continued access to low cost finance

Presentation of financial snformation

The Group financial statements are prepared under IFRS where the Group 5 interests in joint veniures
and lunds are shown as a siagle lin2 iterm on $he income statement and batznce sheet and afl subsdranes
are consolrgated at 100%

Management cons ders the business principally on a proportianatly consolidated basis when setiang

Ihe strategy determining annual priorives making investment and financing deciswns and reviewing
performance Thisincludes the Group s share of jonivertures ard funds on a ing by Une basis and
excludes non-controlling interests in the Group s subsihiares The imancial key parfarmance indicators
are also presented on this basis Refer to the Financial review for a discussion of the IFRS results

' See giossary for definitions
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Suropean Public Real

Estate Association (EPR.Y)

Performance measures’

As a1 31 March [Eml 2016 2045 2044

EPRA earnings 365 313 295

EPRA NAV 10,074 9035 7027

EPRA NNNAV 9,640 8359 6700

As at 31 March [% 2016 2015 2014

EPRA net imtsal yield 41 43 48

EPRA Topped-up

netnitat yreld 45 48 51

EPRA vacancy rate 20 29 52

EPRA Cost Ratio

[including direct

vacancy costs] 166 164 162

[excluding direct

vacancy costs} 149 146 139
i



Stratedic Report

GROUP AT AGLANCE

We create outstanding places which
make «a positive difference to people’s
everyday lives: Places People Prefer

Total Portfoho

We create and operate altractive places for
people towerk shop and live in Qur proper ties
are well connected and well designed and we
use our placemaking skiils to enhance and
enliven thern providing environments which
meel the growtng expectattons of our occupiers
and customers

£20.00n*

Assets under management

£14.60bn

British Land owned

29msqft‘

Gf floor space

£674m2

Contracted rent

98.89%

Occupancy rate

90vrs

Weighted average
lease tength

Highlights

- Totat accounting return of 14 2% for the year

- 5trong ERV growth of 3 3% 130 bps ahead
of the market benchmark

- Completed £1 3 billion of gross imvestment
activity with acquisitron and devetopment/
capital spend broadly balancing disposals

- Proportionately consolidated weighted
average interest rate reduced hy 50 bps
to 3 3%

- Roger Madelin appornted to head up
Canada Water developiment

- Winner of the 2016 Queen s Award for
Enter prise for Sustasnabie Development

Yo read more informat:on about our
performance go to pages 36 to 47

Retail & Leisure

Our Retaill and Leisure portfoliois focused on
regional and {ccal mulli-let assets We provide
high quality retad atongside a growing leisure
offer and best in ctass services to deliver
outstanding places which are i tune with
modern consumer lifestyles places where
people gotoshap eat and he entertained

47

multi-let assets

152

other retail and
leisure assets

£9.8bn:

Assets under management

$4.3bn’

British Land owned

20m sq ft’

0f floor space

Highlights
- Portfelio vatuation up 2 4% to £7 3 billion

- Over 903 000 sq ft of Retait lettings and
renewals 8% ahead of ERY

~Accelerauing ERV trend broadly balanced
across regional and local sub sectors
leading to IPD outper fermance of 100 bps
demonstrating the quality of our portfolio

- £42¢ million of disposals fur ther reducing
exposure to mature or non-core assets
multt-tet now represents over 70%
of retad por tfolio

To read more information about aur Retail
and Leisure go to pages 40 to 43

' includes 100% of the assets owned by the Group s joint ventures and funds
? Includes the Group share of joint ventures and funds and excludes non-controiling

Interests in the Group s subsidiaries
? Includes Canada Water property of £0 3 billion
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Offices & Residential

Qur Offices and Residentiat partfolio is focused
on London We provide a range of working

and living space across our campuses and
distinctive standalone properties which
corbine a broad mix of retail and leisure

to create attractive well-located and well-
managed environments

99 3

Assets under managemment Mixed use campuses

$4.0bn’ 57

8riish Land owned Stand-zlone offices

Om sq ft' ri

Cf floor space Office and residential
developments

Highlights
- Portfolio vatuation uplift of 11 8% to £7 0 billson

~ 296 000 sq ft of Office lettings and renewals
5 4% ahead of ERY

- Leaderhail Buitding 98% let or under offer
with just one floor left to let

- Net investment of £280 millson into our
London campuses (ncluding acquisition
of 1 Sheldon Square at Paddingten

- 73% 600 sq ft of developments completed
in the period with 5 Broadgate accounting
for 730 000 sq ft

- Planming consent received fora 823 800 sq ft
redevelopment at our Broadgate campus
(160 Liverpool Street and 1 Finshury Avenuel ~

To read more mnfarmation about our Gifices
and Residential ga to pages 44 to 47



Our portfolio is focused on
retail locations around the
UK and London offices

Our properties are home to over 1 200 diffesent
or garusations 1 anging from internatianal
brands to local start-ups Mot e than 64 000
people work across our Office portfolio and ow
Retall sites receve 336 million visits per year

Londen

Meadowhall

1.3msqft \\ o

Retail and Lewsure space \

99 o\
989 6° ga\b °

Occupancy

Yorkshire s pramver shopping 5]
destination and home 1o nearty 300 @ )

shops and restaurants The centre first ® o &
opened i 1990 and 15 undergoing a ®
subsiantial refurbishment on its 25th ®
annwersary It has attracted 560 mitlion &
visitors i its 25 years A PwC report

published this year revealed that it @ @
supparis 1 job inevery 1000 the

region and 1pinevery £1 generated

by the regional economy

www mezadowhall co uk @

@ To read the PwC repert go to
www britishland com/Meadowhalt25

Map key

@ Offices & Residential

@ Retail & Leisure

The Leadenhall Building

rs

603,000 sq ft

Office and Retail space

98

let/under offer

Prominently focated in the Criy of Londan
The Leadenhalt Building s distinctive shape
was developed as a response to planning
requirements which protect the viewing
corridors of S5t Paut s Cathedral Officiatly
opened by the Duke of Cambridge and Prince
Harry 1in 2015 it has attracted some fugh
prolile occupiers mncluding joint owners
OMERS and the buslding s architects
Rogers Surk Harbour + Partners

www theleadenhallbuitding com

5.5m sq ft

A designated Landon Opportuniy Area
this 46-acre site was assembled in four

transactions over five years We are
woriuing with the Lendon Borough of
Seuthwark (o create an exciting new

place tor Londan which cohnects with
the local community and 15 intagrated

with the surrounding area Thissa
major long term project which will
be delivered 1n a number of phases
and 15 one of the largest mixed use
regeneraticn projecis iniondon
www canadawatermasterplan com

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016




Stratesic Report

CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT

Key lughlights of the vear

Total accounting return’

14.29%

Reflecting the increase in our net asset value
per share and income yield from the dividend

EPRA net asset value per share'

919,

Up109%

Dividend per share

28.36p

Up 2 5%

" Please see the glossary for dsfimition

We have had another busy
and successful year

Welcome to gur 2016 Annual Report We have
had a strong year reflecting the work we have
done reposttiomng our por Ufolio to murr or the
changing way people bive then lwes

Buldings are most successiul when they
reflect the needs of those who occupy and

use them Getting closer to owr custorner s
continues to be a key theme for us and an
understanding of how modern festyles
increasingly inerge work and leisure time
informs not anly how we manage and develop
our assels but also the allocation of our capitat

Ourdelivery of Places People Preferis
evidenced once again by our near fully let
por tfolio and the gt owth we have generated
across our business

Underlying Proiit for the year was £363 mullion
up 16% The vatuation of our portfolio also
ncreased by 6 7% to £14 6 hilbon and NAY was
up 10 9% to 919 pence per share The Board has
recommended a fourth quar ter dividend of 709
pence per share making a lotal of 28 36 pence
for the year We have proposed a first quarter
dividend of 7 30 pence per share for 2017 an
increase of 3 0% The total accounting return
was 14 2%

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Acioss the global markets equities have had
adifficult year the FTSE 100 was down 11 6%
over the {ast 12 months lyear to 16 May 2014]
reftecting heightened concerns abeut
macra-ecocnomic ang politrcal risks Closer o
home our shares along with the REIT sector
have underperformed the FTSE principally
reflecting concerns ahout the impact an exit
from Europe would have on the property sector
particularly in London While we are mindful
of this uncertainty we are confident that our
business 1s both resilient and welt placed for
the long term

Ahighlight for me this year was the official
opening of The Leadenhalt Building

last October | was delighted to welcome

the Duke of Cambridge and Prince Harry as
guests of honour as the buiiding ofliciatly
opened for business The Cheesegrater as

115 abfectonately known s a great example

of what Bribish LLand does best - nancing
developing and managtng exceptional buildings

From its innovative construct:on techruque and
distinclive design to its immediate recognition
on the London skyline The Leadenhatl Bulding
has been an outstanding success story Voled
The Crty ef London Bunlding of the Year s 2015
it has attracted the highest rents ever achieved
n the City of London 1t s no surprise that it is
now 98% let/under offer

During the year we were once 2gam also
recegnised as sustamabiiy teaders in global
indices and awards Since launching our 2020
sustamnability strategy n 2015 we have made
strong progress embedding sustainabibity
acrossour business We are achieving resulis
by setting hugh standards delwering training
providing support and sharing best practice
working closely with our development partners
and property managernent subsidrary
Broadgate Estates Lid | am pleased thatwe
support RE100 - commuitted to purchasing
electriaty from renewable power We alsa invest
n renewatble energy sources at our assets with
photovoltaic panels instatled at St Stephen s in
Hull during the year By promoting wellbeing
supparfing communtties operating efficient




buitdings developing peopie s skills and growing
economies we are creating places that attract
occuplers workers shoppersand residents and
so garn value over ime - Places People Prefer

Our high quality por tfolio the optionality within
our development programme and cur streng
finances positions us well for the future

G E AR

John Gildersleeve
Non-Executive Chatrman

@ Full year results 2016
" waww briishland com/resutts

For rore information on sustainability
www briishtand com/sustainability

Chief Executive s review go to pages
6108

Chairman s governance review go to
pages 70 to /1

66

Our delivery of Places People Prefer is evidenced once
again by our near fully let portfolio and the growth we

have generated across our business.”

ek

THE QUELN'S AWARDS
TOR ENTERPRISE
oM

2016 Queen’s Award for Enterprise

in April this year Briish Land was one of only seven campanes
o receive the 2016 Queen s Award for Enterprise Sustainatte
Development as part of Her Majesty The Queen s $0th

birthday honours

The Award 1s the UK s hughest accolade for business success
and 15 given to companies which bring major ecenomic

sccral and environmental benefits through thew own business
success It has been awarded to British Land for continucus
achieverment in all these areas over the last five years
According to Business Secretary Sapd Javid wenners are
leading the way in a broad range of industries and show
they are invelved i activity that ensures a better quality of

lte far everyane now andinthe fulure

Woe wet e obviously thrilted toreceve the award Understanding
what really matters to our customers s hefping us drive continued
improvemenis threughout our business As people 5 attitudes
and expectations change good businesses respond Cur purpose
of creating Places People Piefer and the huge amount of waork
we have dene on placemaking 1s making a material positive
difference ta the customer experience at our assets

This award recognises the contribution of ever yone at Bnitish
Lard We also appreciate that the help and commitment of our
customers partners suppliers and many other stakeholders
has played a partin this achievemnent integrating social and
envaironmental activiies into every area of a businessis not
something you can de on the side or insolation We would like
to extend our thanks to everyone who has wor ked with us over
the years and like us believes that adopting a responsible
approach to business s a powerful tool which helps drive
cusiomei preference and deliver lasting value

John Gildersleeve Chrs Gngg
Non-Executive Chairman Chief Executive

For more infarmation on The Queen s Awards for Enterprise
~" hitp./fqueensawardsmagazine comy/

Far more infor mation on cur awards
www britishland com/fawards

British Land | Annuat Reportand Accounts 2016
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Stratesic Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW

Our strong results are underpinned
by good performances across
the business

Key highhghts of the vear
Total accounting returns!

14.29%

Reflecting the increase /n our net asset value
per share and income yeld frem the dividend

Underlying Profit growth’

16.0%

Drven by financing activity development
completions and like-for ldke net rentat
icome growth

Ptanning granted on

1.5m sq ft

of development space

’ Please see the glossary for definttion

In a fast changing mar ket we are focusing

our business to benefit from long term trends
notably the transiorming tmpaci technology

is having on the way we work shop and live the
wnpact of population growth and urbanisation
particular ly in London and the Sauth East and
increasing consumer expectations in areas
such as health wetlbeing and sustainability
We are focusing oui portfolio an places where
we can contrel the environment exploiting

our placemaking expertise (o manage more
cormplex mixed use environments delivering
on our core purpase of creating Places People
frefer We see inci easing overlap between our
office campuses and our mutti-let regional and
local retall centt es as they combine a gr eater
mix of uses and evolve to reflect our customers
changtng bfestyles

We have had ancther good year both in terms
of our underlying financial performance and
our delivery against our strategic abjectives
Performance 1n the year was underpinned by
strengthening rental growih reflecting the
investments we have made aci ess our portiolio
in recent years alongside good occupational
markets We made good progress with our
commitied developments and are in a strong
posilion to be abte to mave forward with our
near term development pipeline when the

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

time 15 right We continued to sell mature and
non-core assets redeploying capitat principally
inta our existing portfolio - 1n aur campuses
and regional and local retail centres Overatl
our investment activity was broadly balanced

EPRA net asset value was 10 9% ahead ai

#1% pence per share at the year end [932 pence
excluding the impact of the recent increase in
stamp duty] Valuation was up 6 7% with Offices
up 11 8% and Retait up 2 4% principally due to

5 3% ERY growth across the portfolio which
was 130 bps ahead of IPD We generated totat
property returns of 11 3% for the yea:

Underlymg Profit was 16 0% ahead at

£363 millien driven both by our successful
leasing actvity and our lower fimanaing costs
Diluted Underlying EPS was up 11 4% at

34 1 pence per share In line with previous
announcernents the final quarter ly dividend
15 799 pence per share bringing the tull year
dwvidend to 28 36 pence per share anincrease
of 2 5% delivering a total accounting return of
14 2% Our proportionately consoldated LTV
reduced to 32% in line wiih aur strategy of not
gearing up on yield shift with our investment
activity broadly balanced Asaresult of our
1efinancing activities including the £350 million
zero coupon convertible bond our average
financing cost ts down 50 bps to 3 3%
Rellecting our confidence in the coming year
the Board s proposing a quarterly dvidend of
730 pence per share or 29 20 pence per share
for the fullyear anincrease of 3 0%

Qur portfolio 1s wirtually full with occupancy

of 9% In good occupational markets in bhoth
Retall and Offices we saw strong levels of
demand for our remaining space Thisis
reflected in our leasing transactions with

13 million sq f1 of letungs and renewals agreed
on average 6 8% ahead of ERV

In Qffices we made good progress enhancing
and enlivering envitonments strengthemng
long term demand for our space and appealing
1o a broader range of occupiers We let or
renewed 296 000 sq ft of space on average

5 6% ahead of ERV and added €3 8 million

of rent through rent reviews settled on terms




17% ahead of previous rents The Leadenhall
Building 1s now 98% Let or under oifer wath just
one of the tap floors to let We are making good
pregress on our campus visions At Broadgate
we completed 5 Broadgate and we are
pragressing our development opporiunities
across the campus Flsewhere our facus on
creating Places People Prefer 1s driving public
reaten impravements at Paddington Central
and will inftuence ows plans ¢t Reqent s Place
where we see furthes near term refurbishiment
opportuniies Our campuses remain
affordable and the investment we are
underiaking leaves us well positioned to
capiure rental growth going forward

In Retail we let orrenewed 903 000 sq ft of
space on average 8 0% ahead of ERV reflecting
the strength of our markets as welt as the
quality of our assets and the work we have heen
doing to improve them We now manage our
multi-let por tfolio along regional and tocal Lines
reflecting how we see consuimers spend then
ume and money We cantinued to thvest in gur
muiti-let portiolio through large scale leisure
extensions but alse through smaller asset
management imtlatives improving the
amenities at our assets to drive footfall

dwell and spend through tmproved custormner
satisfaction Footfall across our mutti-let
portfolio was up 3 0% outperferming the
market benchmark by 440 bps with retailers
In-store sates also ahead of the market up

2 4% We saw strong demand for our pipeline
of leisure extensions and at those assets where
we have completed extensions or mprovement
works we have already seen good ERV growth
and operational improvements Superslores
performance was more subdued as expected
but we have been active In selling down our
holding to £0 8 bullion from £1 3 bitiran twa
years ago With deals under clfer this falts

to £0 7 brthton

As expected our investment actvily was
broadly balanced over the year including

our share of capital spend We centinued

to allocate more capital into our London
campuses, investing a nel £280 million through
developments at Broadgate Regent s Place
and Paddington Central where we also
acquired One Shetdan Square In Retarl we
made £420 mellion of disposals as we ncrease
our focus on the multi-iet portiolio where we
can put our placemaking skills to work to drive
rental growth

in April Brtish Land was one of only seven
companies lo recewe ihe 2016 Queen s Award
for Enterprise Sustainable Development as
part of Her Majesty The Queen s ?0th birthday
honours The Award 1s the UK s highest
accolade for business success and s gqiven

o companies which bring major economic
social and envir onrmenial benefits through
their business The award reflects our

We create outstanding places which
make a positive thfference to people s
everyday tives

Places People Prefer

This s the core umifying purpose of
our business guiding our strategy
and shaping our actions

Strategic focus
We deliver long term sustamable returns
for our stakeholders by focusing an

Customer QOrientation
Right Places

Capital Efficiency
Expert People

This drives demand from our occupiers
sustamnable growth in income and
ullimately capital vatues

More information about oun strategy
and progress can be found on pages

181025

Placemalking

Placemaking ts how we deliver places
people want towork shop live and
spend ime

We connect
We design
We enhance
We enliven

@ Find out more about our placermnaking
approach on pages 26 to 35

Our values
Dur values underpin everything we do

Do wwhuat is right not
what is ecasy

Work cfficienty as one team

Make commercial decisions
that create long term value

Make things happen

Brish Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016 7

continuous achievernent in all these areas over
the lastfive years We made strong progress
ermbedding our sustamnabibity strategy
including innovating onwellbeing through
public realm mprovements where we invested
£30 million over the year We diverted 8% of
all managed waste from iandhill and delivered
a 40% carbon intensity reduction leading

the Global Reat Estate Sustainatlity
Benchmark for Europe/diversified for the
secondyear running

Development rematns a core part of our
business With the debivery of 5 Broadgate

our 2010 programme completed n the year
generating proht of ¢ 11 bilion and an IRR of over
30% We are currently on site at 629 000 sq {t of
developments, a speculative commilment of
£530 milion principatly 4 Kingdom Street and
Clarges Mayfair owr super prime residential
scheme {over 50% pre-sold] Looking ferward
we have a significant future pipeline with built

n optionality meaning we can start each project
at the nght tme At Broadgate curnearierm
ptpeline includes 100 Liverpool Street and

1 Finsbury Avenue where we recewved planning
during the year and looking to the medium
termwe submitted a planming application at

2-3 Finsbury Avenue Other potential near term
appariunities in Dffices include 1 Tritan Square
at Regent s Place and 5 Kingdom Street at
Paddingion Central In Retail our near term
pipebng includes leisure extens:ons at Drake
Circus Plymouth and New Mersey Speke

Our medium term plans include aur roxed use
redevelopment of the Eden Walk Kingston and
a significant letsure extension at Meadowhall
fcurrently in public consultation] which widt
enhance its position as a flagship regionat centre

We have an exceptional cpportunity at Canada
Waler to create a vibrant new destination for
London and are delighted Roger Madelin has
Jjoined British Land to head up the project

we are already benehiing from his experience
lead:ng the redevelopment of King s Cross
This s a long term project but we are making
progress with a public consultation taking
ptace inFebruary 2016 ahead of an outhne
planning subimssion in 2017



Stratedic Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW CONTINUED

Outlook

Lookmng forward we remain confident in the
underlying strength of the business despiie
conbinued glabat macro uncertainty and the
potentiatly agverse impact of a vote fo: the UK
to leave the Luropean Union Qur husiness is
resilient our portfoliois modern nearly fully
let to quality occupiers on long leases and ous
finances are strong with moderate L1V, low
costs and lang daled finanang from a wide
range of sources Our current commutted
devetopment pipeline 1s modest but we have
built optronality wto our future pipeline sowe
can exploit its potentrzl when the time 1s right
Qur strategy of creating Places People Prefer
focuses our iInvestment and activilies on maci o
trends ensuring our real estate reflects the
changing way people work shop and live

We have significant opportunities across our
existing por tfolio including in our three existing
London campuses and the potential to create
a new London carmpus at Canada Water
alongside our regional and local mutti-let
Retall assets

Chris Grigg

Chief Executive

. To read mare information ahout our
Business model go to pages 10 and 11

Full year results 2014
www britishland com/results

Chief Executive blog
www britishland com/cecblog

@ For more informalion on sustainability
www britishland com/sustatnability

Our priorities for the year ahead

Dehver sustamnable returns for stakeholders

Customer QOrientation
- linprove understanding of our customers

- Use placemaking to deliver improved
customer experience

Capitad Efficiency
- Deliver budget

- Acceler ate delivery of inull let s egronal
and locat Lifestyle retail

8 Briish Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Right Places
- Progress developments alongside materrat
pre-lets

- Progress Canada Water wision and plan

Expert People
- Improve company organisational
effectiveness

- Embed placemaking aci oss the business




The Leadenhall Biulding

Designed by Roger s Surk Harbour + Partners
The Leadenhall Bullding ts a umque 603 000 sq
ft office tower prominently located in the centre
of the City of London lts definung fealure 15 its
distinctive tapering shape which when viewed
from the West appears to leanaway Irom

St Paul s Cathedral This was developed asa
response to the speafic planning requirements
which protect the views of St Paul s frama
number of lecatrons in London The Briush Land
and Oxford Proper ties bullding won the
Wershipfut Company of Chartered Architects -
City of London s Building of the Year award in
2015 after jJudges declared itan extraordinary
example of contempordary architecture”™ The
buitding was also recognised by the Briish
Council of Offrices with a Commercial Workplace
Awat d for s iconic structure and “intelligent
artangements which allow the buitding layout
to change as it rises

www theleadenhatlbuilding com

#8as Cheesegrater

The winning entry by Tom Meains

lo our #SayCheesegrater Instagram
competition designed to celebrate the
ofiicral apening of The Leadenhall Building
by the Duke of Cambnidge and Prince Harry
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Stratedic Report

BUSINESS MODEL

N

Our business is

focused on creating Desq,gn
Places PeOple PrefeT. We locus on attractive and convenient

places which are in tune with modern
Ufestyles, those which connect

with people and reflect the best

n modern design

1 Connect We create places which
connect physicatly and digitally
Source with those people who use them

inctuding lacal communities in
& which they are located

2
Connect

Design CQur buildings and

In‘z’eSt environments offer the imghest

quality of design with engaging
Identifying and investing architecture and a tully integrated
in assets with the greatest public reatm
poteniial to provide value

Source The scale ot our business
the expertise of our people and our " Q] 1]
network of conlacls provide access

o the best investment opportunities L|

Invest We have the skitls experience i
and financiat fleximlity to execute the 1]
mosl value-enhancing investments, 1]
either i acquirng assels orinvesting @ 1]
in the existing portfolio

EE-_}I:
l O
5

mmﬂqﬂ_‘_-.l..lllll NEEESEN

LR T A = = ==
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3
Enhgnce

Enliven

Active asset management to
enhance and enliven our assets
creates vibrant and engaging real
estate, which attracts the strongest
occupiers to our portfolio

Enhance We enhance gur properiies
by attracting a strong diverse mux of
occuplers and broadening the offer:ng

Entiven We provide evenis and
activities which bring lite and
real sense of commumity to our
buildings and best in class services

which improve the experience for w

our customers g

A

PIEICIE I R
3

==
Soboo
P
dj

Y

4 &
Evaluate

Hold/Sell

Our sector knowledge and expertise
allows us to evaluate the potential
of our assets and assess whether
they can deliver future value for
shareholders

Evaluate We assessour sectols
and assets for ther potentrat to
deliver attractive returns over time

Hold or Sell We allocate capital to
sectors and assets with potential
and realise capital from mature

0f NON-Core assels

Find more information about our
strategy on pages 18 to 25

British Land ' Annuai Report and Accounts 2016
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Stratedgic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW

What sets
us apart?

Our approach to doing business puts
the customer at the heart of what we do
This underpins our ability to deliver
Places People Prefer

Customer insight
Ourinvestment in data collecuen
and analytics brings us closer

{0 our customer s guiding our
investments and helping us to
create places that meet thesr
expectations and lifestyles

Estylc focused retail 330111

environments
Regional and local mulu-let

retail assets i tune with modern

annual footfali at
our retall assets

consumet lifestyles where people
gotoshop eat and be entertained

12 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

More than

64.000

people work acrass our effice portfobo

Placemalang skills

Improving our assets 1o cieate a better
overall experience for our customers
and fecal communitres Places which
are easy tovistt vibrant pleasantand
engaging and with high gquality on site
setvices places where peaple wanl
towork shop Live and visit

High quality office
campuses

Othice-ted envir onments focused
around key transport infrastructure
with a growing retail and leisure offer
enabling people to combine work and
play The diversiiy of our offering
provides opportunibies and amenities
forlocal communities helping to
energise the broader campus




Mixed use development
experience

Large scale projects, combining
otfices retail residential and
leisure set amidst attractive
public spaces Typically these
developments involve close

collaboration with local planning e
autharities communities and Ablllt_\' to source and

partners aswell as actve execute complex deals
day-to-day management We have the expertise and

financial flexibility required te
execute complex deals delivering
highly attr active 1 eturns for

our shareholders

Sustamability

credentials
We have been sustainability
leaders for a long tme and

have successfully integrated
suslamability into our placemaking
spproach innovating to improve
people s wellbeing supporting
local communtties designing for
the future and developmg skils
and opportuntttes at our places

Strong network

of relationships
Qur networks span occupiers
planners local authorities
community leaders strategic
partners and investors reflecting @ For mare information on sustamability
our many years as leading www britishland com/sustamability
developers and landlords

across the UK

29.500

Peaople benefited directly fram our
community pragramme this year
including apprentices jobseekers
and schoolchuldren

8ritish Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016



Strategic Repore

MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

Major trends impacting

our markets

Our investment and occupaticnat markets are
increasingly global The UK s political stability
sound legat and financial framework tme zone
and the Liquidity of its property markets make

It an sttractive home for international capital
London in particular offers some of the best
employment opportunities aswell as great
places to live and wot k underpinning the
growing globalisation of its workforce

Sources of mvestment mn UK real estate

HUK 57%
[ Amercas 17%
[JRest of Wortd 26%

Source JLL 2014

14

@)

Positive but moderate
economic growth

Population growth
andl urbanisation

Overatl economic fundamentals in the UK
remain positive Real wages and employment
are forecast to continue to grow and inflation
and interestrates are expecled to remain low
by historic standards However with markets
becoring iIncreasingly global there 1s a greater
risk that external factoi s, mcluding a vote far
the UK to leave the European Union will impact
our markets sowe are mindful of ihe needto
manage eur business to mitigate these risks

5.1%

UK unemployment rate versus Euro area of 10 3%

Source Office for National Staustics April 2016

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

The UK population 1s expected to grow from

64 6 ruthon in 2014 to 74 3 mithion by 2039
Much of the increase will be in its largest citles
notabty London underpinmng demand for
retall and ofhce space aswell as infrastructure
and housmg [n London investrment in better
transport nciuding new rail inks and
improved stattons 1s under way 1hisis driving
growth and regeneration acioss the capital

8.7m

Greater Lendon population forecast to grow
by 1% per annum

Source Oxford Economics

1.5m

extra people withiy 45 minutes of London
with Cressrail frem 2018

Source Crossraiiwebsite
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Transforniing impact
of techinology

66

Our sustainable business model is designed
to benefit from and exploit long term sector
and macro-economic trends.”

QO
QOO
Inecreasing consurner
expectations

Focus on sustainable
and ethical behaviours

Technolegy continues to transform the way
wework shop and lve The internet has created
a choice of delivery platforms so people can
shop in a manner which suits them People are
also able to work remotely increasingly they
see thewr working environment as a place to
collaborate and network and this changes the
type of office space they are looking for

344,000

additional employees working for small irms

Source Department for Business Innovation & Skills
Business Population Estimates 2015

People s expectations of where they work

shop and live are rising They expect atiractive
well-managed environments modern facrlities
and a high standard of service They like places
which are accessible and converuent and
incraasingly they expectleisure to he a part

of their everyday lives

24%

increase n UK F&B/lersure spend forecast belween
20t6and 202}

Source CACI

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 15

People expect companies lo have sound
sustainability credentials to adhere to a hugh
standard of ethical behaviour and lo ensure the
wellbeing of thetr employees Thisis starting

to influence who we want towark for the places
we shop and live and the kind of developments
local communities are prepared {oaccept
Reflecting this is a growing expectation that
governments should use policy to promote
sustamnable and ethical practices

809%

of peaple believe that compamnes can play a lead ng role
n sotving sociaty s preblems white sulk making profits

Source Edetman 2016 Trust Barometer

195

countries agreed to keep global warming below 2°C
pursuing efforts to lmititte 15°C

Source United Mations Framework Canvention
on Climate Change COP 21 Paris 2015




Strategic Report

MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

How we are
responding

sus A

Getting closer to our customers | Creating great environments Focusmg on internet resiient
lifestyle Retail

-Improving our understanding of our - Investing in places which are well - Focusing on creating outstanding regranal
cuslomers preferenceswith effectuve connected well designed and in tune and tocal mulu-let retail assets which are
systems and processes to capture and with modern lifestyles n tune with modern consemer lifestyles
analyse data - Enhanang and enliverung our assets - Understanding whes e a wide ranging mixed

- Increasing in-house exper tise with dedicated through our placernaking activities use offering wilt drive footfall and where
anatyiics and marketing cepahilies aitractive environments best i class convenient and accessible assels are

services and innovative leisure and more appropriaie

- Imp aving in-house managerment of our
properties to deliver consistent best in - Investing to keep pace with changing
class standards - Places which are well integr ated which consumer preferences

add value to local coommunities and where

they choese to spend time

entertainment aptions

- Investing in the British Land brand so peaple
know what they can expect from us and the
properties we own and manage

Completed

A m 0
consumer exit surveys completed over the past four invested in Londan campuses aver the last year increase (n dwell ime at the assets wnere we have
years at our retait assets recentty compteted makeovers {o improve the

shopping experience

16 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Growing in London
and the South East

4

- ldentfying emerging «reas that will benefit
from growth and regeneration particularly
transport/infrastructure-ied

- Increasing the retail leisure residenual
and other alternative uses to enhance our
office-led campuses

- lavesting in 1 elatively alfluent retail locations
outside of London wath population growth
where there is potential to upscale the oifer

- ldentifying compelling residential
oppor tunities

65%

of our assels are located
in Lendon orthe South East

T[T
l()_

Profitable development

- Near term apportunities which focus on
keeping our campuses and our retail-led
centres modern

~Long term large scale mixed use projects
where we ¢an put our placemaking skills
to work

- Manaqging risk through pre-letting and
phasing development siarls

92m sq ft

of devefopments in our near/medium term pipeline

N'Z

Embedding sustainability
in placemalang

- Adaptable and efficient buildings

- Promating wellbeing and producivity for
our occuplers customers and communities

~ Supporting local communities with aur
new Local Charter launched this year

- Developing skills and opportunities to support
local ecanomies

RE100

We support RE100 - committed to purchasing
elecinicity from renewable power in our own space
and across service charge space

@ For more information on sustamatility
www britishland com/sustainatility

Toread more aboui our strategy
gotopages 181025

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 17




Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY

Our strategy for creating
Places People Prefer

Our strategy
Our strategy determines our focus
—

for our annual priorihes P
aVA
@ To read more on our priorties

for the year ahead go to

page 8 Customer Orientation Risht Places
~Leverage our customner insight services - Create and oper ale exciting and engaging
experience and technology to be recogmsed lifestyle eriented real estate put Places
for creating Places People Prefer People Prefer at the heart of our approach
- Use consistent and scalable ways of working - Invest in London - in existing asseis and

emer ging locations benetiting from

- Provide best in class property management
property g regeneration and growth

hy developing in-house capabtiities
through Broadyate Estates - Focus on regional and local mutti-let retail

assets which are 1n tune with medern

consumers lifestyles

000
C( )2

Expert People Capital Efficiency

- Maintain high standard of operational - Allocate capital to maximise returns fram
and investrnent skl sets and encourage our competitive advantages

development in evolving areas - Manage both our development exposure and

- Promote a culture which supports financial teverage through the cycle white
the recruitment and development maintaming the henefits of scale
of a diverse team

- Be the partner of choice for mternational
- Irnprove ways of working capital and public bodies
across the business

Crcating Places "This generates Together with
Pcople Prefer long term grorweth  an optimal capital
drives enduring in rents and structure this
demand ftor capital value. delivers sustainable
our propertics. long term value.

18 Britsh Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016



Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all stakeholders

Occupiers and

their customers

- High guality envit onments
which promote productivity
dand wellbeing

- Affardable and efficient buildings

- Dutstanding custemer services
and faciblies

Investors
- Access to high quality liguid real
estate investment

Employees

- An inclusive envir onment
with enhanced wellbeing
and producltwity

- Stahle secure cash flows

- Superiar toial returns

- Potential to develop skills
and opportunities

- Opportursties ta make
d positive difference

Local connnunities
- Atiracuve local environiments

- Faulhiues and services which
enhance the overall area
Partners Places which tlocal job
- Access to high guality reat estate _an?]c:;lvlvs fch support focatjobs
- Assel managemernl and

development skifls - Stronger community networks

and facilities
- Streng relationships
@ For more mformation on sustainability

www britishtand com/sustainablity

Briush Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2016
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Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

How we performed
over the past year

Our priorities in the year were

What we have achieved

Our long term objective

Delivering sustainable
long term value

Customer Orientation

- Getting closer to our occupiers and end users

- Improving our systems and processes

- Leveraging Broadgate Estates

- Innovatung to support custemer wellbeing
- Continuing te : epesttion the Retail portfolio

- 13m sq f of leasing activity across Retail
and Offices

- The Leadenhall Building now 98% let/under
offer up fram 84% at the start of the year

- £428m of mature/nan-core Retart assels
sold including £122m of supe stores
reducing our weighting to 5%

- Over 43 000 people surveyed in Retadl with
sales data on %4% of multr-let assets and
footfall data on 99%

— 4 2/5wisitor score for shopping experience

- 350 occupier surveys now completed
in Offices with footfall counters piloted
al Broadgate

- Broadgate Estates now managing all of
our retall assets covering over 20m sq ft

- Par tnered with occupiers on inttiatives
at our properties including wellbeing
and community

- Internal ieam strengthened with improved
sysiems and processes to analyse data

Right Places

- Progressing our strategy for London

- Progressing commitied and near term
developrments

- Refi eshing medium term str ategies for
Broadgate Meadowhall and Canada Water

- Supporting successtul local communities

- £280m net investment into London campuses

- Progressing the Breadgate viston with
ptanning achieved on 100 Liverpool Street
and 1 Finsbury Avenue and submitted at
2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue

- Good i ogr ess at ow development at
4 Kingdom Street and Paddingion Central

- Refurbishment of 338 £uston Road Regent s
Place completed with over 80% of space
pre-letto Facebock

- Lirca £80m invested in improvements and
extenstens (o Retal assels Drawing up plans
for a proposed 330 000 sq ft Lersure Hall
al Meadowhall

- £60m refurbrshment of Meadowhall under
way and pregressing well

- Progressing ous Canada Water development
held a public consultation in February 2016

~Launch of Local Charter to support
successful local communities and devetop
local skiits and opportunities

- Commuaity programrme equivalent to 0 6%
of pre-tax profits benefitrng 2% 500 people

Capital Efficiency

- Optimising size and financial structure across

the praperty cycle

- Balancing trade-off between a cost eficient
and higher capability orgamsation

- Continuing to buitd relatienships with direct
and indirect capstal and public bodies

- Delivering future proofing imitiateves

- £618m nen-core assel/matur e sales in the
year with acquisiions and capiial investment
of £639m

- Building our relationship with Southwark
Council our partner on Canada Water

- Compieted over Elbn of financing actwity
since 31 March 2015 including a zere coupan
£350m senror unsecured convertibte bend
due 2020 and the tender offer and purchase of
£110m of deberture bonds reducing weighted
average interest rate
hy 50 bps to 3 3%

- 40% carbon intensily reduction versus 2809
(index score)

Expert People
- Conlinting to improve orgamsalional design
and effeciiveness

- Buld management capabilities for new
as well as taditonal skill sets
- Developeng skilis and opgortunities
- Creatng an inclusive wot king envir onment

- Appointed Roger Madelin to head up Canada
Walter development

- Women s Netwark and BL Pride established

- Participation m the Nabonat Equality Standard

- One Star rating in Best Companies to Work
For Survey

20 British Land | Annuai Report and Accounts 2016

- B7% employee score for our offices
supporung their wellbeing

- 100% of our employees and 72% supplier
wort kforce at ow properves paid the Living
Wage Foundation waga

For definitions see glossary on
pages 200 to 203




How we measure up'

Risk indicators and incentive measures

Total accounting return (TAR)

14 2%

2016 14.2%

' - R |

- Total accounuing return 1s our overall measure
of performance Itisthe dvidend pard plus the
growth in EPRA NAY in the period

- During the year we generated a strong TAR
of 14 2% bringing the 3 year TAR to 67%%

Qur dvidend was increased by 2 5% to 28 36
pence per share and our NAV increased
by 10 9% to 919 pence per share

Risk indicators we monitor

- forecast GDP

- the margin between property yields and
barrowing cosls and

- properiy capital and ERV growth for ecasts

Management compensation Linked to
- total accounting returns refative (o peers

Customer satisfaction

79outof 10

P P
i "3l

We extensively survey peaple who use our
assels 1o assess our performance and
identify oppertunities for smprovement

Sustamabihity Performance
- Dow Jones Sustainability Index Woerld
and Europe 2015 %4th percentile
- FTSE4Good 2015 98th percentile
- Global Reat Estate Sustdainability Benchmark
2015 Sector Leader European/Diversified

We track our sustainability impacts on these
indices We are proud to have been awarded the
Queen s Award for Enterprise Sustanable
Development 2016

Risk indicators we monitor

- consurmer confidence

- empleyment forecasts for relevant
sectors and

- market letung risk [vacancies expiries
administrations)

Management compensation linked to

- Company reputation with all stakeholders
and

- supporting the delivery of sustainability
objectives

Total property returns

113% vs IPD
n line
[ o _ 77 +1300ps
: j ;_ :— ’:’.,j +60hps

We have performed in line with the tPD
benchmark an total property return this
year and outperformed over the tast 3 years
by 60 bps per annum

Development comnutment

£0 8bn % of standing investments

2016 £0.8bn +5 8%
U .
T e +12 2%

[evelopment supports vatue and income
growth but alsc adds nisk We aim to keep
our committed development exposure at
less than 15% of our investment portfolio

Risk indrcators we monitor

- property capital and ERV growth forecasts

- total and speculative development exposure
and

- progress of developments against plan

Management compensation linked to

- total property returns relative to IPD

- execution of targeted acquisitions and
disposals and

- progress on key projects mcluding
developments

Loan to value (LTV)
- proportionally consohdated

32%

20146 32%

We manage owr leverage such that LTV should
net exceed a maximusm thi eshold if market
yields were to rise to previous peak levels

Weighted average mterest rate
~ proportionalh consohdated!

33%

2016 3.3%

L R — —_ - -
f

FE|

_— - - - - - 4

Qur tow cost of finance supports performance
and 1s one of the lowest of Listed UK REITs

Risk indicators we monitor

- hikelhood of covenant breach
—-whenrefinancing 1s required and

- perceniage of debt at fixed interest rates

Management compensation linked to
- execution of debt financings

- progress on sirengthening the dvidend and

- execution of targeted acquisitions
and disposals

The Sunday Times Best Companies
to Work For
One star

2016 One star

r

" Please see he glossary foe defimtions

The Sunday Times annual survey 1s one
of the most extensive benchmarks of
employer engagement

Long-term Incentive Ptan
Annual Incentive award

Risk indicators we monntor
— unplanned execuive departures

Management compensation linked to
- quality of people and management
renewal and

- Company reputation with all stakehaolders

Managing rigk in delivering our strategy
see pages 57 to 63

Remuneration repart see pages 86 to 110

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 21



Strategic Report

OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

The importance
of people

Qur focus on Places People Prefer puts
people at the heart of our strategy

Customer Orientation

We are investing in the resour ces that bring
us closer to the people who work shep and
live across our assets improving both our
customer insight and our understanding of
local communities and helping to guide how
and where we do business

inretail our customers have more choice

than ever befare the offering 1Iswider and there
dre more delivery platforms We are bullding
our understanding of how oul customers
manage these choices and are working with
our occupier s at owr multi-let assets Lo deliver
outstanding places for modern consurmer
lifestyles Ourunderstanding of our customers
1s underpinned by the data we gather from our
schemes we have completed over 150 200
consumer exit surveys over the last fouryear s
we collect turnover data on 94% of our mult-let
assets by value and fooifall data fram 98% of
our multi-let assets tmportantly we have the
systems and processes in place 1o generate
insights and learnings from this data and this
guides our approach to placemaking We know
that our leading indicators including footfall
dwell tme and spend benefit gramatically
from anincreased leisure food and beverage
provision and better services so thisiswhere
we are focusing our effor ts At our regional
assets we are focused onimproving the
hreadth and depth of ourretail and teisure offes
mtroducing cinemas and restaurants as well as
more Innavative teisure concepts At owi local
assets we are improving the services we offer
and ¢reating a more atiractive environment

for our visitor s those who want convenience
and accessibility

In Offices our occuprersincreasingly see
property as key to attracting and retaimng tatent
s0 we are working together to help them stay
ahead Thisyear we have surveyed around 350
accupiers or prospeactive occupiers to further
devetop our understanding of what Places
People Prefer means to them We understand
that location and in paruicular proximaty to

22

Our svalues
Curvalues under pin our darly working
practices and set us apa: t Theyare

Do what 1s nght Work efficiently
ot what 15 easv as one team

LB

‘Make things
happen

Make commercial
decisions that create
long term value

transportinfrastructure are priorities so these
are important consider ations for us when we
make investment deqisions The quality and
effiriency of the buitding matters occupiers
wanl the ability to adapt space as their needs
change and for therr workspaces 10 promote
collaboration and posttive retationships across
therr businesses Employees also expect an
altractive place towork aswell as a range of
facilities and services they can enjoy outside

of the office This s why our strategy m Qffices
1s focused on our campuses which are more
mixed s use andinclude retail leisure and
often residential space and other amenitigs
where we can manage the broader
environment We have developed more
interactive marketing campaigns qiving people
the opportunity to participate in the Uife of our
campuses and we are pitoting footfall counters
at Broadgate to provide accurate data on how
successfully our activities are attracting pecple
to the campus We are making a sirmilar effort m
residential where over 400 purchasers across
the super prime paime and lep bier markets
were surveyed At Clarges ous super prime
residential development sn Mayfair we wor k
with our customers on an indwidual basis ta
ensure we deliver a product that reatly reflects
their specific lfestytes

Brittsh Land | Annual Repor t and Accounts 216
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We ensure the highest standards of service
across our office assels by managing them
in-hause through Broadgate Estates our
wholly owned subsidiary and one of the UK s
leatding property management companies

Its chient por tfolio Includes some of the most
prestigious propertres in the UK and we
leverage its scale and exper tise across the
wider market to provide a best in class service
Hawving proved highly successiul at managing
our Offices portfotio Broadgate Estates remit
now also covers our mutt-let Retarl portfolio

To read more about Broadgate Estates
go to www breadgateestates co uk

The quality of our assets and strength of cur
services enables us Lo attract a high catibre of
occupies toour portfolie This together with our
high occupancy levels and long average tease
lengths underpins the quality and secunity of our
rental mcome We are increasing the diversity

of our occupter mix and no single occupier
accaunts for mare than 5 7% of our revenues

©

Expert People

Qur 589 employees are splt between the

core team at Brittsh Land and our property

management subsidiary Broadgate Estates

The breadth and dep:h of our knowledge
=our skills and our relationships underpin

our compettive advantages and enable us to

deliver on our over-riding pus pose of creating

Flaces People Prefer

Far our major occupiers see the table on
page 188

The scate of cur operalions has enabled us

to atiract and retain a team of experts who
know our markets well and bring a range of
expertise across a mux of activities - retail
lessure offlices and residential We have access
to a broad network of contacts spanning
occupiers planners government and local
authoriies commwnity leaders sirategic
partners and investers sowe see the hest
investment apportunities and the most
altractive partnering and funding possibilities
enabling us 1o successfully execute attractive
and often highly complex deals

Our people strategy focuses on creating & team
who can deliver Places Pegple Prefer Getting
closer lo our customers is one of our key
strategic priorthies and having a workforce which
reflects the diversity of our customers helps us
achieve this The poticy throughout British Land
15 to emptloy the best candidates available in
every position regardiess of sex race ethnic
onigin natonality colour age religion or
philosophical belief sexual orientation
marriage or awvit partnershap pregnancy
matermly gender reassignment or disability

We achieved a key mitestone on our jpurney
towards creating a truty Inclusive environment

this year with our formation of BL Pride our
lesbian gay isexual transgender [LGBT)
and allies network and our Women s network

Bath networks have been active in the year
and we ar e pleased that our Chuef Executive
Chnis Gring was ranked 11thn the 7019
Leading 30 LGBT Ally Executives by
QOutstanding and the Financial Times

We are also piloting a mentoring scheme
nitially for women offering help guidance
advice and support where 1t1s needed We
currenily have three lemale Dhrectors on the
Board Lucinda Bell Chief Financial Officer
and Lynn Gladden and t aura Wade-Gery both
Non-Executive Directors As at 31 March 2016
48% of employees across Britsh Land and
Broadyate Estates were female including
three out of ten of our Executive Comemittee

Nurturing talent and supporting development
15 an important elernent of our pecple strategy
We operate a range of online resources to help
employees devetop their skills and wark with
Cambridge University to run a Leadership in
Real Estate programme 24 of our stafl have
benefited from this programeme since it was
launched i 2014 Other training pariners

this year include Happy City who promote
happiness and wellbeing through skills
traiming and campaigns and measure the
impact of change on local weltbeing They ran
a workshop for sentor managers on erbedding
wellbeing principles across our business Qur
ongoing volunteering pt ogramme akso offers
ous staff persenal development opportunities
particularty through skills-based opportunities
such as mentoring 84% of our stafl took part
nvelunteering activities in the year

Qur {ocus on Ptaces Pecple Prefer starts with
our people Both British Land and Broadgate
Estates were recognised in the Sunday Times
Best Compamies to Work For 2016 each
achieving a One Star rating This reflects staff
satislaction with aspects such as leadership
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wellbeing giving something back personal
growth payand banehits aswell aswith their
managerand team

We believe supporting the workforce of
tomorrow 1s important for our business and
markeis We are involved in inttiatives which
make young people of all backgrounds aware
of real estate careers including Pathways to
Property and Budding Brunels 15000 people
benefitad from employment training and
education miliatives acrass our assets during
the vear We ar e also working towards 3% of
aur supplier wor kiorce being apprentices by
2020 Asdetaited tn our Supply Chain Charter
we try to use local suppliers and we partner
with oceuprers and suppliers on far working
practices including the Living Wage
Foundauonwage

Toread more ghout our Expert Peaople
golc www britishland com/blogs
and to read more about skills go to
www britishland com/skilts

Report of the Nomination Commutiee
see pages B4 to 85

@ Board of Directors see pages
6610 69
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OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

Managing our
portfolio

From sourcing and investing in the Right
Places, to enhancing and enlivening our
assels, we are focused on allocating capital
efficiently to maximise returnsg

Right Places

Our investment decistons are heavily influenced
by the long term trends we see driving cu
commercial property markets sowe can
position our selves well for the longer term

Qur focus on London and the Sauth East
1eflects the population growth and increasing
ur banisation we are seeing In the capital
alengside 1ts attrachion as a leading global city
Mor e specdically our investritent in London in
partrular has focused on those areas where
infrasiructure 1simproving driving regeneration
and growth This 1s whet e we see the strongest
retut ns over the longer term

Qur portfolio 1s approamately evenly split
between Retail and Letsure and Offices and
Residenttal but more and more we ate
increasing the mix of uses on our existing sites
aswell as investing directly in mixed use assets
Thus reflects the fact that people swork and
personal lives increasingly overtap they expect
more of the places they work, shop orvisit They
want to wor k in offices which have places to eat
shop and 1 elax and reta:dl destnations with a wide
lersure and service offering This understanding
under pins our focus on placemaking

Placemaking is about owning assets which
connect with the people who use them and
which are designed with their needs in mind
We are investing in our assets to enhance
the offer to enliven thern with events and

services and Lo provide a broader more
engaging experience This approachis
shaping our portlolip

Our Otfices and Residentral portfotrois focused
on our three mixed use campuses (n London
and also mcludes distinclive London properties
such as The Leadenhall Building alongside
smaller clusters of properties Qur campuses
beneht from excellent transport infrastructure
and two Broadgate and Paddington Central
will have thewr own Crossrait stations when
Crossrail opens in 2018 They all have great
potential Broadgate also benehits from its
proximity to Shor editch and the emer ging tech
hubs te the not th and east of the City which
are increasing the diversity of the accupier

mix Regent s Place and Paddington Central
are on the fringes of the West End offering huigh
quality flexibte and affordable space Regents
Place has benefited from regeneration and we
are now seeing this at Paddinglon We are
using our placemaking principles to evolve and
grow our campuses with new developments
which reflect the changing ways peaple work
with more flexible floor plates break-out areas
and outside space We are also adding retail
and leysure and investing in public reatm
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Improvements S0 our campuses are vibrant
and attractive places in which to work and

to spend time oulside of work n Residential
we have been highly setective about the places
we invest in Laoking forward, itwill become a
more significant par t of our portfolio as part
of our mix-use offer particularly as we make
progress at Canada Water where we are
creating one of the largest mixed use
regeneration projects in London

In Retail where technology is changing the
way people shop Right Places 1s about facusing
on assets which are in tune with moedern
consumer lfestyles where people can shop
eal and be entertained The core portfolio
coinprises regional and local multr-let assets
where we are able to manage and improve

the broader envitonment We focus on assels
which are prime in their catchmeni and capture
a broad range ol consumer spend Our larger
regional assels have a wide-ranging retail
andleisure offering attracting visitors from

a broad catchment Our smaller local assels
are convenient and accessible alignedtothe
datly ife of local cemmumiies Gur focus on
Customer Orientation ensures a conststent
approach to placemaking across these




formats although our actions are carefully
considered to improve and optimise each
individually Across our portiolio we are adding
leisure extensions whet e we see demand for
cinermas and restaurants with smaller scale
improvements where appropriate such as more
cafes or improved car parking helpming to
deliver our broader placemaking sirategy of
creating Places People Prefer

. For detail on our portiolio performance see
pages 36 to 47

Development s an important part of what we do
and 1s a key diiver of 1eturns It keeps our assets
modern ensuring demand for them endures

We have a significant pipeline of development
opportunities focused on our campuses and our
multi-let retail assets We have built optionality
Into our pipeline S0 we can progress

oppai tunities when the time (s 1ight

For detall on aur development pipetine
sce tables on pages 194 to 195

Far delail on our devetopment per fat mance
see pages 37 to 39

Across our portfelio we are conscious of the
impact our places have on local communities
We are working to unprove how local people
can infiuence decisians relating to our assets
sowe deliver places they prefer to live and work
around as well as shops restaurants cinemas
and public places where they choose to spend
time Relationships with locat government and
communily leaders are important to our
business We build trust by supporting their
endeavours and work with them to understand
and meet locat chatienges and aspirations

We make 1t easy for local peopte ta influence
decisions relating to cur assets so we deliver
ptaces theyate pleased to Uve and work
araund as well as shops restaurants cinermas
ant public spaces where they choose to spend
time At Regent s Place the launch of a new
Cormnmunity Fund 1s ernpowering our occupiers
to support local projects and 1s strengthening
community links

For maore information on communities
www britishland com/community

Capital Efficiency

Qur rapital 1s broadly balanced beiween

our Retail and cur Office assets Investment
decisions are made across seclors based

on the praspective returns of indivedual assets
We assess our capital allocation by sector
geography and assel level based on our
estirmates of futur e internal rates of return
This helps to identify where our greatest
potential ies and where our capital 1s best
allocated Over the last five years we have sold
£3 4 billion of non-core asset/mature assets
and remnvested the proceeds in high quality
Incame generating assets and developmenis

Development s antmpoertant part of aur
husiness but 1115 also higher risk than our
Income producing asseis due to the wme delay
between commitment to a project and fuily
tetting the completed buillding so we manage
our exposure carefully Devetopment s hmited
ta 15% of the total porticlio fby vatue) witha
maximum of 10% to be developed speculatively
[l e without a pre-let or residential pre-sale]
atany one ime

For further details on our acquisitions and
disposals see the table on page 186

We manage our mix of equity and debt financing
to achieve the right batance between enhancing
returns for shareholders and the nisk of higher
leverage Our primary measure of leverage s
loan to value [LTV] on a proportionatly
consolidated basts which includes the Group s
share of joint ventures and funds and excludes
non-conts olling interests in the Group s
subsidianies) We aim to manage our LTV

thr ough the property cycle such that our
financial pesition would remain robustmn the
event of a significant fall in property vaiues This
means we will Aot increase our leverage solely
on the basis of an impi ovement in market yields

We access a broad range of debt finance on
dttractive terms reflecting the scale of owr

£3S0m

raised through a 0% coupon
canver tible bond ip June 2035

business combined with the quality of our
assets and rental income stream We rase
debtftom a variety of sources across a spread
of maturities ta ensure the Group and its jaint
ventures and funds ar e appropriately financed
We also maintain significant undrawn loan
facilities to provide flexslity and support cut rent
and future requirernents of the business

We use strategic partnerships to leverage our
nvestrnents achieve benefits of scale and
spread risk Around one third of our owned
assets by value are in Jjointventures including
Broadgate and Meadowhall This approach
has enabled us to under take more ambiticus
development projects including The
Leadenhail Buikding where we worked with
Oxford Proper bes Within these structures
we typically provide asset management
development corporate and hinance services
for which we earn management and
performance fees enhancing our overall
returns and strengthening our relattonships
with pariners key custormers and suppliers

We proaciively manage our assets to promate
therr long term sustainatality Our resource
efficiency programme continues o smprove
operational efficiency reduce occupler costs
and support well-managed environments

We took a positive appr oach to the Goves nment s
Energy Savings Opportumity Scheme auditing
enei gy use and implementing additional
efficiency opportumities We are also innovative
in ou use of materials to tower costs and secure
supply and consider on site energy generation

at all our developments This year we retrofitted
photovoltaic parels at St Stephen s Hull as part
of our plans to Increase energy generaton

and enhance revenues al our assets and we
continue our efforts 1o minirmise flood risk

Financral review see pages 49 to 53

Financtal policies and principles see pages
5410 56

@ Details on our carben reduction
programime see page 48
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Placemaking is how we create attractive
and engaging real estate which 1s.in tune with
modern bifestyles and are Places People Prefer

Actwely managing our assets is a core part of
our business We put our customers first and
irvest In the skills and resources which help us
understand them better This under standing
guides our mvesiment achiviies {rom investing
and deveioping the right assets to enhancing
and enlivening them with a range of amenities
evenis and activities This creates preference
tor our propesties helping to diive occupier
demand growthn rents and capital vatues

p—— We =
Connect

Enliven

‘
3
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Stratesic Report

PLACEMAKING CONTINUED /

Connect

A ks
Places which connect physically and digitally

with the people who use them, including & & &

local communities

ao

Conpecting 1s about providing assets which
complement people s Ufestyles enabling them
ta integr ate their work and thetr feisure ime

It means places which are easy to access 4 3

so we focus on assets with great transport g ] bIl

infrasti ucture and those with convenient of our assels are within close proximity
access points or par king facitittes We often of a Croscrail station [opening 2018
Invest o Improve connections for pedestrians
and cyclists and we buitd local relationships
connecting with loral communities 1o better
understand their needs We also think about
how digitally enabled we are and how we

can use these capahilities to create a

closer community

Bulding our exposure to Crossrail
When Crossrail opens in 2018 st will transform
rait transpoert in London and the South East
increasing central London rail capacity by 10%
and bringing an estenated 1 Smillion more pecple
towithin 45 minutes of central London Already
Crossrail 1s driving regeneration and econamic
devetopment Around £4 billson of our assets

al e located near Crossiad and two of ow Masterplanning a

London campuses Broadgate and Paddington destination for London

witl have thewr own Crossrail slations Canada We have shared our irtiat ideas for the Canada
Water our 46-acre scheme in South London Water Masterplan with the local community

15 very close to Canary Wharfand from 2018 These mclude a 3 5 acre park two new pubtic
wilk be just minutes from the West End squares cycling and pedestrian friendly spaces

and dockside impr overments so people can aryoy
and interact with the water andwildiife We are
atso proposing a pedestrianised open-airhigh
street with national and independent retailers
alongside new restaurants and cafes and a new
cutture and entertainment hub at the heart of
the town centre Owr plans are atan eatly stage
and will evolve but creating avibrart and
engaging envir onrent will be our key focus
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S60m

shopper visits to Meadowhatl
aver 25 years

Reviving listorie hnks

m new developments

AtAldgate Place designed by Allies and
Morrison we are reinstating an original
pedestrian street iink which sits above an old
Victorian service tunnel connecting Aldgate and
Aldgate East stations This public thoroughfare
witl be reinvigorated with shops and cates
bringing a new sense of community to the area

Engaging with local commumities
Qur fourth annuat Cornmunity Day brought
together 200 British Land volunteers as wellt as
520 local jobseekers schoolchitdren students
elderly residents and people with learning
disabilities across 20 community partnerships
Qur partners cornmented on the commutment
of those involved reflecting how the event helps
us strengthen locat relationships around our
London assets For ourvolunteersitis a graat
team building opportunity which enables them
to interact with people of different ages and
backgrounds as well as learning new skills

Celcbranng local heritage
Elk Mdi 1n Oldham is one of several assets
where we are using public art to celebrate local

) G_HT1 S e—
TSI

heritage and connect with local communities
Professional sculptor Ermma Hunter worked b

with tacal people to create artworks illustrating YN

Elk Ml s cotton-spinming herttage and poems o QITL—-— =
nspired by local people s stories feature ona e L2 C ™~ -

trio of sculptures in the style of spinning cotton S m‘NT {. '!'T B
bobbins Bronze fooiprints are set inta paving e - — -
stones around the Park recalinga tmewhen R }.’R“;‘Wc e
mill workers went barefoo! to avord shpping "‘l\-c = e ol
on the oily floor -;.. ..THE_:: -,

To read more case studies go to
www britishland com/ptacemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

We

Design

Buildings and environments which offer
the highest quality of design i1n both form
and function with engaging architecture
and a fully integrated public realm

We look beyond indvidual buiidings to think
about the spaces around them Wa focus on
assets where we are able 1o control the broader
environrnent and can therefore under take
broader and belder design We aiso pioneer
new bullding technotogies and the most
sustainable practices

TAF “IST LD .
EEVE FISONG 4 7
“e o A

Making our developments distinctive
Yalding House our most recently completed
office devetapment in the West £nd was home
o Radio T until 2032 Qur refurbishment retained
rmuch of the original character of the buillding
the reception features an adjoining meeting

and waiing raom compiete with turntable

and extensive record cotlection We believe

the distinctive nature of the binlding will appeal
to creative and technotogy focused sectors
which have beena key area of growth across

the capital m recenl years

Great design 1s core to creating ~

Places People Prefer To demonsirate 1} g o
Qur commitment to irnovation 1n - oafg-

design Brihsh Land s proud io ie o
sponsor the Londen Oesign Fesuval . Q

of developments ontrack to achieve
BREEAM Excellentfor offices retail
and leisure

: gg;@ 3.1msqft
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Drawing inspiration

from loeal heritage

At Clarges Mayfair we are creating a new

and elegant tandmark Itis entirely rocted

in the tustory of the surrounding area

taking inspiration from lecal hentage and
craftsmanship This is reflected in the fluted
design of the columns which are made from
Porttand stone the delicate aturinium bronze
balustrades that are mspired by the branches
of the plane trees lining Green Park and the
bread lace collars that were fastionakle in
16th century Mayfair

Improving the public realm

at Paddington Central

We know from our recent survey of 1 000

office workers across the UK that outdoor
areasand gardens are a key part of the ideal
cffice We ve recently embarked on our second
phase of upgrades at Paddington Centrat
which wilt transform the campus for the people
who work and live there by creating a greener
more pedestrian friendly environment Qur
plans include a Woodland Garden an cutdeor
Games Room providing activities where people
can sociatise & Library where people can relax
and a Kitchen Garden with communal seating
in the summer months Al enhancements are
being carefully phased and managed to
minirmse disruption to retatlers residents
building occupants and visitars
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2.5m

number of visitors to
Brozdgate Circle since
its re-design in 2015

Designing for a low carbon future
AL St Stephen s in Hull we have installed 1100
phatovoltaic panels generaling enough clean
powes to fulfil a third of all electricity dermand
in the common areas The panels build on the
Centre s awar d-winning efficiency programme
which has reduced lendlord energy by 40%
since 2010 saving occuprers £383 100 and
cutting carbon emissions by 2 470 tonnes
Other innovations mclude a rainwater
harvesting systerm which provides over

one mitlen Wtres of water each year and

a food-to-water treatment ptant which
recycles 10 tonnes of foed waste annually

¢13m

of energysavings for us and aur
occupters through efficiency
reductions over the past four years

Delivering mnovative design

At Glasgow Fort we are budding a rmult-storey
car parkwith four restaurants on its ground
floor The building will be naturally ventilated
with a sustamable wooden slated redr facade
A corten steel facade with @ gunctured tree
designwill cover the front of the building and
agreen living canopy will overhang the four
restaurant units The new car park is set in
awild forest therned bufferto the surface

car park Incorporating natural play elements
for young children

@ To read more case studies go to
www britishland com/placemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

En

b Ly

nee

Quality occupiers alongside a broad focd, beverage
and leisure offering, reflecting the growing expectations
of our occupiers and customers

We enbance our assets by impraoving the
breadth depth and mix of cccupiers and the
physical space at cur properties Relalively
simpte improvements such as cafes and
attractive places torest or have lunch outside
the office orwhile you re shopping can make
a big difference to the places people work

or shop

66%

of pecple who usad Click &
Collect acress our porticlio
went on to spend at our assets

Investing in assets

with great potenual

New Mersey, Speke 1s the third largest
shopping park in the UK with annual footfall of
8 9 miltion and a third of visitor s using click and
coltect Since the year end we have incieased
our holding in New Mersey Speke to just over
66% We have approval foran 11-sereen ainema
[whtch s pre-letl and six new restaurants
totatling 29 000 sq ft aswell as plansfora
comprehensive refurbishment introducing
doubte height glazed shop fronts and a new
customer servives pod

Incorporating opcn spaces
At Aldgate Place over 50% of the footprintis
dedicated to new public realm spaces including
two landscaped gardens pedestrian streets
well thought-out play spaces and water features
The development includes a four-star hotel
cafes restaurants and shops The tandscaping
designed by Townshend Lendscape A chitecls
retects the contemporary style of the City but
mamtains the industnal and historical legacy

of the East End

of new space planned at Meadowhali s proposed

new Leisure Hall
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Enhancing the environment

for our own team

Our focus on enhancing our assets includes our
own head office at York House and Broadgate
Eslates office at Paddington Central beth of
which we recently refurbished with Broadgate

Estates achteving the world s first BREEAM
Outstanding Fit-Oui Surveys show that people Cg«!: 99(y
feel happier heatthier and more productive in /m 0

the new space which has more natura light of s1aff find our newly

social interacticn This sets the tone to promote
wellbeing and productivity across our portlolio

better views and greenery as well as improved returbished offices an
[ to encourage aciive living and enjoyable place to wark
space planning 10 encourage ac q (@ S trom 3%

Lasteming to our customers

The data we collect from across our retail
portfolio gives us a clear 1dea of what matters
to ow customets In response to customer
feedback we have been upgrading assets

in the portfolio to iImprove shopper satisfaction
Enhancements include additional iood and
beverage opttons, better car parking and
unproved public realm such as new customer
walkways cycle routes seating and atir active
landscaping as wett as children s play areas
and toilet facilities Allhghtbutbs mstalled are
energyefficient taps and tailets are designed
to use as ittile water as possible and tsember
comes from guaranteed sustainable sources

Leveraging Broadgate Estates

We have brought the management of our

retail assels n-house through our subsidiary
Broadgate Estates a leading property
management company We are working to
enhance the offer for customers standardising
operational excellence and rolling oust
value-added services including technology and
consumes services Broadgate Estates already
delivers best in class service across our office
assets and for third parties inctuding many
leading commercial and reiail landlords

We have extended rts remit to cover retar

as we work togetherto ensure all our assets
are recogmisably Places People Prefer

To read more case studies go to
www britishland com/placemaking
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PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

Enliven

Events and activities and best in class services
bring life and a real sense of community to
our buildings

We enliven our properties by holding events
and activibes which benefit our customers
and the locat communities which surround
thermn We also provide best in class services
which improve the overall experience for
our customers

Encouraging health and wellbeing
Last summer we celebrated health and
wellbetng week at Paddington Central to
encourage campus residents workers and
visitors Lo achieve a healthy work/life balance
The schedule featured fi ee health-themed
pop-ups freatments events classesand
give-aways asmed to relax energise or activate
the mind We are now piloting wetlbeing and
preductivity innovations with our occupsers
here who see prarmoting wetlbeing as an
important part of their strategy to attract

and retain the best talent

Promoting public art

Across our portfolio we have used public art
to bring our assets to fe In January this year
we spensored an instailation called Platonic
Spin by Nathaniel Rackowe at Regent s Place
as part of Lumiere Lendon a free outdoor light
lestival Overfour evenings in danuary the city
was transformed with an extraordinary arr ay
of tnstallations turning the capitat into a
winter playground

Maore than

800

people World Host customer
service tramned at cur places
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Evolving traditional retail space
At Meadowhalt we are planning a £300 million
Leisure Hall to respond to our customers
changing feslyles where shopping 1s
increasingty seen as a teisure activity
Camprising 330 000 sq ft of space the
proposed Leisure Hall will add arange

of dining and entertainment experiences

not cutrently available at the centre

Housed under an etegant glazed roof the
Letsur e Hall will integrate with the existing
centre to create a new mulli-levelled
landscaped mall with high guality internat
and externat spaces for promotional and
community uses

RS

177 “wre i Jr e

Celebrating the summer

Last summer our recently developed Old Market
shopping destination it Hereford launched
Herefes! aunigue month-long summer
programme of music street theatre arts and
crafts and feod and drink An iconic Routemaster
bus was parked ai the centie and inside visitors
enjoyed workshops makeovers cake samphing
sessions and cookery demonstrations

More than

600

people at our assets are
Dementia Friendly trained

Attracting all ages to our assets
As partof our camp: ehensive programme

of assetupg: ades we have designed and built
play areas for our youngervisitors at Tollgate
Colchester Wheattey Doncaster Orbital
Swindon and Elk Mili Oldham All the play
areas are heritage-themed and reflect
feedback from shoppers and local heritage

experts AtSwindon a Spitfire art sculpture
and play area reference locat industreal Links
to the manufacture of the Supermarine Spitfire
and designs at Cldham reflect the old cotton
mull which formerly occupied the site with otd
cotton cans adapted to form play equipment
and seating areas

5.5m sq ft

of net space at Canada Water
which we plan to develop

@ Toread more case studies go to
www britishland com/placemaking
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

We are focusing the business around
long term trends and continue to see
the benefits of recent investment

Mherview

2015/16 was another strong pericg for the

UK property market overall despite the moie
chaltenging macro environment London
continued te autper form the rest of the UK
Performance was driven by rental growth

as opposed to the yield compression seen in
recent years with prime yields supported by
rents which continued to rise in both the West
End and the City The occupational mar ket
averall remains favourable althcugh more
recently there Is evidence that some la: ge
occuplers are delaying decisions to take space
until after the upcorming EU referendum
Inretail demand rernains for prime assets
but wider uncertairty has impacted investment
market volumes i recent months The retail
occupational market strengthened overall
refiecting imnproving consumer confidence
and rising real wages However since the turn
of the year there have been some signs that
consumer confidence and spending have
started to weaken

COw partfolio performed well overall
benefiting from our strategy to increase our
{focus on London and balance our partiolio
between Offices and Retail London and the
South East now repi esents 65% of the portfolio
compared to 56% =X years age The portfohio
15 also broadly balanced between Offices
[49% on & pro-forma basis) and Retall This
caompares with six years ago when Offices
accounted for 33% of the portfolio Our Offices
and Retail businesses are increasingly
complementary reftecting our focus on
campuses in Offices and mult-let centres

Portiolio Performance

£14.6bn

UK portfolio valuation

11.3%

Total property return

5.3%

ERVgrowth

6.8%

Capttatreturn

6.8%

Leltings/renewals versus ERV

98.8%

Occupancy rate

Valuation uplift

investment Total

Valuation porttollo Developments portfslio

Year ended 31 March 2014 £m % % %
Retail & Laisure 7341 24 372 24
Offices & Residential 7024 17 127 18
Canada Water 283 - 17 17
Total 14,648 64 9L 67

' On a proportionately conselidated basis
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in Retaill which are becoming more mixed

use inaddition the stable income generated
by the Retail husiness has allowed us to invest
in more cyclical Office development projects

Our portfolio generated a total property

return of 11 3% comprising a capital return
of 6 8% and an income return of 4 2% We
cutperformed IPD benchmarks by 50 bps on

a capital returns basis or 200 bps per annum
an a b year view continuing a consistent trend
of outper formance Total portfolio valuation
was up & 7% to £14 & bitlion Thus performance
cludes the impact ofa 1% increase in stamp
duty for commercial property announced by
the Chancellorin March Excluding the stamp
duty increase the underlying portfalia valuation
was up 77% The standing investment partfolio
was up 6 4% and accounted for ¢90% of the
total upbft the contribution frem developments
was lower as the completion of 5 Broadgate in
July 2015 brought our major 2010 development
programime to a close

Perfarmance was driven by ERV growth
across the business of 5 3% outperforming
the market by 130 bps with a far lower
cantribution from yreld compression which
was 17 bps compared to 48 bps in 2014/15
Overatl ouracticns accounted for around 60%
of performance in both the Retail and Offices
portfotios Offices and Residential delivered a
valuation uplift of 11 8% drwven by ERV growth
of 9 6% and our Retail and Leisure portfolio
grew by 2 4% also benefiting from 2 4% of ERY
growth Within our Relail & Leisure portfolto
our mult-let assets were up 2 8% with ERY
growth of 3 4%

We are pleased with the shape of our por tfolio
with our weightings in Retail and Offices
broadly balanced In the past the sncome
generated from the Retait side of the por tiolio
allowed us to butld out our sigruficant 2010
development programme while maintasning
ourdividend and going forward as technotogy
transforms how we live and work we see that
the breadth of our pos tfolio will provide a
competitive advantage



Imestment Activity

The gross value of our mvesiment activily
since 1 April 2015 as measured by our share
of acquisttions disposals capital spend on
develepments and other capital projects was
€13 bilion On a net hasis aut activity was
broadly balanced We maintained our capitat
chsaipline taking advantage of supportive
markets to sell mature or non-core assets
and reinvesting in our existing business and
inselected acquisitions principally adjacent
to existing assets

The mest significant acquisition was

One Shelden Square Paddingicn Central
acquired for £210 millan in Apeil Last year
This brought our total ownership at the campus
to 806 000 sq ft encluding 4 Kingdom Street
which is under construction with the potential
to develop a further 240 000 sq ft at 5 Kingdom
Street We also acquired an additronal £95
million interest [gross asset valuel in the
Hercules Unit Trust ("HUT"] portfolio bringing
our gross investment over the last two years
to £492 million at an effective net nitial yield

of 4 0% Our holding now stands at 75%

In line with aur strategy we continued to
reshape the Retail portfolio with C420 millson
of mature or non-core asset disposals in the
period Keytransactions ncluded the sate

ol Rotherham Parkgate and Birstall for

£120 rrallion and £31 oultion 1espectively
{bathour share] We also sold mne standalone
foodstores totalting £122 million reducing our
total superstore holding to £0 8 bihion from
£1 3 billion two years ago We no longer have
any exposure 1o the Eurcpean market since

9.0 vyears

Lease length to first break

£1.3bn

Gross ivestment actvity

£ 304 m

Caprtal investment

£332m

Acguisitions

£618m

Disposals

selling the remaining £43 milbion of our
European assets in Line with qur exit strategy

In Offices we sold 39 Vicloria Street in July

last year for £139 million at ar attractive yietd
otless than 4% crystallising an attractive

IRR of over 20% We also sold £59 mullton

{our share] of residential properties on aver age
3% ahead of valuation and continued to achieve
comptetions on exchanged units Two thirds

hy value four share] were at The Hempel
Cotlection inline with our strategy we will

Retal Difices Residential Total
From 1 Apnil 2015 £m {m £m €m
Development Spend 17 140 30 187
Caprta! Spend 99 19 Z 120
Purchases 100 232 - 332
Sales [620] (1391 159] (618]
Net Investment (204) 252 {27 21
Gross Investment 634 530 1 1,257

On a proportionately consolidatad basis

market no further units at Clarges Mayfamr untit
practical completion in 2617 This foltows our
successiul pre-sales campaign i September
2014 where we pre-sold just over 50% byvalue

Derelopment

We completed 908 000 sq ft of developments
In the period with 5 Broadgate accounting for
710 000 sq ft The cormpletion of 5 Broadgate
marked the conclusion of the 2 7 million sq ft
development programme started :n 2010
which generated profits of £11 bilhon and an
IRR of over 30% We also completed Yalding
House a 2% (300 sq {t office-ted refurbishment
in the heart of Fitzrovia as well as 169 000 sq ft
of Retail developments including a retail
extension at Glasgow Tort and a leisure
extensian at Whiteley

Ourunder construction pregramme covers
629 000 sq ft representing a speculative capital
commitment of £530 mithon This principatly
includes 192 G060 sq ft at our super prime
residential-led develapment Clarges Mayfanr
where we have already pre-sold over 50% of
the residentiat units by value and 147 000sq ft
of aifice space at 4 Kingdom Street on our
Paddington Central campus

We a1 e making good progress with our neai
term development pipeline which increased
frorm 1 5rmthion sq ftin March last year to

2 Bmillion sq it We have built optionality into
our pipeline and are progressing the projects
S0 we can be ready to commit when the ume
15 right

The three lar gest schemesin the near

term pipeline reflect office lease expines
over the next 2 years at Broadgate and
Regent s Place where we expect 1o deliver
a sign:hicant increase in the overall floor space
on redevelopment At 100 Liverpeol Street
we recently recewved & resolutton to grant
planning consent far a revised 520 000 sq ft
redevelopment incorporating a larger retait
component and at 1 Finsbury Avenue

we received consent on a 303 000 sq it
redevelopment At 1 Triton Square onour
Regent s Place campus we are progressing
the design for a subsiantial refurbishment
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Qur planning applicaton for 340 000 sq ft of
mixed use space at Blossom Street Shorediteh
was also granted consent having been called
in by the Mayer of London The High Court has
since rejected a Judicial Review of the Mayar s
decision to take over the application but itis
unlikely that we will start onsite in 2016 At

5 Kingdam Street on our Paddingion Central
camgpus we expect 10 submit a revised
planmag application for a larger scheme

by the end of the year

In Retail we will continue 10 enhance our offer
with a strong near term pipeline of leisure
extensions including 102 600 sq ft at Drake
Ctreus Plymouth and 66 000 sq ftat New
Mersey Speke We also received planmung
consent at Ealing Broadway for the conversion
of an office block to 34 00 sq ft of private rented
residential apartments We alse added Crawley
Homewar es Park to the near term pipetine
where we obtarned planning conseni to
redevelop the exisung Homebase into a 52 000
sq ft homewares park comprismg 3 umts

Looking ahead to our medium term pipeline
m Retail we subroitted a ptanming application
for the £262 mitlion [our shat e £131 million)
ruxed use redevelopment of Eden Walk
Kingston The 562 000 sq ft development

will include public space teisure retanl and
residential We are also in public consultation
for a 330 000 sg ft teisure scheme at
Meadowhall tn Offices we submitted a
alanning application for the redevelopment of
7-3 Finsbury Avenue which seeks toincrease
the area from 189 000 sq It to 550 000 sq ft

Committed Developments & Pipeline

The most stgnificant project n the medium term
pipeline is at Canada Water Al the beginning of
f-ebruary 2016 we were delighted to welcome
Roeger Madelin to the team to head up this
exciing 4é-acre redevelopment opportunity

As Chief Executive/Joint Chiet £xecutive of
Argent Roger was directly responsibte for
leading & number of signihcant develepments
and from 2000 led the team on the é67-acre

King s Cross development Canada Water s

one of the lar gest regeneration projects in inner
London it has geod transpor tinfrastructure
with access o the City West End and Canary
Whari via the Jubilee ine but also to emerging
areas around Shereditch as well as South West
Lastden via the London Overgr ound

Planming policies have now been adopted
within the Lendon Barough of Southwark and
the Greater London Autharity which encourage
and ar e supportive of a sigmilicant guantum ef
muxed gevetopment In Febiuary 2014 public
cansultation cornmenced regarding the current
rmasterplan propasals Over the coming
months Brivsh Land and Southwark Council
will review the responses received from the
locat communuty

Studies o assess how the proposed quantum
and mux of development might best be
conf:gured and delivered over ume are

curi enily being under taken alongside detaled
financial modelling Discussions with a number
of prospective occupret s from the retail
leisure workspace and the fuli residential
spectrum are assisteng us In this process

Fhe unplications of the Government s proposed

Housing Bill and ef any emerging policies
from the new London Mayor will be assessed
and incarporated wher e necessary

We anticipale a programme and resource
schedule to prepare evaluate and cansider a
planning submission will have been produced
and agreed with Southwark Council by summer
2016 with the ambslion to submit an outline
planming application in 2017 As we work towards
a ptanntng subrission we will continue to collact
rents of £8 million per annum frem the shopping
centre and lessure park at Surrey Quays

During the year we continued to support
dversity and traineng intiative s that make youny
pecple of ali backgrounds aware of real esiate
careers inciuding Pathways to Proper ty and
Budding Brunels aswell as apprenticeships
and local employment programmes such

as Broadgate Connect Together with our
suppliers we supported 120 apprenticeships
atour places in theyear Inadditien a pilot
study on four developments revealed that 60%
of spend went within 25 rules and over 50%
went to small and medium sized enterprises
fuelling regianal econamies around our assets

@ Mare detauls on the portfolio property
perfonnance mdmdual developments
and assets acquired during the year can
he found in the Retail & Leisure and Offices
& Residennial reviews on pages 40 to 47
and in the detalled supplementary tables
on pages 184 to195

British Land share
Current Cestio Pre let Resideniat Pre sold
Sq it value complete ERV ERYV end vaive res dential
At 31 March 2014 000 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Completed in Period %08 553 13 237 215 - -
Under Construction 629 605 204 141 02 557 358
Near term Pipeline 2,019 1,450
Medium term Pipetine 7,175

On a proporuionately censolidated basis lexcept area which 1s shown at 100%)
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Our development pipeline

On site and commutted Near term

4 Kingdom Street 5 Kingdom Street 1 Finsbury Avenue

147,000 sq it 240,000 sq it 303,000 sq it
Completing 2017 Onsite 2017 On site 2017

Qlfice development at Paddington Central an i1 acre | Difice development at Paddington Centrat Office refurtishment at Broadgate increasing capacity
mixed use campus in London s West End and improving local cennections and public spaces

l\ll l ‘Ilﬂm

4

Clarges Mayfair Blossom Street, Shoreditch Plymouth Lersure
192,000 sq ft 340,000 sq ft 102,000 sq ft
Completing 2017 Onsite 2017 Onsite 2014
Mixed use development in Mayfair comprising 34 hugh | Character olfices in a regenecation area deally Letsure extension including a cingma
end apartments together with retail and office space suited to the needs of small and medum sized

oceupiers

Aldgate Place, Phase 1 100 Liverpool Street Speke Leisure
221,000 sq 1t 520,000 sq ft 66,000 it
Comopleting 2016 Onsite 2017 On site 2016

Aresdential devetopment Office refurbshrnent at Broadgate ncreas ng capacity Laisure extension including a cirerna

and improving lecal cannections and public spaces
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Strategie Report

RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW

Our Retail strategy is focused

on creating outstanding

places

for modern consumer lifestyles

Key lughlights of the year

£4.3bn

Portfolro valuaton [Briush Land share]

4.8%

Tolal property return

2.49%

ERV growth

2.5%

Capdial return

8.09%

Lelungs/renewals versus ERV

99,0

Occupancy rate

98 years

Lease length to hirst break

Orvervien

The way peaple shop and spend thair teisure
time conlinues to evolve with technolegy lying
at the heart of this 1t has become increasingly
clear that while anline sales continue 1o graw
physical space remams at the heart of how
people shop Bul today successful destinations
need to be ahout more than just shopping -
they are more mixed vse often with food drnk
and leisure and ate mose embedded in the
communities where they are located Our
strategy in Retail)s to focus on creating
outstanding places for modern consumer
lifestyles places for people to shop eat

and be entertained

We have been progressively reducing our
exposure 1o smaller and singte-let assels
and focusing the business around our larger
multi-let assets where we can conirol the
environment i which we operate and use our
placernaking expertise to drive value Asa
resull of these actons our multi-let portfolioy
now accounts for aver 70% of our Retail
business up from 60% six years ago We now
manage and report our muiti-let portfolio along
regional and local Lines reflecting how we see
consumers spend therr time and money The
data we collect tells us that regional and local
assets fulfil different consumer needs but
well-located and well- configur ed assets can

40 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Chatles
Maudsley
Head of Retail
and |eisure

he equally successiulin teday s omri-channel
world Regional assets have a wide retail and
leisure offer a bigger catchment and longer
dwell ttime Local assels are typically smaller
i scale tughly convenient and accessible and
aften with more local community amenties
and activities

Over the year theretail eccupational market
strengthened reflecting rising employment

and reat wages alongside falling oil prices
QOccupancy ratesimproved as retail and letsure
operator s continued to expand triat new formats
and focus on taking space sn the most attractive
tocations Results have been positive overall
especially for food and beverage operators and
retallers wilh mature omni-channel strategies
This has created occupier lension drving rents
at those assets offering high tevels of footfall
and sales in high quality environments  Since
the turn of the year however consumer
confidence has fallen and reta:l sales have
dipped with some adimimistiations in fashion
likely reflecting concerns about the impending
£U referendum and wider gtobal economic

and peliticat uncertainty

The calendar year 2015 was also a good

year for the retail mvestmeni market and a
record breakmng year for shopping parks with
£2 6 mllion of deals transacted Since the turn




of the year there has been a lack of benchmark
setail transactions and a slowdown in activity
wiih the majority of deals carried over from
2015 Demand remains strong for prime
rnulti-let retail assets and 1S Increasingly
diverse but there s a imited amount of stock
on the market Investors have becorme more
discerning with increased polat 1sation between
prime and secondary assets and demand for
secondary assets showing signs of softening

Portfolio Performance

Our Retait & L ersure portfolio valuation was up
2 4% over the year to £7 3 tutlion including the
impact of the recent 1% increase in stamp duty
for commercial property Excluding the effects
of the stamp duty change valuation uplift was
broadly the same in each half at around 1 8%
drwen by our actions which contributed 0%

of the uplift The portictio outperformed the
market by 20 bps on a capital returns basis
and 30 hps on a total returns basis

ERV across the portfoliowas up 2 4%
{compared 1a 1 4% for the market as whole)
with growth in the second half of the year
higher at 1 5% compared with 8 9% m the first
half ERV growth was stronger in the multi-let
portfolio at 3 4% compared to3 0% in 2014/15
with the accelerating £RV trend broadly
balanced across both regional and local

Retail lettings and renewals
by sector (by rent)

W Fashion & Footwear
ElFood & Lesure

M Health & Beauty

M General Retaill

|aDy

B Cther

M Etectrical & Mebile Phone

2%
18%
16%
13%
%
%
3%

subsectors leading to IPD outperformance
of 210bps demonstrating the quality of our
portfolio Fhe Retad por tfotio continued 1o
henefit from yield movement over the year
with 13bps of yield compression compared
to 47 bps in the prior year The average NEY
now stands at D 0%

Asset Management

Qur facus on the strongest best iocated
schemes and cur censistent appreach to
deliver the most appropriate offer and standard
of service continued to drive good demand for
ourspace so pccupancy across the portfotio
remained high a1 99% Footfallwas up 3 (%
outperforming the market by 440 bps and our
retailers per formed well with their in-store
sales up 2 4% outperforming the market by
200 bps

We provide a flexible and affordable propesition
for occuprers with an average rent to sales
ratio [excluding internet sales) of 10% We
signed 903 000 sq ft of lettings/renewals on
attractve terms with investment leitings and
renewals on average 8B 0% ahead of ERV We
saw good demand for umts of all sizes including
larger urts with over 450 000 g £t of lettings/
renewsls on floor areas over 10 000 sq ft Using
our detailed consumer data we continued to
improve the occupier max at owr local and

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016 41




Strategic Report

RETAIL AND LEISURE REVIEW CONTINUED

14

We continue to enjoy strong relationships
with our major occupiers, and work
closely with them to deliver the space

they want.”

regional assets adding quality bi ands and
broadening our letsur e offering to keep pace
with consumer needs We signed 35 new food
and beverage occupiers and 2 cinemas adding
174 000 sq ft of fond beverage and lersure
space to our Retall operations through lettings
and extensions We settled 1 4 miltion sq ft of
rent reviews at 3 8% ahead of previous passing
rent and only 6% of occupiers decided te leave
on expiry which gives further confidence that
we are creating the right kind of space for
cccuplers We saw like-far-tike net rental
income growth across the Retail portfolio

of 14%

We continue to enjoy strong relationships

with our major cecupiers and work closely
wilh them to deliver the space they want

The investments we are making 1o Irmpt ove
our assets continued to attract new hrands
and popular restaurant providers to cur
regionpai and locat assets Primark recently
opened 68 000 sq ft of space at Broughton
Chester and Fort Kinnaird Edinburgh and both
focations are trading well At Glasgow Fort we
altracted 7 new occuprer s out of town including
Pandera Kike Midane GBK and Foot Asylum
This has mproved the guality and range of
occuprers avallable to consumers and driven
rental growth

In o1 der to atiract such strong accupiers to
our mulb-tet assets we cantinued to invest
across the portfolio to deliver the highest
quality retail environments QOver the course

of the year we spent £80 rmillion on asset
management iNibatives and the positive iImpact
of thus 15 reflected both in our valuation and in
our aperational metrics Actwvity included the
£14 million refurbishment of Ealing Broadway
which completed in November 2015 yielding
positive results including a 5% uphit in retader
sales over the year along with severat new
tenants Wasabi EAT and Srmggle Thus resuited
1 7 3% ERV growth at Ealing Broadway in the
second hatf of the year At Teesside Stockton
our angoing refurbishment has led to new

out of town ent: ants including Paperchase
taking space We compleled a programme

of upgrades on five assets which included
improved new customer watkways parent

903,000 sq ft

of retail and lelsure lettings and renewa
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and chitd parking provision customer service
centres high quality tandscaping cemmunity
artworks celebrating locat heritage and
children s play areas We are already seeing
the positive impact of these wor ks through
improved customer satisfaction an increase
inretaier sales and ERV growth

In ine with our aim to provide & consistent

high level of service for our occupiers and
consumers we have taken the property
managernent of our retatt assets in-house

to Broadgate Estates ourwholly owned
subsidiary and one aof the UK s leading property
rmanagement companies In the year we rolled
out WorldHost customer service training lo
more than 800 people at our places and
Dementia Friendly traiming to over 600 pecple
making sure that from cleamng and secunity to
mainienance and management cur teams have
the understanding and skills to wettome and
supporivisstors We are delighted by the positive
feedback from wisitors and we ar e recognising
tearn members who ar e going above and
beyond thr ough our Awards for Excellence

Meadowhall had a strong year Sales at the
centre were 7 2% ahead with retalers on

the refurbished premiurm mall sigrificantly
oulperforming We are on site with a £6G million
internal refurbishment ahead of which we have
already signed some high quality new brands
including Diesel Joules Kiko Mitana Jack Wilts
and Tapas Revelutien Overall longterm deals
2l Meadowhall wer e signed at an average of

6 3% ahead of ERV and bike-for-tike income was
up 5 7% over the year Looking forward we are
in pubtic consultation far 2 330 GO0 sq i leisure
scheme which will cement Meadowhall s
position as among the best retail and lessure
destinations in the UK

We commuissioned a review by PwC which
identifked Meadowhall s social and ecenomic
contribution to the Sheffield City Region and
the wider UK for the hirst tme with 1p s
every £1 and one job in every 100 1n the region
linking back to Meadawhall, as well as 6460
apprenticeships over five years The Centre
has also contributed £7 3 billion gross vatue
added to the UK economy over 25 years and



E£303 mithion tax over five years Environmentat
achievements include 42% less energy use
over sixyears and 17 000 tonnes of waste
recycled aver ten years Looking forward
around half the materials and labour for our
Meadowhat! refur bishment at e being sourced
from companies within the Sheffietd City
Region bringing a further £25 mitlion to

the ;egional economy

Inmvestment Activity

Gross invesiment activty over the year was
£636 million with total sales of £420 millian
[BL share) and total acquisitions of £100 milkon
[BL share]

We continued to reshape the portfolio
disposing £420 rmiltien of mature or non-core
assels Key transactionsincluded the sale of
HUT assets in Rotherham Parkgate and Birstall
for €120 mithen and £31 million respectively
{both our share] We also disposed of nine
standalone focdstores totalling £122 mitbon
This included the £60 million sale of Tesco
Bursledon ata 5 0% net imtial yield and the
E£37 million sale of Sainsbury s islington at

a net izl yield of 396% This has reduced

our total superstore holding to £0 8 bithon from
£1 3 bilizon two years ago We have a further
£68 rmuitlion of superstores under offer ata NIY
of 4 2% which will further reduce our holding
to £0°7 billion

We acquired an additionat £95 mithon interest in
the HUT portfolio of shopping parks increasing
our ownership from 69 2% to 75 3% over the
year On average these units were acquired

al NAV representing an effective net iniiat

yield of 4 3% {based on actual acquisition costs)
With the disposats made in the year we have
rebalanced the HUT por tiolio and s February
HUT unstholder s resolved to replace Schioders
with Crestbridge as manager

We completed 169 000 sq ft of developments
over the year The 57000 sg ft leisure extension
at Whiteley opened in November 2015 and has
traded well with sales growth of 8 2% in the
second half The 112 000 sq ft Marks and
Spencer anchared retail extension at Glasgow
Fort opened at the start of the year prowiding

a strong additional anchor to the scheme with
footfalt increasing by 6 7% The new 12 000 sq ft
lessure quarter and 600 space multi-storey car
park zre under construcion at Glasgow Fort
and will camplete laterin the year the new
space 15 aglready exchanged or under offer

at record level rents and includes new out

of town accupiers Thartkhun and GBK

Our 254 D00 near term development pipeting
includes 168 000 sq ft of leisure extensions and
86 000 sq ft of redevetopment At Drake Circus
Plymouth where we have permussion for a

102 500 sq ft leisure scheme including space
for 14 restauranis adjacent to the asset we

£636m

Gross investment activity

169,000 sq ft

of retail and leisure developments completed
over the year

expect to take vacant possession of the bus
station site later this year We have atready
pre-let space to Cineworld for a 12 screen
cmema as welt as Byron Wagamama and Zizzi
At New Mersey Speke we received consent
for a 66 000 sq ftteisure extension with an

11 screen cinema also pre-let to Cineworld
and sixrestaurants Already we have exchanged
or are under offer on six restaurant urnts and
irt the main part of the scherme Next has
renewed Ils lease and will extend its trading
space to 48000 sq ft

We have also received planmtng consent

at Caling Broadway for the conver sion of an
atfice bleck to 34 000 sq ft of privale rented
residential apartments This marks the next
stage in our development plan for this asset
and follows a successfut £14 million
refurbishment of the centre completed in
November 2015 Planming pet mission has
also been granted for the redevelopment of a
Homebhase at Crawtey into a new 52 000 sq ft
homewares park

Looking further ahead to the medwm term
during the year we submtted a planning
application for a £262 mitlion lour share

£131 mitlion] mixed use redevelopment of
Eden Watk Kigston i nciude 562 000 sq ft
public space leisure retail and residential

At Meadowhatl public consultaticn has started
on our 330 000 sq 1 lewsur e extension Across
our near and medium lerm pipeline we are
on track 1o achieve BREEAM Excelient orVery
Good ratings on 464 000 sq ft of retait and
leisure space reflecting strong performance
onwellbeing efficiency ecology and other
sustainability criteria
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OFFICES AND RESIDENTIAL REVIEW

We have used our placemaking skills
to drive further improvement at our

London offic

Key highlights of the year

£7.0hn

Partfolio valuation {British Land sharel

15.49%

Total properly return

9.69%

ERV growth

12.0%

Capital return

5.6%

Lettings/renewsals versus ERV

98.6%

Occupancy rate

79 years

Lease length to first break

*

Overview

London again delivered good absolute

and relative performance aver the year
continuing to beneht from trends such as
strong relative economic growth population
growth globalisation of {abour and capital
and infrastructure-led regeneration Qur
Gifices & Residential business grew to

£7 Qbullion from £6 0 billion a year ago
driven by valuation uplift of 11 8%

QOur strategy is focused on using owr
placemaking skiils to drive further

imps ovement at our campuses whsch account
forover 70% of our Offices portiolio through
development pubtc realm improvements and
the introduction of a greater range of uses
We are also using these placemaking skills

at our standalone assets which sllow us 1o
experiment with differ ent products - such

as Yalding House - and also provide hgudity
to the portfolio - such as the disposal of

39 Victoria Street Qur development capabilities
are a competitive advantage enabling us to
impraove our campuses and deliver value

to cur sharehotders

The occupaticnal mar ket in London remained
strong seeing healthy demand throughout
the year With Central London vacancy at

2 8% compared to the long term average of

5 3% prime rents continued to rise However
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e assets, delivering value
for shareholders

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices
and Residential

it recent months there have been signs of a
slowdown likely due to the EU referendumn
Take up s Ukely to slow further in the short
term but long term we believe that [London s
global position wiit endure

The investment market alse remained healthy
reflecting the fundamental attractions of
London giowing rents good lquidity and a
scar city of income return around the world
Demand from globat and demestic investors
remained robust despite the historically low
yields and while investrent volumes have
falien since January fir st quarter transactions
at £3 5 billion were 8% ahead of the Syeat
average Importantly there have been a number
of transactions which support current yields

Inresidenual the prime mar ket hasbeen
impacted by both increased supply and recent
tax changes and transaction volumes have
slowed !nthe super prime market there s
continued emphasis on the guality of stock
and although London conttnues to be viewed
as attractive votumes have moderated The
malinstream market in London has remained
relativety robust with steady demand

We continued to reduce our residential
commitment through further pre-sales at

The Hempel and Aldgate Place and with only
£292 million of units remaming our residential



business represents a manageable amount

of our portfolio The majority of the remaining
uniis by value are at Clarges Mayfair whichwe
will net markeat until completion in late 2017 and
15 a scheme which we believe will sull generate
strong interest

Portfolio Pertormance

We continued to benefit from our focus on
London The value of our Offices and Residential
portiolio was up 11 8% to £7 0 btiion including
the impact af the recent 1% increase in stamp
duty for commercial property The drivers of
valuation growth shifted substantiatly over the
year with our actions accounting for 30% of
growth in the first half and almost all growth
in the second hatf We saw inward yield shift
of 21 bps across the Office partfolio compared
to 51 bps last year reflecting the slowdown in
the investment market

The West End and City por tfolins were up

12 8% and 11 1% respectively with the West
End portfolio showing a particularly strong
performance in the second half in part due to
the 15% uplft on the West End developments
The Residennal portfoliowas up 6 7% This
movement translates into strong overall
capital return of 12 0% ahead of the {PD
sector benchmark by 90 bps

The Offices and Residential Investment portfolio
was up 11 7% driven by 9 6% ERY growth As
our development pipeline completed standing
investrnents have becorne an increasingly
impertant contributer to performance
accounting for almast 0% of the upliftin the
year Developments delivered valuation uplift

aof 12 7% with strong performance at 4 Kingdom
Street which saw a valuation uplift of 42%

Office lettings and renewals
by sector (bv rent)

o
4

W Banks & Financial Services
B Professional & Corporate
oTMT

W Retal

BManufactuning

B Government

Rinsurance Cos

& Other Business

11.8%

valuatian uplift in offices

£3.8m

of annualised rent added
through rent reviews

38 3%
19 5%
153%
948%
7 2%
54%
19%
08%
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Asset Management

Despite delivering 2 2 mullion sq f of
developments in the 1ast 3 years our portfelio
15 now virtually fully let reflecting the strength
of occupational demand and the quality of our
space Asaresult overall tetting volumes at
296 000 sq ft are below recent year s levels
but we continue to agree deals on terms 5 6%
ghead of ERV

We added £3 8 mullion of annualised rent
through rent reviews an 687 000 sq ft of space
an uplrit of 17% campared to previous passing
rent Qur campuses are relatively affordable
and with 1 8 rullion sq it of rent reviews to
settle in the next 18 months we are well placed
to caplure rentat growth going forward
Average ERVs at Paddington and Regent s
Place at £46 pst and £57 psf respectively are
low relative to core West End and at Broadgate
the average 1s £57 psf Overall our portfoliois
now 10% 1ever sionary [7% City 11% West End}

in the City The Leadenhall Building 15 now
98% let or under offer from 84% at the start
of the year with Just arte of the top floors to let
we ¢ontinued to set new rentat highs in the City
We have been particutarly pleased not only by
the occuprer interest but also the criticat
acclaim it has receved with the Leadenhall
Building named Building of the Year by the
Worshipfut Cornpany of Chartered Architects
We were also delighted that The Duke of
Cambridge and Prince Harry for mally opened
the building 1n October 2015

At Broadgate we are progressing our vision to
create awor ld class campus fer Londen This
reflects the growth and diver sity of 1ts locatian
not oaly as an impertant part of the City but
bewng adjacent to the regenerating areas of
Shareditch and Spitatfields which increasingly
cater totechnology and other creative sectors
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OFFICES AND RESIDENTIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

(14

Our Offices portfolio is now virtually fully
let reflecting the strength of occupational
demand and the quality of our space.”

The apening of the Crossrail station at Liverpool
Streetin 2018 will also be suppertive of our
overallvision Redeveloprnent opportuntiies will
signsficantly increase the scale of the campus
and better integrate it with the vibrant areas

o the north and east The redevelopment of
Broadgate Circle has done much to enliven

the carmpus and ow plans will build on this
mamentum with a more diverse offer which
matches changing working lfestyles Our near
term development pipeline includes 823 000 sq
ft of space with a further 550 800 1n the
medium term

At Regent s Place we are progressing aurvision
to evolve the « arnpus thi ough redevelopment
works We completed the refurbishment of

79 000 sq ft at 338 Fuston Read with Facebook
taking occupation of the majority of the space
Levels 2 and 7 133 000 sq ftl are avadahble and we
are seaing good mierest both from existing and
new occupiers We have made good progress
with rent reviews at 20 Triton Sireet growing
rents on average from £52 pst 1o £70 psf on

151 000 sq ft of space and adding £2 5 rmillron

to annualised 1ents with a further 600 000 sq 1
to be negotiated in the next 1 menths Fhe next
phase of major works 1sat 1 Triton Square
where we are n the early stages of desighing

a stgruficant 1 efurbishment

At Paddington Central we are making good
progress towards our vision to complete

the campus through development and
transfos ming the public realm We completed
phase 1 of the public reatrn enhancernent
works and phase 2 which will be focussed
around Kingdormn Stieet 1s out to tender and
will start this summer We have secured 4
smootings on the canal and we have also
purchased 2 canal boats to be used to host
events and enliven the surrounding area

We saw ERV growth of 5% across the campus
in the second half of the year and settled rent
reviews on 75 000 sq ft of space at 2 Kingdom
Street taking rents from £45 psfto £54 psf
and adding £0 & milbon 1o annualised rents
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Ins estment Actnvity

Gross Investment actiity cver the year was
£621 milhion wath total sales of £198 mullion
[BL share} and total azqusitions of £232 million
[BI. share]

We conunued to make progress at our
Residential schemes The Hempel Collection
and Aldgate Place selling £5% million of
apartments at prices on average 3% ahead
of valuation At Clarges Mayfair having
pre-sold over 50% of the gross development
value of the residential element of the scheme
In September 2014 1t remains our intention
te undertake no further markeung until the
remaining apartments have reached
practicat completion
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In July last year we sold an office building at

39 Victoria Street for a net price of £139 mullion

We acquired the bukding for L40 mitlian in 2009

and 1t was let in1ts entirely ta the Corporate !
Officer of The House of Commons in 2013

following a substantial refurbishment The

disposal ata yeld of less than 4% crystallised

an attractive IRR of over 20% per annum

since purchase

At the start of the year we acquired Gne
Sheldon Square for £218 million This 1s in line
with our strategy of expanding our interests
in and around our core campuses It also

INci eases our exposure to an up and coming
area of London and Paddington station a
major Londen transpor tinterchange which




will benefit from the opening of Crossrail in
2018 The acquisition adds nearly 200 000 sq ft
to our office space bringing the assets we own
in Paddington Central to 806 000 sq ft

We campleted 739 000 sq 1t of developments

tn the period with 5 Broadgate accounting for
710 000 sq ft UBS began hitung out 5 Broadgate
in the summer and we expect them to move

n later this year We achieved a BREFAM
Excellent rating at 5 Broadgate and we are

on track to achieve BREEAM Excellent across

& further 2 7 million sq ft of office space

We also completed Yalding House & 29 000 sq ft
office-led refurbishment in the heart of
Fitzrovia The buillding which was launched in
Feb:uary has variable floor plates and 1s
targeted at small and medium sized businesses
in the creative sectors We are pleased with the
level of enquiries seen to date

QOur under construction prograimme covers

&17 600 sq ftwith total speculative commitment
binctuding land} of £530 mittion Tius includes
192 000 sq ft at our super prime residential-led
development Clarges Mayfair where both the
ielocation of the Kennel Club and the affordable
housing element were delivered m the persod
We are on track to complete the 48 000 sq fi
office element in the summer with the
residential to complete in late 2017

At 4 Kingdom Street we are making good
progress We are ontrack te topout later

this month and on target to deliver 147 600 sq §t
of office space in 2017 At 2 Kingdom Street
Broadygate Estates achieved the world s first
BREEAM Duistanding Fit Dut Aswell as being
highly efficient the new environment is helping
Broadygate Estates attract and retain the

best talent

£330m

af committed speculative development

LSm sq ft

Near term development gipeline focused
on London

There are signs that increases in construction
costs are moderating reflecting lower raw
matenal costs However tender prices still
reflect imted capacity in the industry with
contraciors seeking to restore marging and
lisit therr risk exposure In centtal London
we are currently forecasting cost inflation

of 5% per annum and for out projects undel
construchon all cur costs are fixed

We made good progress with our neas term
devetopment pipeline which has increased from
1 3 million sq frin Mat ch lastyear to 18 mitlion
sq ft We recently recewed consent for a revised
520 000 sq 11 redevelopment of 100 Liverpool

St eet at Broadgate incorporating a larger retail
companent than in the previous consent 10 line
with our plans to add 400 000 sq ft of retail to the
campus In the medwm term Subject to UBS
completing the fit out works at b Broadgale we
expect to be in a position to commence with

100 Liver pool St eetin ear ly 2017

At 1 Finsbury Avenue we received planning
consent for a 303 000 sq ft redevelopment

and at 1 Triton Square on our Regent s Plare
campus we are progressing the design We
will make the decision whether to commit to
these schemes at the epproprate time hul
we are pleased with the tevel of interest we are
seeing fiom occupiers for potential pre-lets
despite the fact that the projects are stil at

an early stage

Our planmng applicabion for 340 000 sq ftof
mixed use space at Blossom Street Shareditch
was also granted consent having been called
in by the Mayor of London The High Court has
since rejected a Judicial Review of the Mayor s
decision take over in the application but it1s
unlikety that we will start ensite in 2016 as had
been our intention At 5 Kingdom Streetwe
have made good progress on the proposed
designand we expect to submita ptanning
application by the end of the year

Looking ahead to our medim term pipelineg
we submitted a planning application for the
redevelopment of 2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue
increasing the area from 189 000 sy ft to
550 000 s ft
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CARBON REPORTING

Our efficiency programme provides well-managed
environments for workers, shoppers and residents,
supports our occupiers’ sustainability goals, cuts
occupancy costs and enhances asset value

cDp
CLIMATE
BISCLBEURE
LEAREN 2013

We actively manage greenhouse gas emissions
across our business We are recogmsed in the
COP Disclosure Leadership Index for the fifth
year running with o 100% scor e for disclosure
We also achieved B for per formance

We have reported on all emission sout ces
required under the Companies Act 2004
[Strategic Reportand Diectors Reports]
Regulations 2013 These sour ces tall within
our conselidated tinanaial statement and
relate to head office activities and controlled
emissions from our managed por tiolio Al

Scope 1 and 2 enu~sions intensity (tonnes CO,e)

our scope 1 and 2 emtssions ar e Included

in this staternent We have used pur chased
enerqy consumption data the GHG Protocol
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
[revised edition) and erission factors from the
UK Government s GHG Conver sion Factors for
Company Reparting 2015

Scope 1and 2 carbon emissions 1educed

this year due to several factors notably the
decarbomsation of the UK grid improvements
through our ongoing efficiency programme and
changes in our portfolio affecting energy use

Year ended 31 March 2014 2015 2002
Per mé - Offices [net letable areal 0075 G 076 0118
Per m? - Retait - enclosed 0073 0088 0174
Per parking space - Ratail - open awr 0063 0063 0106
Per m? - Residential 0081 0085 -
Per £ — gross rental income from managed porttotio! 7948 87 30 -
Absolute Scope 1 and 2 ennswions (tonnes CO,e)

Year ended 31 March 2016 2015 2009
Combustion of fuel Managed portiolio gas use and fuel use

in British Land owned vehicles 7.284 6 9465 5156
Operation of factiies Managed portiolio refrigerant loss irom

air condittoning b44 554 -
Purchase of electricity, heat, steam and cooling for our own use

Managed par tfolio electricity use 38,710 42503 41184
Absolute Scope 3 emussions (tonnes CO e}

Year ended 31 March 2016 2012
QOcceupier controlled energy use - Offices Electricity and gas use in our assets 50,291 5i839
Cccuprer contreolled energy use - Retail Electricity and gas use m our assets 584,668 748150
Broadgate Estates controlted energy use - Third parties Electricity and gas use

i assels owned by others 34,097 -
Devetopment supply chain Construction raterials site activity design and other

business services 78934 176622

Visiter travel Vehicle usa to and from assets

2,914,903 4 970786

Corporate and other Group procurement finance employee travel energy

Ufe-cycle related water and residential energy

137,816 109133

' Gross Rentat Income [GRI} from the ranaged porifohio comprises Group GRI of £451 milbon {2013 £3%9 milhon)
plus 100% of the GRI generated by joint ventures and funds of £451 mithon [2015 £495 miltion] less GRI
generated by assets outside the managed portiolic of £315 million [2015 £321 million)
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and associated emissions Combustion of fuel
increased sbightly due to occupier fit outs
notably in The Leadenhall Building

We commussioned a review of our Scope 3
ermissions by Atup which reveated that changes
inour pot tfolio since 2812 have substantially
reduced our carbon footprint The shift towards
assets with strong public transport links

has reduced ermissions from visitor travel by
13 miltion tennes More detailed infermation
around visitor numbers and transport use has
alse improved accuracy reducing visitor travel
emissions by 800 000 wonnes in addition

the reduction in our totat floar area and the
decarhonuisation of the UK grid have contributed
to reductions In ermissions from occupler
energy use of 164 000 tonnes The increase

in Corporate and other emissions was due

to the addition of Broadgate Estates data and
residental energy use data within our footpring
aswell asincreased emissions related to
property acquisitions and finance

Reducing Scope 3 emissions
We are workimg with our develapment
supply cham to i educe carbon emissions
from construction matenats At 100

Livet pool Street our design team has
developed ptans thal re-use as much

of the building structure as possible
cutting construction cests and reducing
embodied carbon by 7 270 tonnes Design
improvements are also targeting a further
4 360 tonne saving versus the original
concepts at no extra cost by changing
insutation materials using cement
replacernent increasing recycled
alurminium content and switching i
lightweight engineered heams

@ We amended our methoedology for

carbon intensites this year and have
restated previous numbers 10 reflect
this For our full methodotogy
explanation of changes and Pw( s
independent assurance see our 2016
Sustamabitity Accounts available at
www britishland com/data




FINANCIAL REVIEW

Our strategic focus on placemaking
along with our active debt management
underpinned our strong results

Kev lughhghts of the year

14.2%

Total accounting return’

919,

EPRA net asset value per share

£9.6bn

IFRS net assets

284

Dividend per share

£363m

Underlying Prohit’

£1.3bn

IFRS prafit before tax

329%

L¥V proportionally consolidated

3.39%

Weghted average interesi rate
proporlionatly consolidated

' See glossary for defintions

Overview

The strong performance this year is reflectedin
our operating results and the total accounting
return of 14 2%

Our focus on ptacemaking and accelerating
ERY growth have delivered a por tiolto valuatton
uplift ot &6 7% on a propartionally consobidated
basis and 0 10 9% increase i NAVY per share

to 919 pence, excludeng the vnpact of the 1%
increase In stamp duty on commer cial property
NAY per shat e would have been 932 pence lan
increase of 12 4%)

We have completed £1 3 billion of iInvestment
activity with acquisition and developrment
spend broadly hatancing disposals We have
seld mature and non-core assets and have
reinvested In our existing business and

tn selecied acquisitions adjacent to

exisling assets

Our balance sheet melrics remain strong

The proportignally consolidated loan tovaiue
ratio has decreased to 32% {rom 35% due io

a cormbmation of our acthions including the
resulis of owr placemaking activity and market
movements We have rarsed £915 mitlion of
new debt mcluding a £350 mulbion zero coupon
convertible bond Together with the £110 mutlton
debenture bonds tender offer and pui chase

we have completed over £1 billion of hinancing

activityin the year This drove the 30 bps
reduction in the Group s proportionally
consolidaied weighted average interest
rate to3 3% from 3 8%

Under lying Profit increased to £363 miltion
as a result of our successful financing activity
teasing of our completed developments and
rental ncome growth in the investment
portfohio mcluding a number of significant
1ent reviews 1n Offices

Underlying earnings per share incteased by
Lless than pi ofits due o the requirement to
anticipale conversion intp new shares of the
€400 rmilbion 1 5% converuble bond 1ssued n
2012 and maturing m 2017 with a conversion
price of 673 pence

FRS profit before tax for the year of

£1 331 million 15 lower than the prior year
primarily due to a reduced level of properiy
valuatton movermnent reflecting the slowdown
inyield compression and the recent increase
in stamp duty on commercial property

Looking forward to next year we intend to
increase the dividend by 3% to 29 20 pence per
share with a quarterly dwidend of 730 pence
per share
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Presentation of inancial information
The Group financial statements are prepared
under IFRS where the Group s interests in joint
ventures and funds are shown as a single line
iterm on the income statement and balance
sheet and all subsidiaries are consclidated

at 100%

Management considers the business principally
on a proportionally consolidated basis when
setting the strategy, deterrmiming annual
priarities making investrnent and financing
decisions and t eviewing per formance This
inctudes the Group s share ef joint ventur es

and funds on a line-by-line basss and excludes
non-controlbng wnterests in the Group s
substdraries The financial key performance
indicators are also presented on this basis

A summary incorme statement and summary
balance sheet which reconcile the Group
financial statements to Brtish Land s
nterests on a proportionally consolidated
basis are included in Tabie Awithin the
suppiementary disclosures

Income statement

1 Underlying Profit

Undertying Profit 1s the measure that s used
inter natly io assess mcome performance No
company adustiments have been made i the
current ar prior year and iherefore this s the
same as the pre-tax EPRA earnings measure
which includes a number of adjustments to
the IFRS reported profit before tax Thisis
presented above on a propor tionaily
consohidated basis

11 Net rental income (Chart 1}

The £35 rillion Increase n net rental income
duning the year was the result of strong
letung activity

The successful letting of cur development
programme provided £23 mulbion of thus
increase primarily due to the start of the lease
at 5 Broadgate and the lettiings we have rmade
at the Leadenhall Budding which 1s now aimost
full with recent leasing deals setung new
records for City rents

Like-for-like rentat mcome growth was 3 4%
Offtces and Reswdenuat gr owth was atmost 7%
Just over half of this was due to the letting up of
completed developments that are naw in the
like-for-like portiolio with the remainder being
ailrsbutable to strong rent review activity
parucularly at Regent s Place and Paddington
Retait and Leisur e growth was 1 4% [t 8%
excluding the impact of surrender premal

Cur near term develepment pipeline could add
a further £68 mitlion of net rental income over
the next Syears The three largest schemes in
the near term pipetine are ncome producing
investments with a current passing rent of

Underhang Profit
2016 2015

Secticn £m £m
Gross rental income 654 618
Property operating expenses (34] [33)
Net rental income 11 620 585
Nel fees and other income 17 17
Administrative expenses 13 194 (e8]
Net financing costs 12 (180 (201)
Underlying Profit 363 313
MNon-controlling interest in Underlying Prefit 4 16
EPRA adjustments® 954 1460
IFRS profit before tax 2 1,33 1,789
Underlying earmings per share 14 341p 3Wép
tFRS basic earnings per share 2 1312p 1683p
Dwidend per share 3 2836p 2768p

Fees and other income and administrative expenses have been restated to reflect the change in presentation
of the resuits of Breadgate Estales a wholly owned subsiciary of the Group This restatement has had no
impact on Undertying Prefit Refer to note 1 of the financial statements for further detaits

« EPRA adjustments consist of investment and development property revaluations gains/losses on investment
and trad ng property disposals changes 1n the fa r vaiue of inancial instruments and associated ctose out
costs These items are presented in the capitaland other column of the cansolidated income statement

Net rental inconte (£m} ichan 1)

Devetopments Likg-for-the ACquisstions Disposals
rental incorme growih

Net financing costs (£m) (Chart 2

27

2015 Firanang Acquistions Prsposals Completion of 2014
acthity developments
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£24 milbion whtch 1s expected to run off in the
last quarter of 2016/17

12 Net financing costs iChart 21

We completed over £1 lillion of linancing
activity in the curi ent year including the

£350 million zero coupon convertible bond and
the £110 million debenture bonds tender offer
and purchase We have rmsed and refinanced
a total of £915 million of debt at lower margins
and in a lower Interest rate environment
Together with the impact of last year s financing
activity this resulted i a £27 million decrease
in financing costs s year

Dur approach to interest rate management was
also important in 1 educing interest costs At the
year end we had reduced the propartion of our
debt held at fixed rates to 60% on average over
the next bive year s [64% at 31 March 2015)

Overall our aclions durning the year drove the
reduction in our proportiongily consolidated
welghted average interest rate to 3 3% at

31 March 2016 from 3 8% at 31 March 2015

Lower capitalised interest in the current
year reflected our reduced development
commitment Thts resutted in an addtionat
£5 miltion of inter est castin the year

13 Adminustrative expenses

sDuring the year we brought the property
managemenl of our retaill assets in-house tor
Broadgate Estates awholly owned subsidrary
in{ine with our strategic focus an customer
orientation and placeinaking In recogmtion
of the core role Broadgate Estates now plays
in how we run the husiness we have changed
the way Its results are presented in the Group
income statement This has resulted ina
€5 mitlon increase in administrative expenses
and an equal and offsetting increase i net fees
and other income 1mportantly this change has
no mmpact on Under lying Proft The prior year
comparatives for net fees and other income
and administr ative expenses have also been
restated to reflect this change in presentation

Development leam costs of £4 mullion were
capitalised for the first ume this year aswe
progress our development pipeline

Overall administrative expenses increased
by £6 mithon this year in line with our planned
investment m people and technology i order
to enhance the capability of the business
which includes a £2 million increase retated
io Broadgate Estates The Group s operating
cosi ratio remains sector leading at 16 6%
(2014/15 16 &%}

1 4 Underlying EPS

tnderlymng EPS for 2015/16 was 34 1 pence
{2014/15 30 4 pencel based on Underlying
Proht after tax of £365 rtbson [2014/15 €313

2016 2015

Balance sheel Secian £m £m
Properties at valuation 14 648 13,677
Othernon current assels 138 256
14,786 13,933

Other net current liabities {2571 (3071
Adjusted net debt 6 {4765] 14918)
Other noo-current Liabitities (0] {73}
EPRA net assets [undiluted) %674 8,635
Dilutton smpact of conver tible bond 400 400
EPRA net assets (diluted] 10,074 9,035
EPRANAY per share 4 919p  829p
Non-controlling mterest 277 333
EPRA adjustments’ [732)  [803)
IFRS net assels 5 9419 8,545

' EPRA net assets exclude the mark-to-market an effective cashflow hedges and related aebt ag,usiments ihe
mark-to-rnarket on the convertible bonds as well as deferred taxation on property and derivative revatuations
They include the valuation surplus en trading properties and are adjusted for the dilutive impact of share aptions
and the £408 million canvertible bond maturingin 2017 Mo adjustmenl is made for the £350 mithon zera coupon
convertible bond because this s not currently dilutive Betails of the EPRA adjustments are included in Table A

within the supplementary disclosures

EPRA NAY per share (p) ichanal

Stampduty
change 13p
PR s A
{24) 13
19
2015 Oifices anc Retal t}ndergmg Dindends Finance 201
Residentat and Lesure prof transaction
valuaton wluation cosis
upbft upft
Adjusted net debt ($m)! ichan &
.
|
EET)
(235}
149181 [4,765)
2015 Acquisz:ons Devefopment Ursposals Net cash COrwdends Other 214
and capex fram
opeatens

' Adjusied net deblis a proportionally consolidated measure It represents the Group net debt as disclosed in
Mote §7 and the Group s share objoint venture and funds net debt exciuding the mark-to-market on effective
cash flow hedges and related debt adjustments and non-controllng interesis A recencilialion belween the

Group net debt and adjusted net debt 1s incluced 1n Table Awithinthe supplementary disclosures
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

million] adjustied to a2dd back interest on the
£400 million 1 5% converthble bond of £4 mitlion
[2014/15 £nit) and the weighted average diluied
number of shares of 1 889 milkion [2014/15
1022 mitlion)

The increase in Underlying EPS of 11 4% s less
than the increase i Underlying Profit because
we are now required to anhicipate conversion
into shares of the £E400 million 1 5% cenvertible
bond wiich matures in 2017 in our 1 eported
Underlying EPS

2 {FRS profit before tax

The main difference between IFRS profit before
tax and Undetlying Prefitis that it inctudes
the valuation movernent oninvestiment and
development properties and the fan value
movernents of financial instruments In
addition the Group s mvestments in joint
ventures and funds are equity accounted

in the IFRS incorme statement but are
included on a proportionatly consolidated
basis within Underlying Profit

The IFRS profit before tax for the year was

£1 331 millon a decrease of £458 mullion
primarily due te the slowdaown in yield

compt ession and the 1% stamp duty increase
on commercial property in the cur rent yeat
resulting in lower levels of properiy valuation
movernent This impacts IFRS profit before tax
through the valuation movement on the Group s
properties which was £248 miltion less than
tast year and the valuation movement on the
propertes held in joint ventures and funds
which was £344 milbion less than last year

Further tnformation on portiolio valuation
performance 1s provided on page 36

The £77 million decrease in net financing costs
to £75 mutlion was principally die to revaluation
gains recorded in respect of the Group s
convertible bonds

The £90 million increase in net remal income
to £425 multton was primarly the result of

the purchase of a controlling mterest in New
Mersey Speke in March 2015 the purchase

of contr olling intet ests in two mixed portfolios
of singte and mulu-let assets [the Tesco
transaction ] also completed in March 2015
and lrke-for-like rental income growth in

the standing perifolro

Basic earnings per share decreased by 22%

ta 131 2 pence per share The weighted average
number of shares in 1ssue during the period
was 1025 milbion {2014/15 1816 milbon]

3 Dwvidends

The quarterly dividend was increased to 709
pence per share in the year bringing the total
dividend declared for the current financial year
10 28 36 pence per share (2014/15 27 68 pence
pershare] anincrease of 2 5% over the prior
year The dividend patd in the financial yearwas
28 02 pence pershat e [2014/15 27 34 pence
per share)

it 1s the Board s intention to incr ease the
dwvidend by 3 0% 1n 2014/17 to 29 20 pence per
share with a quarterly diwdend of 7 30 pence
per share

Balance Sheet

4 EPRA NAV per share [char 3)

The EPRA NAV pet share of 719 pence includes
the 13 pence adverse impact from the 1% rise
in Stamp Duty Land Tax on commerciat
property announced in the budget this year

The 10 9% «ncrease in EPRA NAV per share
reilects 4 strong valuation per farmance across
the por tlolio of 6 7% Our portfolio s hroadly
split equally between Offices and Retail The
valuation uplftin the year 1s primarily due to
RV growth of 5 3% with an accelerated trend
compared to last year reflecting our tecus on
piacemaking and the sirength of the markets
we invest in Yield compression was 17 bps and
contnibuted significantly less to the valuation
uplift compar ed 1o the prioryedr

Returns were driven by our standing
investments up 6 4% boosted byan
increase of 9 4% n our developments

Dffices and Residential valuations weie up

11 8% with strong ERY growth of ¢ 6% the
West End performed shightly mere strongly
than the City in part due to the valuation

upbift on our developments Retail and Letsure
valuations were up 2 4% underpinned by strong
performance i our multi-let por tiolio which
saw ERV growth of 3 4%

The hnance transaclion costs primai ity 1elate

to the debenture bond tender offer and
pui chase completed i the year and are

Furmnemg statistics

compensated for by lower interest cosis over
the remaining period of the finance

S IFRS netassets

IFRS net assets at 31 March 2016 were £9,619
milbion anincrease of £1 054 mullion Thiswas
primarily due to property revaluation gainsin
the cui rent year which were £616 million for
the Group and £245 mitlion for the Group s
share of joint ventures and funds

In August 2015 the lvan provided by the Group
to the Broatigate joint venture was repaid
This was funded by addiional shareholder
contributions o the joint venture and resulted
mn a £137 milben decrease in net debt and

a £137 mullion increase tn the Group s
investments in joint ventures and funds

Cash Flow, Net Debt and Financing
4 Adjusted net debt (Lhart 4)

The impact of our investment activity in the year
was hroadly balanced

Significant acquisitions completed in the year
included One Sheldeon Square and the purchase
of an additional 6 1% of the units In Her cutes Unit
Trust bringing the Group s ownership to 75 3%
at the yearend

Development expenditure of £190 mutlion
related to the spend on our committed
development programme and capital
expenditure of £120 mullion related o asset
management on the standing pertfolio
Forecast development spend of £204 muthon
1s anticipated over the next three years on the
Group s commutled development programme
and £720 million on the Group s near term
development pipeline This compares o

£358 million of contracted resedental sales
along with a fur ther £292 mitlion of residential
uAits yet to be contracted for sale on existing
commilted projects

Sigmificant disposals i the year included

39 Victoria Street at an attractive yield which
generated an IRR of over 20% Rotherham
Parkgale and Leeds Birstall in addition
disposals ol standalone superstores totalling

Group Proportionalty consolidated

2014 20t 2016 20145

Net debt/adjusted net debt' £36V7m £3828m £4765m  £4 918m
Principal amount of gross debt £3952m  €37%m £508%m  £5202m
Lean tovalue 5% 28% 32% 35%
Weighted average snteresi rate 26% 33% 33% 38%
Interest cover 33 29 30 26
Weighted average debt maturity 72years  75years 81years B7years

! The Group figures represent net debt as presented in note 17 of the financial statements the proportionally
consalidated figures include the Group s shareof joint venture and funds net debt and exclude the mark-to-
market on elfective cash flow hedges and related debt adustments and non-centrolling interests
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£122 mithon were compteted including the
sale of Tesco Bursledon for £60 million and
Samsbury s Isington for £32 million reducing
the Group s total superstore exposure to under
£0 8 bilhon We currently have a further

€100 miltion of mature or non-core retail
assels under offer

7 Fnancing

Balance sheel metrics remaimn strong LTV

and the weighted average interesi rate on
drawn debt were reduced and interest cover
improved The decrease in beth our Group and
proportionally consolidated LTV measures s
due to a combmation of our actions and market
movements Note 17 of the hinancial staternents
sets out the calculation of the Group and
proportiorally consolidated [TV

(ur proportionally consolidated LTV was 32%
at March 2016 down from 40% two years ago
Pro-forma for the full conversion of the £400
riallion 1 5% conver tible bond maturing in 2017
propor tonately consolidated LTV 15 29%

The strength of the Group s halance sheetis
reflected m Briush Land s sentor unsecured
credit rating which continues to be rated by
Fiich at A-

Financing activity dur ing the year amounted

to aver £1 bilion We continue to achieve
attractive financings which :mprove edrnings
and bguidity including £915 million of new debt
hnance since 31 March 2015

Taking advantage of favour able market
condittlons we raised a £350 million zero
coupon senior unsecured convertible bond
due 2020 which includes flexible settlement
options and provides fur ther diversification
of our sources of finance

Following a tender aifer n respect of British
LLand s 6 75% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds
due 2020 we purchased £110 mittion of bands
The purchase was funded by existing committed
faciiies and the bonds were cancelled

Financing aclivity 0 our joint venture and
funds in the year consisted of the repayment
of £100 millton of a Hercules Unit Trust term
toan reducing the facliy to £250 million and
Its subsequent refinancing at pricing less than
half the previous facility The Gibraltar Limsted
Partnership £140 miliion loan facitity was

also refinanced in the year zt signtficantly
tower pricing

Qverall financing activity we completed in the
year was the principal factor in the reduction
of the proper tionatly consolidated weighted
average Interest rate from 3 8% to 3 3%

We have also agreed one year extens:ons to
both our bank syndicated unsecured revelving
credit facilihies intotal £1,245 mullion

Brittsh Land has £1 8 billion of commmutted
unsecured revolving banking facibities and
£83 milicn of cash and short term deposits
Of these faciliies £1 6 billien have maturines
of mare than twoyears and £1 2 billion was
undrawn at 31 March 2016 Based on our
current commitments and these facilities
the Group has no requirement te refinance
for four years

Fui ther information on our approach (o
financing 15 provided in the financizl policies
and principtes section on pages 54 to 56
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Tax

The Group elected for REIT status on 1 January
2007, paying & £308m conversion charge to
HMRC in the same year As a consequence

of the Group s REIT status tax s levied on the
disti ibution of income from our qualifying
propei ty rentat business rather than at the
cot porate tevet Any income which goes not
quakify as properly mcome within the REIT
rules s subject to tax i the normal way This
includes profits on properties developed and
sold within three years as well as fees and
interest The tax credit for the yeari1s £2m
{excluding deferred tax]

Qur 2014 Total Tax Contrihution was more than
£240m mainly arising from taxes collected
from others which we administered together
with taxes and levies paid directly

HMRC continue to award British Land a low
nisk tax rating which 1sn par t e reflection of our
REIT status together with the open and regular
dialogue we marntam with them We continue

ta comiortably pass all REIT tests to ensure

cur REIT status s maintaimed

Umiell

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Officer
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FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

We focus on having an appropriate
balance of debt and equity funding which
enables us to deliver our property strategy

Leverage

Our mix of equity and debt financing 1s managed
to achieve the appropriate balance betweern
enhancing returns for sharehaolders and the
risk of igher leverage We use a loan to value
ratio [debt as a percentage of the gross value

of our assets  LTV"] to measure our leverage
primarily on a proportionally consolidated basis
including our share of joint ventures and funds
and exciuding non-controlling interests

We seek to manage our leverage such that

our LTV should not exceed a maximuim
threshold if market yields were torise to
previous peak levels This means we will not
increase out LTV f asset values increase only
as a result of market yield improvemeant
Consequently our maximum LTY may be higher
in the low paint in the cycle and witl trend
downwards as market yields tighten

We leverage our equity and achieve bepefits of
scate while spreading rnisk through jomt ventuses
and funds wiuch are typically parily hinanced
with debt without recourse to British Land

Our curient proport:onatly consolidated LTV
of 32% includes our share of the debtn joint
ventures and funds and 1s higher than the
Group measure of 25%

Debt finance

The scale of our business combined wilh

the quality of our assets and rental Income
means that we ai e allractive to a broad range
of debt providers and able o arrange finance
on favourable terms Good access to the capital
and debt markets 1s a competitive advantage,
allowing us to take opportunities when

they arise

The Group s approach to debt financing far
British Land is to raise funds predominantly on
an unsecured basis with our standard financial
covenants [set out on page 54) This provides
the greaiest fiexibiiity and {ow operationat cost
Qur joint ventures and funds are each hnanced
i ming-fenced structures withoul recourse 1o
British Land for repayment and are secured on
the retevant assets

Presented oppostte ar e the five guiding
principles that govern the way we structure
and manage cur debt

Debt financing invoives risk from adverse
changes in the property and financing
markets In arranging and monitoring our
financing we mclude simportant risk disciptines
ensursng that relevant nisks are fully evatuated
and managed

Managing risk i detivering our strategy see
pages 57 to 63

Momtormg and coni1 olling our debt
We monitor our projected LTV and our debt
requiremnent using sever at key internally
generated reports focused principatly on
borrowing levels debt maturity available
facilities and inter est rate exposure We alsc
undertake sensitivity analysis to assess the
impact of proposed transactions movements
i interesl rates and changes In pioperty vatues
on the key balance sheet lquidity and
profitability ratios

Inassessing our ongoing debt 1 equirements
including for our development programme

we consider potential downside scenarios such
as a fatt in valuations and the effect that rmight
have on ot covenants

Based on owr current comemitments and
avaitable facliies the Group has no
requirement to refinance for four years
[rrrespective of whether the setilement of the
2012 conwertible bong 1swith equity or debi}

British Land s current committed undrawn
bank fzciittes are £1 2 bullton

Managmg interest rate eaxposure

Woe manage cur interest rate profile
independently irem our debt The Board
considers the appropriate maximum level of
sensitivity of underlying earmngs to movements
In market rates of interest over a five-year
period and the appropr tate ranges of fixed

rate debt over relevant ime periods
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Our debt finance 1s 1aised at both fixed and
variable rates Derivauves lprimarily interest
rate swapsl are used to achieve the desired
interest rate profile across proportionally
consolidated net debt Currently 60% on
average of projected net debt 1s fixed aver the
next five year s with a decreasing profile over
the period The use of dervatives is managed
by a Derivatives Committee The interest rate
management of joint ventures and fundss
addressed by each entity for its business

ounterparties
We moniter the credil standing of our
counterpat Ues Lo minimise our risk exposure
in respect of placing cash deposits and
derivatives Reqular reviews are made of the
external credit ratings of the counterparties

Foreign currency

Our policy 15 1o have no material unhedged
net assets or Liabilites denominated in
foreign currencies

When atlractive terms are avatlable the

Group may choose to boriow In fr eely availahle
currencies other than sterling and witl fully
hedge the foreign currency exposure



Ow five gusding principles

Diversify
our sources
of finance

We monitor hnance markets and seek (o access different types of iinance when the relevant market conditions are favourable
t0 meet the needs of our business and where appropnate those of cur joint veniures and funds The scale and quahity of our

bisiness enables us to access a broad range of unsecured and secured recourse and non recourse debt

We enjoy and encourage long term relationships with banks and debt investars We aim to avoid reliance on particular scurces
of funds and barrow fiom a large number of lendes s from different sector s 1n the market and a range of geogr aphical areas
with a total of 33 debt prowider s of bank faciities and private placements alone We also aim 1o ensure that debt providers
understand our business we adopt a transparent approach to prowde sufficient disclosures so that lenders can evaluate ther
exposur e within tie overall contex! of the Group These factors increase our attractiveness to debt provider s andn the last
five years we have arranged over £6 bilion [British Land share over £5 bilbion) of new finance in unsecured and secured bank
toan facibities US Private Placerments and convertble bonds

£0.2bn

Total debt portfolio [proportianally consotidated)

Phase maturity
of debt portfolio

The matunity profile of cur debt1s managed wath a spread of repayment dates We monitor the various debt markets so that we
have the ability to acl quickly 10 arrange new finance as epportunities anse Maturities of different types of drawn debt are well
spread reducing our refinancing risk in respect of timing and market conditiens As a result of our finanaing actvity we are

comfor lably ahead of our preferred refinancing date horizon of not less than twovyears

The current range of debt maturtues 1s one to 20 years In accordance with cur usual practice we expect ta refinance facilities

ahead of ther maturities

8.1 years

Average dett matunty (proportionally censolidated|

Maintain
Ligendity

In addition to our drawn debt we aim always to have a good level of undrawn commutted unsecured revolving bank facilies

in Briush Land These faciities prowide financial iguidity reduce the need to hotd resources in cash and deposits and mimkmise
costs artsing from the difference between borrowtng and deposit rales while reducing credit exposure

We arrange these revolving credit facilities in excess of our commuited and expected requirements o ensure we have adequale

financing avalability to support business requirements and opportumities

£1.2bn

Undrawn comrmitted facrlities

Maintan
flextbility

Our facilities are structured to provide valuable llexibidity for investment deal execution whether sales or purchases

developments or asset management Our bank revolving credit faciittes in British Land provide full flexibility of drawing and
repayment (and cancellation if we require] at shor t notice wathout additionat cost These are arranged with standard terms and
financial covenants and generally have maturities of five years Flexibility is maintained with our combination of this unsecured
revolving debt and secur ed term debt n debentur es wath good subshitution rights where we have the alility to move assets in

and cut of the security

£1.8bn

Revolving credit facilities

Maintain strong
batance sheet
metrics

We actively manage our mix of equity and debt financing to achieve a balance between our abibity to generate an attractive return

for shareholders with the rnsks of having more debt

Our capital strategy 1s responsive to the need to manage our exposure such that we aim nol to exceed a maximum proportionally
cansobidated LTV ths eshold i an econormic downturn i market yields rise to previous peak levels

32%

LTV iproporiionally consoi dated}

A-

Credd rating

3.0

interest cover lproport onally
consclidated)
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Strategic Report

FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

Group borrowings

Unsecured financmng for the Group 1s raised
through bilaterat and syndicated unsecured
revolving bank faciliies with imtial terms of
five years foften extendable] US Private
Placements with matunities up to 2027 and the
convertible bonds maturing in 2017 and 2020

Secured dehtis provided by debentures with
longer maturities up to 2035 at fixed rates of
miterest and a bank term loan

Unsecured borrowings
The same financial covenants apply across
each of the Group s unsecured facilities These

covenants which have been consistently agreed

with atl unsecured lenders smee 2003 are
- net Borrowings not ta exceed 175%
of Adjusted Capital and Reserves and
- net Unsecured Borrowings not to exceed
70% of Uinencumbered Assets

Covenant ratio

No income/interest caver ratios apply to these
faciities and there are no other unsecured
debt financial covenanis in the Group

The Unencumbered Assets of the Group pot
subject to any secur sty stood at £4 5 bdlion
as at 31 March 2016

Although secured assets are excluded from
Unencumbered Assets for the covenant
caleulations unsecured lendes: s beneht from
the surplus value of these assets above the
related debt and the free cash flow {rom them
During the year ended 3% March 2016 these
assels generated £63 multion of surplus cash
after payment of interest Inaddition while
investments m joint veniures do not form part
of Unencumbered Assets our share of profits
generated by these ventures are reqularly
passed up to the Group

Secured borrewings

Secured debt with recourse to Briush Land s
provided by debenlures at fixed interest rates
with long maturities and no amortisation
These are secured against a single combined
pool of assetswith common covenants the
value ot those assetsis required to cover the
amount of these debentures by a minimum of
1 5 umes and net reniat Income must cover the
interest at least once We use our nights under
the debentures to withdraw substtute or add
proper ties lor cash collaterat] in the security
pool norder to manage these cover ratios
effectively and deal with any asset sales

Secured debt without recour se to British Land

comprises the following, each of which s

secured on a specific por tfolio of propertes

- & fixed rate debenture of £30 rmilbon for BLD
Property Hoidings Ltd to 2620 and

- abank loan of £295 millen for TBL Propeities
Linuted (and its subsidiar ies) to 201¢

Borrowings in our joint ventures and funds
External debt for our jont ventures and
funds has been arranged through long dated
securitisations o1 bank debt according to the
requu emenis of the business of each venture

Her c ules Unit Trust has term toan factlibes
maturing & 2019 and 2020 arranged for

#s business and secured on (ts property
pot tfolios without recourse to British Land
These loans include value and iIncome
based covenants

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
At 31 March % N % % Y
Net borrowings to adjusted capital and reserves' 44 A 40 38 34
Net unsecured borrowings to unencumbered assets? 34 23 31 28 29

Highest during the year to 31 March 2016
' 47% and
2 33%
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The secunisations of Broadgate [E1 667 million]
Meadowhall [£696 multion] and the Sainsbury s
Supersteres portfolio [£463 mitkonf have
weighted average maturities of 12 1 years

10 4 years and & 5 years respectively The only
financial covenant applicable 1s to meet interest
and scheduled ameriusation lequivatent to
1tmes cover) there are no LTV covenanis
These secunttisations provide for quarterly
principal repayments with the balance
autstanding reducing to approximately

20% to 30% of the orignal amount raised

by expected final maturity, thus metigating
refinancng risk

Other debt arrangerments with banks include
LTV ratio covenants with maximum levels
ranging from 46% to 65% and most have
rental Incame to Interest or debt service
cover 1reguirements

There 1s no obligation on British Land to
temedy any breach of these cavenants and
any remedy needed would be considered by
the parues on a case-by-case basis




MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING QUR STRATEGY

Risk management is integral to our
strategy of delivering long term
sustainable returns

For British Land effective risk management 1s

a coy ner stone of our strategy and fundamental
to the achtevement of cur strategic abjectives

in delivery of long term sustainable returns We
focus on the management of the principal risks
facing aur business including those risks that
could threaten the Group s solvency and bquidity
as well asidentifying emerging risks whilst at
the same ume making the most of our

oppos tumties

Our Risk Management Framework
Our integrated approach combmes a top-down
strategic view with a camplementary bottorn-
up eperational process outlined in the diagram
on page 38

The Board takes overall resgonsibhity for

risk management with a particular focus on
determining the nature and extent of principal
risks it 1s wilting to take 1n achieving its strategic
abjectives This ts setin the context of the
external environiment in which we operate - this
ts our risk appetite The Audit Committee takes
responsibility or overseeing the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control
systerns |as outlined on page 81} on behalf of
the Board and also advises the Board on the
principal risks facing the Group including those
that would threaten its solvency or guidity

Lucinda Bell
Chair of the
Risk Committee

The Executive Directors are responsible
for delivering the Company s strategy and
managing risk The Risk Commuttee {which
1s Chali ed by the Chief Financaial Officer
and censists of all Executive Direclors] is
responsihie for managing strategic and
operational risk in achieving the Group s
performance goals

Whilst responsitality for oversight of sk
management rests with the Board the effective
day-to-day management of risk 1s embedded 1n
alt areas of our business and forms an ntegr al
part of our core vatues and how we work This
bottom-up approach ensures polential nisks
are identified ai an early stage escalated as
appropriate and mitigations are put in place

to manage such rnisks Each business unit
maintains a campi ehensive risk register which
15 reviewed quarterly by the Risk Commuttee
with signicant and emeryrng risks escalated
to the Audit Cornmutiee for cansideration

as appropriate
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British Land Core Strengths

- High quality commer cizl property
focused on regionat and local multi-let
retall assets around the UK and Landen
affice campuses

- Placemzlung strategy of creating
Places Peaple Prefer

- Customer orientation enables us to
develop a deep understanding of the
people who use our places

- Strong and diverse accupier base

- Highocrupancy and long lease lengths
provides stable secure cash flows

- Mixed use devetopment expertise

- Ability to source and execute
attractive investment deals

- Efficent capttal structur e with good
access to capitat and debt markets

- Sustainabiiity credentials

Our Risk Appetite

The Group s risk appette 1s reviewed annually
lin the context of the core strengths of our
business modelj and approved by the Board
This evaluation guides the actions we take in
executing our strategy The most sigmficant
Judgements affecting our risk appetite include
our assessment of prospective property
returns our asset setection and nvestment
strategy the level of development exposure
and our financial lever age

We have dentified a suite of Key Risk Indicators
{KRIsj to momior our principal risks which

are reviewed quarterly by the Risk Commuttee
o ensure that the activities of the husiness
remain within our rnisk appetite and that our
risk exposure is well matched 1o changes in

the busmess and operating environment
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MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

The Board has considered the Group s risk
appetite and 1115 considered appropriate (0
achieve ow strategic abjectives Our business
is both resilient and well placed for the long
term Our portfolio s modern and nearly fully
let to quahity occupiers on long leases We
have maintained our capital discipline with
investment and development being br oadly
balanced by asset disposals and reduced
aur propor onatly consalidated LTY to 32%
Development continues to remain a core part
of our business and whilst our cut rent
cormmitment has reduced as our 2010
progtamme has recently completed we are
progressing an aitractive fulure pipetine

of devetopment oppor tumibies with the
flexthility to move forward when the time

1s right

Assessment of Prospects

The Group s annuat corporate planning
process includes the completion of a
strategic seview reassessing the Group s risk
appetite and updating the Group s forecasts

The Groug s st ategy provides the focus

for our annual prnieritzes and 1s formatly
reviewed annually This process s led

by the Chiel Executive through the
Executive Comemittee and includes the
active engagement of the Board Part of

the Board s role 1s to consider whether

the sirategy lakes appropriate account ol
the Group s prinapal nsks The latest updates
to the strategic plan and Group risk appetite
were approved by the Board in March 2016

The strategy and risk appelite drive the
Group s forecasts These cover a five year
period and consist of a base case forecast
which includes commutted transactions
only and a forecast which also includes
non commitied transactions the Board
expects the Group to make in line with
the Group s strategy

Assessment of Viabality

The period aver which the Directors consider
It feasible and appropriate to report on the
Gioup sviability 1s the five year period to

31 March 2021 This peried has been selected
hecause 1tis the period thatis used for 1he
Group s medium term business plans and
individual asset perfermance forecasts

Our Risk Management Framework

Top-Down

Strategic nsk management

Review external envronment
Rabust assessment of pnincipal nsks
Sel nsk appette and parameters

Determine strateg'¢ action points

tdentily principal nsks

Direct delvery of strategic actiens
n ne with fisk appetie

Maonitor key risk indicators

-

Execute strategic actions

Report on key nisk indicators

—_—

The assumptions underpmning these forecast
cash Hows and covenant cormpliance forecasts
were sensitised to explore the resilience of the
Group to the potential impact of the Group s
significant risks or a combination of those nsks

The principat risks tablte which fotlows on
pages 60 to 63 summarises those matters
that could prevent the Group from delivering
onits strategy A number of these principal
risks because of their nature or potentat
impact could also theeaten the Group s ability
to continue in business m its current form if
they were to occur

The Du ectors paid par trcular attention 1o the
risk of a deterior atian in economuc cutlook which
would impact proper ty fundamentals including
investor and occupter demand which would have
a negative Impact on valuations, and give rise

to a reduction in the avallabiliny of finance

The remaining principal risks whitst havingan
imnpact on the Group s business model are not
considered by the Directors 1o have a reasonable
likelihood of impacting the Group s viability over
the five year period to 31 March 2021

The sensitivities performed were designed to
be severe bui plausible and te take full account
of the availability of mitigeting actions that
could be taken to avoid or rectuce the impact

or occurrence of the underly:ng risks
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RISK COMMITTEES
E£ECUTIVE
— D/\RECTORS

BUSINESS UNITS

Bottom-Up
Operational risk management

.

Assess effectiveness of nsk

80ARD/ management syslems
AUDIT COMMITTEE -

Report an principal nisks
and uncertainties

//\

Consider campleteness of identifiad nsks
and adequacy of m bgating actians

Consider aggregation of 115k exposures
scross the business

/\

Repart current and emerg ng risks

Identity eva'uate and miligate operational
risks recorded in nsk register

- Downture in gconormic outiook Key
assumptions inclisding occupancy void
periods rentst growth and yields were
sensttised o reftect reasonably hikely levels
associated with an economic downturn

- Restricted avatlabitity of inance Based
on the Group s curient comnmitments and
avalqble facilities there 1s no requirement
to refinance for four years In the normal
course of business financing 1s arranged In
agdvance of expected requirements and the ‘
Directors have reasonable confidence that
addstional or replacernent debt facilities
witt be putin ptace

Viability Statement

Having considered the forecast cash flows
and covenant comphiance and the mpacs of
the sensitivities In combination the Directors
confirm that they have a reasonabie
expectation that the Group well be able to
continue in operation and meet its babilites
as they fall due over the period ending

31 March 202t

Going Coneern

The Dy ectors also considered 1t appiopriate
to prepare the financial staternents on the
going concern basis as explained in the
Governance Review

. To read more tormation on going
concern ga to page /7




Risk Focus in the Year

The Board has undertaken a robust assessrnent
of the pt incipal rtsks facing Bruish Land and
our principal risks have evolved as a result

of the uncertainty as to the outcome of the
pending referendum on the UK s membership
of the EU increased geopolitical instabnlity and
cyber security External factors suchasthe
macro-econemic environment continue to
domunate the risk tandscape Whilst we cannot
contr of the external environment we continue
1o actively monitor leading indicators an the
ecanomic ang property cycle

Our nsk assessment

Principal Risks Key Strategie  Changen

Priorities affected year

Eaternal nisks
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We continue to dr ive improvements i our sk
management process and the qualily of risk
information generated whilst at the same time
maintamning a practicat approach Ouning the
year we introduced an enhanced Information
Security Policy with the aim of providing greater
protection of British Land s eleciranic data by
mandating increasingly secure processes
appropriate conts ols and operations and
promeling awareness of cyber security We
have also reviewed and refreshed our Anti-
Bribery and Cortuption policies and controls

The principal risks facing Brivsh Land are
summarised across the {ollowing pages
inctuding an assessment of potential impact
and likelsheod tagether with how they retate
to our strategic priorities

Impact

Note The above illustrates principal nsks which by their nature are those which have the potentiat
to sigrificantly impac the Group s strategic objectives Einancial posibion or reputation

Key

Strategic prierities

Change year-on-year

Custormer @ Unchanged
@ Orientation =
- Right Places @ Increased
&4
@ Capitat @ Reduced
Efficiency
282 Expert People
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

External Risks

Risks and How we momtor Change n the period
mpacts and managc the risk
Economic The econonme climate and - The Risk Commiitee reviews the economic The UK economy has remained robust
outlook projections for interest rates environrment inwhich we operate quarterly to however there 1s continued economic
present risks and opportumbiesin assess whether any changes to the ecoramic and political uncertamty and cancerns
property and financing markets and  outlook justify a re-assessment of the strategy over the forthcoming EU referendum
the businesses of cur occupiers or risk appetite of the business Uncertamty remains over when interest
- Indicators such as forecast GDP growth rates willnse atbeit consensus has
employment rates business and consumer pushed back their expectations for
confidence interest rates and inflation/deflation Interest rate nses and expects the
are considered as well as central bank guidance increase will not be steep
and government policy updales
- We focus on prime assets and sectors which
we belseve will delver outper formance over
the medium term  benefiting from continuing
occupter demand and investor appetite
Political Significant political events - Whilst we are not able to influence the oulcome @ Uncertainty rernains as to the outcome
outlook {including the pending EU of sigruficant pobiticat events we do take the of the pending referendum on the UK s
referendum] and policies, bring uncertainty related to such events and the range membership of the EU We maintain
risks both in terms of uncertamty of possible outcomes inte account whenmaking support for remaming nthe EU
until the outcome 1s known and the strategic investrment and financing decisions There 1s uncertainty over the new
impact of polictes introduced - We engage public affairs consultants to ensure that Mayar of London s ;'ppmach 10 planning
principally in two areas we are properly briefed on the potential policy and and housing
~ reluctance of investors and regulatory implications of political events Where
businesses to make investment appropriate we act with other industry participants The geopoliticat envic onmient remains
decisions whilst the outcome to influence the debate on these policies unstable with immgration issues
remains uncertain and resulting from the ongeing unrest in
- on deter mmation of the outcome the Middle East putting pressure on
the impact on the case for state resources in Europe
investment in the UK and on
specific policies and regulation
introduced particularly those
which directly impact real estate
Commercial Reduction in investor demand for - The Risk Commutiee reviews the property mat ket @ There has continued to be a high tevel
property UK real estate may resultinfallsin  quarterly to assess whether any changes io the of investor demand for UK commercial
nvestor assetvatuations and could arise market outtock present risks and apportunities property both from domestic and
demand from varations in which should be reflected in the execution of our international mvestor s dui ng the year
- ihe health of the UK econormy sirategy The Commutlee considers indicators such However since the turn of the year
_ the attractiveness of mvestment as margin batween property yields and borrowing there has been a slowdown in
costs and property capital growth forecasts which transactions mn part due to heightened
n the UK are considered alongside the Comrmittee memnbers global unceriainty and investors
- avaability of finance knowledge and exper ience of markel activty and concerns over the pending EU
~ relative atiractiveness of ather trends reterendum The market for the most
assel classes - We focus en prime assets and sectors which we attractive assels remained highly iqud
believe will deliver outperformance over the however mvestors are becoming
medium term  beneliting from continuing occupter ncreasingly discerning with some
demand and investor appetite softening in dernand for more secondary
assets particularly inretail
- Strong relationships with agents and direct
Investor s active In the market
Development  ostinflation presentsarisktothe - Foreach project we make a judgement about There are signs that construction cost

cost inflation

profitability of our development
projects and has the potential to
adversely affect our cash position
and overall return oninvestment

apportionment of construction nisk Where we
retain this risk we aim to fix costs early in the
process subjert to other market factors with key
contlactors subject to financial covenant : eview

We factar in construction cost inflatien for our
projects as part of the investmenl appraisal
process 1o assess the viabibity of each development
We ar e working with cur supply cham on intatives
to address skills shortages and to understand how
resgurce constraints could impacl developmeni
costs in the long term

{

inflation 1s moderating reflecting lower
raw material costs However tender
prices stili reflect the himited capacity
inthe industry with contractors seeking
ta rebuild marging and Limut their risk
exposure We factor costintlation into
ourdevetopment appraisals and for
our projects under construction
substantiatly alt our costs are fixed
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Risks and How we momtor Change n the period

HpACts and manage the rish
Occupier Underlying income, rental growth - The Risk Committee reviews indicators of occuprer The London occugational market has
demand and and caprial performance could be demand quarterly including consumer confidence rermained strong through the period with
tenant default adversely affected by weakentng surveys, employment and ERV growth forecasts healthy take-up and record low vacancy
accupter demand and sccupier alongside the Commitiee members knowledge rales pccuplers are increasingly
falures resulting from variations and experience of occupier plans trading thinking abowt requirements several
nthe health of the UK ecanomy performance and leasing activity in gusding years i advance The market has
and corresponding weakening execution of our strategy however stowed since the tur n of the
of consumer confidence, - We have a diversified occupier base and monitor year as occupiers delay decisions until
business activity and investment concentration of exposure Lo ndvidual occupiers afterthe pending EU referendum:
Changing consumer and business orseclors We perform rigorous occuprer Looking torward the develcprment
practices [including the growth covenant checks on an angomg basis so that pipeline indicates that office supply will
of internet retating flexible we can be proactive in managing exposure to reman constrained i the near term
workng practices and demand weaker occupiers and potentially langer If proposed
fure:(lertgy ‘?l"'c'em b“"‘["“ﬁsl] l - Ongoing engagemem with our occupiers Fhrough developments continue 10 be delayed
new technologies new legislation
and alirnatve locations may Fogaihar wih our occapiars o hrd ways o bet Inretai the occupational market
result in ear lier than anticipated meet therr evolving requirerments remains robust with increasing
obsolescence of our buildings requirements {rom new entrants and
evolving agcupier and regulatory - Our sustanability strategy links action on oceupler for new store formats particularly at
requirements are not met heatth and wetlbeing efficiency commuruiy and the rnost atiractive locations Retailers
sustaimable design to our business stralegy Our are continuing te focus their portfolios
social and environmental targets help us comnply on fawer better stores which suits their
with new leglsiah()n and respond 1o customer omnt-channel strategres Cha[[enges to
demands for example we expect all office retaler profriabiity metude the living
developrnems to be BREEAM Excellent wage business rates revaluation and

the increasing cost of oma-channet
platiorrns including distribution

Availability and  Reduced availability of property ~ Market berrowing rates and real estate crednt @ There continues to be good overall
cost of finance  finance may adversely impact availability and actwvity are montored by the Risk market appette for real estate hinance
ability to refinance debt and drive Committee quar terly and reviewed 1egularly m depending on quality of the bori owet
up cost This may also resultin order to guide our finanding actons 1n executing project and specific lender
weakerinvestor demand for our strategy requirements Overall white there
real estale - We maintain good retationships with our key has been mai ket volatility financing
- Increasing finance costs would financing partners and advisors costs recnamned “3[3“"9? lO:V HUW"E:‘"EF
reduce Undertying Profits - We maintain a diverse range of sources of finance MacTo- ecanorme uncertainties cou

adversely impact futut e lquidity

to provide access to funding as required We aim and pricing

always to have a good level of undrawn commitled
unsecured revolving facilities te ensure we have
adequate [inanceng availabitity to support business
requirements and opportunities

- We work with industry bodies and other relevant
otganisations to participate m any debate of
emerging banking regulations where out interests
are affected

Catastrophic Anexternal event such as a avil We matntain a comprehensive crisis response plan @ The Home Otfrce threal level from

business event emergency, inciuding 2 large-scale across all business unils as wetl as a head office international terrorism rematns
terronist attack, cyber crime, business conttnuity plan severe Our business continuity plans
extreme weather occurrence or and asset ernergency praocedures have

environmental disaster could - The Risk Commitee monitors the Home Office been reviewed and enhanced where

terrorism threat levels and we have accessto

severely disrupt global markets appropriat

{rncludlxg pro:ergty and finance) security threat information services ppropriate

and cause significant damage - Asset emergency procedures are regutarly During the year we introduced an

and disruption to British Land s reviewed and scenanio tested Physical security enhanced Information Secunity Policy

portfotio and operatiens measui es are in place at properties and vath the aim of providing gr eater
development sites protection of British Land s efectromic

- Assel risk assessments are carried out le g data by mandating increasingly secure

security flood environmental health and satety) processes appropriate controls and

operations and promoting awareness

- Our cyber security systerns are backed up by of cyber security

incident management disaster recovery and
business cantinuity plans all of which are regular ly
reviewed lo be able lo respend to changes inthe
threat lands¢ape and organisational requirements

- We also have appropriate insurance in place across
the portfolio

KEY
Change from last year @ Risk exposure has Increased @ No significant change in nsk exposure @ Risk exposure has reduced
Cur principal Key Risk Indicaters are highlghted wath n Howwe maonitor and manage the risk
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Strategic Report

PRINCIPAL RISKS CONTINUED

Internal Risks

Risks and How we monitor Change n the period

impacts and manage the risk

Investment In order to meet our strategic Ourinvestment strategy is determined to be We are focusing the business around

Strategy objectives we must tnvestinand consistent with our target nsk appetite and 1s based long term trends and continue to see
exit from the right properties on the evatuation of the external environment the benefits of the investments we

Respensible at the nght ime Significant made in recent years {n line with pur

executives underperformance coutd - P; Ogr‘essiagz:trr:st the E:' alegysand gonllnumé] priorities set aut lasl year we have

Chris Grigg result from mappropriate :l'g;‘g‘eg i il e“pfile}“r i, focused our nvestment en Londan

Charles Maudsley determination and execution } HISK LOMITILIEe with refer ence to he and the South East and investing

Tin Roberis

of our property investment
strategy, including

- sector selection and weighting

- timing of investment and
divestment decisions,

- exposure to developments

- seclor asset lenant region
concentration

- co-mvestment arrangements

property markets and the external econgmic
ervirgnment

- Individual investment decisions are subject to
robust risk evaluation overseen by our Investment
Committee including consideration of returns
relative ta risk adjusted hurdle s ates

- Review of prospective performance of individual
assets and their business plans

- We foster collaborative relationships with our
ca-investors and enterinto ownership agreements
which batance the interesis of the partres

around transport infrastructure

we ve achieved some key development
milestenes and are also geiling closer
to our customers In Retall we made
€420 million of disposals as we increase
ou focus an the mulu-iet portfotio
where we can put our placemaking
skills 1o work to drve rental growth

@ Qur investment strategy 1s
outtined on pages 24 10 25

Development
exposure

Responsible
executives

Chris Grigg
Charles Maudsley
Tim Roberts

Development provides an
oppertunity for outperformance
but this brings with it elevated risk
The care with which we make our
decisions around which schemes
to develop when, as well as our
execution of these projacts,

must reflect this

[evelopment risks could adversely
irmpact underlying incorme and
capital performance including

~ development letting exposure
- constructien timing and costs
~ major contractor fallure

- adverse planning judgements

Development i1s an impo: tant pat

of our business and a key driver of
returns We have assembled an
attractive pipefne of development
opportuniies which gives us growth
mito the fulure and where we are able
10 make timely decisions to reflect
changes in market conditions These
mclude exciling oppor tunities across
our three existing London campuses
the potential to create a new London
campus at Canada Water alongside

We mamtain our levels of total and speculative
development exposure as aproportion of the
investment pertfolio value within a target range
taking Into account associated 11sks and the impact
on key financial metrics Thisis montered quarlterly
by the Risk Comimittee along with progress of
developments agarmst plan

- Prior to committing to a developrnent the Group
undertakes a detailed appratsal overseen by our
Investment Committee including consideration
of returns relative to risk adjusted hurdle rates

- Pre let targels are used to 1educe development sigmficant mvestment opportunities
leting risk where cansidered apprepriate mour exishing Retail assels

- We actively engage with the cornmunities in which @ Fer more on our devetopment
we operate as detailed n gur Locat Charter to programme see pages 37 to 39
ensure that our developrnent activities consider
the interests of atl stakeholders

- We manage environmental and social risks across
our development supply chain by engaging with our
suppliers including through cur Sustamability Brief
for Developments and Health and Safety Policy

People

Respeonsible
executive
Chris Grigg

A number of critical business
processes and decisions lie
in the hands of a few people

Fakure to recruit develop and
tetain statf and Di ectors with

the right skilis and experience
may result in significant
underperformance orimpaci the
effectiveness of operations and
decision making n turnimpacting
business performance

Our HR str ategy s designed to numimise nsk through Having experi people 1s one of ihe four
- informed and skitled recrudtment processes core focus areas of our business madel

We provide a strong corporate culiure
- talent performance management and succession comnrmitted 1o cur peaple a great
ptanning for key 1oles

working environment corrpetitive
highly cormpetitive compensation and henefits benefits and career development
- people developmeni and training opportunities We ampower our people
to rnake the most of therr potential with
us Our high level of s1af{ engagement
was recognised by mamntaiming a One

Star rating in the Sunday Times Best

We monnor this through the number of unplanned Cornpanies to Work For survey
executive departures in additron te conducting exit Far more on our expert pecpte
IMerviews see page 23

We engage with our outsourced suppliers to make
clear our requirements in managing key nsks
including health and safety fraud and bribery and
other social and environmental risks as detatled
in our Supply Chain Charter

The nisk s measured through employee engagement
surveys employee turnover and retention metrics
and regular people review activities
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Risks and

tlow we monitor Change in the period

mpacts and manage the nsk
Capital We maintan a capital structure - We manage our mix of equity and debt Balance sheet mettics in the year
Structure which recognises the batance financing to achieve the right balance between remained strong We have mamtained
- leverage between performance, risk enhancing returns for shareholders and the our capital discipline with nwestment
and flexibility risk of higher leverage and development being broadly
Responsible - Leverage magnifies returns - We monitor our LTV to manage leverage levels balanced by asset disposals and
executive both positive and negative over the property cycle and seek to ensure that reduced our propar tonally consolidaled
Lucinga Beil - Anincrease in leverage increases -1 ¥ should not exceed a maximum threshold i LTV 10 32% in line with our strategy to
the sk of a breach of covenants market yields were lo rise to previous peak levels not increase leverage solely onthe basis
on borrowing facibilies and may This means we will not increase our LTV f asset of anmpravernent in market yietds
Increase hnance costs values increase only as a result of market @ For more on our financial
yreld umprovement policies see pages 54 1o 56
- We manage our investment activity, the size
and tirning of which can be uneven aswell as
our development commitments to ensure that
our LTV level remains appropriate
- We leverage our equity and achieve benefits of
scale while spreading risk through joint ventures
and funds which are typically partly financed with
debt without recourse to British Land
Finance Our strategy addresses risks both ~ We have tive key principles guiding our financing We continue ta achieve attractive
strategy to continuing solvency and the which together are employed to rmnanage the risks financings winch improve earnings
execution stability of our profits inthis area diversity our sources of finance phase and liquidity We have completed over

Failure to manage the refinancing

Responsible requitement may result in 3

matur ty of deht portfolio maintan biquidity marmain
{lexiibity and maintam strong balance sheet metncs
See page b5 for further detaits

E1 balion of financing actvity during
the year including a zero coupon £350
mulbion semior Linsecured convertible

executive shortage of funds to sustamn
Lucinda Bell the operations of the business - We menitor the period untii refinancingis band due 7020 which provides further
diversilication of our sources of
orrepay tacilities as they falt due required which 15 « key determinant of financing
il d larl luate the Likebihood of finance and includes flexible
This and a breach of financial actvily ?1 regﬂ ary eviuate the tikelihood o settlement options Based on current
covenant Umits are considered to covenant breac commitments and our current avallable
be signilicant risks to the continumg = We are commiited to maintaining and enhancing facilities the Group has no requirement
operation of British Land as a relationshsps with out key financing partners ta refinance {or four years
going concern - We are rmndlul of retevant emerging requfation For mare on our financial poticies
which has the potenteal to impact the way that @
see pages 54 to 56
we finance the Group
Income

We must be mindfut of maintaining
sustainable income streams in
order to coninue to generate
returns for our shareholders
execulives and provide the platform from
Lucinda Bell which to grow the business
Charles Maudstey through development and

Tun Roberts capital appreciation

We consider sustamabiliy

of our mneome streams m

- execution of investment
strategy and capital recycling
notably biming of reinvestment
of sale proceeds

- nature and structure
of leasing actvity

- nature and tirning of

asset management and
development actiity

sustainability

Responsible

- We undertake compr ehensive prafit and cash
flow forecasting incorpor ating scenario analysis
to modet the irnpact of proposed iransactions

- Pro-active assel tmanagement approach to
mamtam strong occuprer line-up We moniter
our market tetting exposure including vacancies
upcoming expiries and breaks and tenants m
admumistration as well as our weighted average
lease length

- We have a diversihed occupier base and monitor
concentration of exposure to individual occuplers
or sectors

~We are proactive in addressing key lease breaks
and expiries to rmimimise penods of vacancy

~We actively engage with the communities in
which we operate as detailed i our Local Charter
to ensure we provide buildings that meet the needs
of all retevant stakeholders

The qualdty of our portfolio and
environments enables us te atts act
some af the sirongest occuplers to
our properties this together with our
hugh accupancy levels and long lease
lengths provides security of income
We are mereasing the diversiy of our
occupler mix and no single occupler
accounts for more than 5 7% of
revenues In delivering our tnvestment
strateqgy we are mindful of the impact
an our mncome security

KEY

Change from last year @ Risk exposure has increased @ No signilicant change i risk exposure @ Risk exposure has reduced
Our pnncipal Key Risk Indicators are lughlighted within How we morntor and manage the risk
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Governance and

remuneration

Board of Directors
Beard of Directors - biographies
Charwman s governance review
Qur governance struciure
Governance review
Report of the Audit Committee
Report of the Nomunation Commitiee
Remuneration report
Letter frorn the Chairman of the Remuneration Lommittee
Remuneration Policy
Annual Report on Rernuneration

Directors report and
addiwional disclosures

Directors responsibility staterment

Photo taken by Sonmi Mod:
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Governkre and remuneration

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board develops strategy
and leads British Land to

achieve long term success

Chrs Grgg -

Chief Executive

Appointed in January 2009 ‘5‘

Lord Turnbull

Senior Independent Director

Appointed Non-Executive Director
i Aprit 2006 became Serior
Independent Director in January 2013

Lynn Gladden

Non-Executve Director
Appomted in March 7015

Charles Viaudsles
Head of Retail and Leisure

Appointed in February 2010

Sunon Borrows
Non-Executive Director

Appainted in March 2011
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William Jachson
Nen-Executive Director

Appointed in April 2011



Tim Score
Non-Executive Director

Appointed in March 2014
Luemda Bell
Chief Financal Officer

Appanted in March 2011 became
Cheef Financial Officer in May 20114

Aubres Adams
Non-Executive Director

Appeinied i September 2008

Tim Roherts
Head of Offices and Residential

Appointed (in July 2006

Laura Wade-Gem
Non-Executive Director

Appomnted in May 2015

John Gildersieeve
Non-Executive Chairman

Appointed Non-Executive Director m
September 2008 and Chairman in
January 2013
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Govermanee amnd remuneration

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - BIOGRAPHIES

About the Board

Board composition

9 Board of Directors

Men

B Non-Executive Chairman
& independent Non-Executive Directors
r Executive (irectors

Directors’ core areas of expertise!
Property

Finance

Retail and consumer
Academic

Public sector

! Some Directors are represented in more than one category

Exceutive Directors’ appountments

30% 50%

Appointed internally Appointed externally

Length of Non-Executn e Directors tenures
Under 3 years 8%

Jto byears

Over 6 years

68 British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2015

Non-Eaecutive Chairman

John Gildersleeve

Skills and experience John s deputy chairman and semor independent
director of Spre Heslthcare Group plc and deputy chairman of TatkTalk
Tetecam Group PLC John was the chairman of Carphone Warehouse
Group untl December 2015 and a non-executive director of Pick n Pay SA
untit March 2016 He was formerly chairman of New Look Retail Group
EMI Group and Gallaher Group a non-executive director of Dixans
Carphone plc Lieyds TSB Bank PLC and Vodalene Graup and an
executive director of Tescoplc |8 311 @

Committee membership
- Nomimation {Chairman)

Executive Threctors

Chris Grigg

Chief Executive

Skills and experience Chniswas chief executive of Barclays Commer ciat
Bank until November 2008 having joined the bank in 2805 Priorto
Barclays he wasd par tner of Goldman Sachis where his career spanned
28 years

Externat appointments

- Non-executive director of BAE Systems plc

- Member of the executive board of the European Public
Real Estate Association

- Member of the board of the British Property Federation

Lucinda Bell
Chref Financial Officer

Skills and experience Lucinda i1s a chartered accountant with
aver 20 years of industry experience In 2006 she was a member
of the HM Treasury appointed working party which designed the
tmplementatien of the REIT regime

External appointments
- Non-executive director of Rotork plc
- Member of the Accounting for Sustainabildy CFQ Leadership Network

Charfes Maudslev

Head of Retail and Leisure

Skills and experience Charles joined British Land in 2010 from LaSalte
tnvestment Management He had previously been with AXA Real Cstate
Investment Manage: s for seven years

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential

Skills and experience Before josnung British Land in 1997 Tim was
a partner at Drivers Jonas In the investment Agency team He was
formerly a non-executive director of Songbird £states untid 2009

External appointments
- Trustee of the property industry charity LandAud
and Chair of the Grants Commuitee




Non-Eaecunve Directors

Aubrey Adams

Skills and expenience Aubrey s group chair of L& the housing
asscciation and residential developer He was formerty head of property
within RBS s Restructuning Bivision a non-execulive director of Pinnacle
Regeneration Group Lirmited semer independent director of Assocated
Briish Ports PLC non-executive chairman of Unitech Corparate Parks
PLC non-executive chairman of Air Partaer PLC chied executive of
Savills PLC and non-executive chairman of Max Property Group PLC
Aubrey s chairman of the board of Uy ustees of Wigmor ¢ Hatl

Committee membership
- Audit

Sumon Borrows

Skills and experience Simon 1s the chief executive of 31 Group plcand a
member of the supervisory board of Peer Holdings BV the Dutch holding
company for 31 s investment in Acbion the non-food disceunt retailer

He warked for 28 year s in the banking and finance industry most
recently as chairman of Greenhill & Co fnternational LLP He was atso
chiel executive officer of Baring Brothers International Limited the
corporate finance division of ING Barings and was a non-executive
director of Inchecape ple until May 2015

Committee membership
- Audit

Lyun Gladden

Skills and expertence Lynn is anon-execuive director of IP Group plc
She 1s Professor of Chemical Engineering at the Univer sity of Cambradge
comimissioner of the Royal Commissian for the Exhubition of 1851 and

a iellow of the Royal Society and Royal Academy of Engineering She

was fermerly a member of the Counail of the Engmeering and Physical
Sciences Research Councl and held the posituon of pro-vice-chancellor
tor research at the University of Cambridge untl 31 Decemnber 2015

Committee membership
- Remuneration

William Jackson

Skills and experience Willtam 1s Managing Partner of Brudgepoint one
of Europe s leading private equity groups which he has led since 2002
He &lw0 serves as chairman of the board of Pre? A Manger and president
of Dorna Sports SL the rights holder to the MotoGP wot ld motorcycling
championships He has served on a range of boards during s career
and has extensive aperational and transaction experignce

Committee membership
- Remuneration
~ Nomination

Laura Wade-Gery

Skills and experience Laurasan executive director Multi Channel of
Marks and Spencer Group ptc [M&S] Prorto joiming M&S in July 2011
she had servedn a vaniety of senior rotes at Tesco PLC Laurawasa
non-executive director of Trinety Mirrer ple untit 2012 Laura s a trustee
of the Royal Opera House and Aldeburgh Music

Committee membership
- Remuneration

Tim Score

Skills and experience Timn 15 a non-executive director of Pear son ple
and HM Treasury He was formerly chief financial officer of ARM
Holdings PLC and held senior financiat posttions at Rebus Group Limited
Willam Baird plc LucasYarity plcand BTR plc From 2005 to 2014

he was a nen-executive director of National Express Group PLC

Committee membership
- Audit {Chairman)

Lovd Turnbull

Senror Independent Directar

Skills and experience Andrew eniered the House of Lords in 2005
as a Crossbench Life Peer He retired as Secretary of the Cabinet and
Head of the Home Cl Service in July 2005 Andrew previously held
the positions of Permanent Secielary of HM Treasury and Permanent
Secrelary at the Department of the Environment He was formerly a
non-executive director of Arup Group chaiwrman of BH Global Limited
and & non-executive of Prudentiat PLC from 2006 until May 2015 He
was 8 non-executive direclor of Frontier Ecanarnics Ltd from 2006
until Novernber 2015

Committee membership
- Remuneration [Chairman)
- Nemination

Company Secretary

Elaine Williams

Etame was appointed Company Secretary and Genet al Counselin
November 2015 She was formerly Deputy Group Company Secretary
at HSBC Holdings pte and priortothat a partner at Freshfieids
Bruckhaus Deringer
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Governance and remsunceration

CHAIRMAN S GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Welcome to the Corporate Governance
and Remuneration sections of our

Annual Report

John Gildersleeve
Chairman

Dhirectors” attendance during the vear ended
31 March 2016

John Gildersleeve 8/8
Chrs Grigg g/8
Lord Turnbull 8/8
Aubrey Adarns 8/8
|_ucsnda Bell 8/8
Simon Borrows 8/8
Lynn Gladden 8/8
Witham Jackson 7/8
Chartes Maudsley B/8
Tim Reberts 8/8
I'm Score 7/8
l.aura Wade Gery? 4/6

' Withiam Jackson and Tirn Scere were unable to attend an unscheduled Baarg
meetiny called on short notice and held by telephcne due to pre existing
business cormmitments

* | aura Wade-Gery was appointed on 13 May 2013 Laura Wade-Gerywas
unabte to attend one Board meeling due to a pre-existing business
commiment and one due to illness
812
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Our robust governance structure 1s anintegral part of the way British Land
designs and delivers its strategy supporting effective decision-making
and enabling the right people 1o have access 1o the right information at the
right e As reparted in the Cheef Executive s review we have delivered
another strong sel of results as we progress in implermenting our strategy
of creating Places People Prefer The Board continues to make a valuable
contribution in overseemg the delivery of ows strategy prowviding
constructive ¢challenge to management and ensuring key nsks

are wenuhied and preperly managed

More informalion on our strategy and
progress can be found on pages 181025

British Land has a lughly effective Board as confi med by thisyear s
internally conducted Board evaluation exercise remnforcing the positive
resuits of last year s extei nally facilitated evaluation We have not made
any changes to the Board or Committee membership this yesr other
than the appentmern of Laura Wade-Gery on 13 May 2015 which we
reported on last year We are not proposing any changes to the 8oard
at ihe 2016 Annual Generat Meeting [AGMI

Read our Board bicgraphies on pages 66 1o 69

We value continuity and expersence of Briush Land s busmess and are
detighted to endorse the Nomenation Committee s recommendation
that Lard Turnhull be re-appointed as Senicr Independent Director
Lord Turnbutl will step down as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee foliowing this year s Annual Generat Meeting although he
wilt remain a member of that committee Willam Jackson has agreed
to take on the positien of Chasrman of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Comimittee has recommended that we seek approval
this year of a new Remuneration Policy as our Matching Share Plan
expires this year Amendments to our Long-Terrn Incentive Plan [LTIP}
are proposed to deliver a simpbified ¢ ermuneration structure with ane
long ter m ncentive art angement No other material changes to the
exisling policy arg proposed

@ The Rernuneration Report s set out on
pages 86 to 110



We believe that good governance requires open engagement with
stakeholders and have sought and responded lo feedback about our
governance stiuctures and the way our business s run We have
consulted widety and taken inte account investor views Inrelation to
the proposed changes to our LTIP and hope to receive your continued
support of our Remuneration Policy to enable us 1o offer competiive
remuneration structures to attr act and retain the best pecple 1look
forward to receiving your feedback or this and other matters at and
in advance of our AGM on 19 July 2016

Qe Ar-

Johin Gildersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

Chairman s staterment go to pages 4 to

Compliance with the Code

The Board has continued to apply good governance practices during
the year operating in complrance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code [the Code ) For ease of reference this ts how we demonstrate
our compliance throughout the Governance and remurneraiion section
of the Annual Report and Accounts 2016

@ A Leadership

v’ B Effectveness

" C Accountability

@ D Remuneration

@ E Relations with sharehotders

Eabing Broadway
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Governanee and remuneration

OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Our governance structure ensures
that the right people have access
to the right information

Board

- Develops strategy and leads Brish Land
to achieve tong lerm success

- Determenes nature and extent
of significant risks

- Maintains diatogue with shareholders

Comimuttees of the Board
- Report on their activities to the Board

Management Conmuttees
- Report on their activilses to the Board
and its Committees as appropriate

00 11 N
%,
TN

N ‘.

Audi Commities Nommatign Lommities

- Oversees financial and narratve reporting - Leads process for Board appomntiments
wilemal conirpd, sk management systems and evaluates compostian of the Board
ani aundut processes ard s Committess

Report of the Audit Commaties Report of the Nominaton Committes

sen pages 80 to 83 see pages B4 o 85

Risk Commuittee Executive Committee

- Manages strategic and operational risk in ~ Considers day-to-day operational matters
actueving the Company s performance goals for runnusg the business
Recommends appropriaie risk appetite levels Reviews pertormance of the Group ¢ assets
Manitors the Company s risk exposuire and development programme

- Reviews opet ation of risk management - Generally meets twice rnoanthly
processes - Repaorts to the Beard

- Meets four times a yeal - Chaired by Chief [ xecutive

- Reports to the Audit Cornmmutiee - Membersiup Executive Directors and six
Charred by Chief Financral Géfrcer senor executives

- Metrbership Fxecutive Directors

Operations Committee Health and Safety Committee

= Provides collaborative leadership across - Reviews performance against targets and drives
the Company, operationalises busimness strategy forward actions in pursust of the Company s
champions vision placemaking and values health and salety goals
and leads changein the business - Meets four imes a year

- Meets regularly thiough the year - Reports to the Risk Committee
Mermbershtp serior indwiduats across - Charred by Cheet Financial Officer
business fuactions - Membership siaff with relevant r esponsibiliies

from across the business
- Three subcommittees Construction, Managed
Portfolie and Head Office [staff commulteel
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Chief Executive:and Exécutive Directors

- Day-to-diy marraizosrent of the business
and ol

’ .
~ Qverall cesponsihiliy e s wilh thé Cluof
Exegutive, with speciic arees dalenataed o thy
Execulive Directars [Refet, Financa, Ofhcesy

Matters resenved for Board approval

- Transactions and financing arrangements ovar £100 mition

- Issue of secunies

~ Employee share and option schemes

- Documents for distnbution to shareholders and the Annual Report
and Accounts

- Dwdends

-~ Establishing authanty tevels below those of the Board

Remuneration Committee

- Sets remuneraiton of the Chairman
Chief Execetive Executive Directors
and Company Secrelary

Remuneration report see pages 86 to 110

Investment Cormmittee
Reviews approves or recommends
capital iransactions

- Recommends major transactions
for Board approval
Meets as required
Charred by Chief Executive

- Membership Executive Directors

@ Investment suicking to our stralegy
see paqe 77

Chanty and Community Committee
- Approves all spend under the chanty
and comimunity budget
- Reports to the Executive Committee
- Chaired by a Semor Retail Asset Manager

Suslainability Committee

- Custodian for sustainability strategy

- Reports to the Board

- Chasred by Chief Financial Oicer

- Membership execulives with dehined areas
of responsibility
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Governanee and remuoneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Our robust governance structure is an
integral part of the way we design and

deliver our strategy

The Board has continued to apply good gover nance practices during

the year and considers that the Comnpany has fully complied with the UK
Coiporate Governance Code (the Code) This section of the Annual Report
and Accounts 2016 outlines how we have applied the Code s principtes
and prowisions throughout the year We are repor ting against the Code
which applies to companies with reporting periods beginning on or after

1 October 2014 A copy of the Code is available at www fre org uk

Leader ship

The Board s cor e respensibilities inctude setting British Land s strategic
aims and teading the Company as it works to achieve these aims and
attain long term success The Board focuses on strategy throughout
the year and the annual Strategy Days provide a key opportunity 1o

do this as exptained n the box to the rght Progress against and the
appropriateness of the agreed strategy are conswiered al Boar d
meetings during the year i light of Company pes formance and
changes to the external environment

There 15 a written division of responsibiities between the Chairman
{responsible for running the Board] and the Chief Executive [responsible
for running the Company s business} which has been approved by the
Board (A 2 1)@

The Execulive Disectors led by the Chief Executive are responsible

for ensuring that the business 1s run iy accerdance with the Board s
strategy The1elatively small number of employees at British Land
means that the Executive Directors are mvolved in or aware of alt major
activities of the Group - hence they are extremely well placed to ensure
that actions are aligned with the Board s strategy Thus 1s exemplified by
the process by which investment opportunities are appraised More
infermation on the involvernent of the Executive Directors in the
nvestment process can be found on page 77

The Board sets the parameters and controts vathan which the Company s
management may operate when underiaking the day-to-day running of
the business These contrals ensure that decrsions are taken by people
with the carrect authority to do so

The major decisions reserved for Board approval and other decisions
delegated to the Executive Directors are formally documented (A 111 &
The Executive Derector s rnake decistons wathin these predelmed
parameters Deasions that woutd nor mally fall within these parameters
may stitl be taken ta the full Board for approval wher e such decisions
retate to acuvilies outside the ordinary course of business or where

the Executive Director s conseder it appropniate to do so Management
Committiees deal with their specific areas of respensibdily before making
decistons [where they have author ity to do so) or recommending actions
for Board-tevel approval if this 1s required A key consideration when
making each decision is on whether the proposed achon 1s aligned with
the strategy the Board has develaped
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The Chairman meets with individuat Directors outside formal Board
meetings as part of each Director s continuing contribution to the
delvery of the Company s strategy This process also allows for open
two-way ciscussion about the effectiveness of the Board 1is Committees
and individual Directors both Executive and Non-Executive 8y these
means the Chairman 1s continuatly informed of the views of individual
Oirectors and can act as necessary to deal with any issues relating to
Board effectiveness before they become a risk to the Cormpany

The Strategy Days
The annual Strategy Days held in February are attended by the full
Board and the Executive Commuttee

The Executive Directors semor executives and exiernal guests deliver
a number of presentations to the Board prowiding an in-depth analysis
on all aspecis of the business and the external emvironment The
Stralegy Days are a key opportunity to discuss, chaltenge and develap
the Cornpany s str'é\egy

As well as considering the Group as a whole and the overall corporate
sirategy consideration is given o each part of the Group s current and
prospective portfoiso and to Group financing

The days are carefully structured to achieve a balance between
presentabions and time for debate and discussion

Arcas focused on at the 2014 Strategy Days included
- Corporate Strategy

- Feedback from Investor Perceptron Augit

- Gtiice Strategy

- Retail Strategy

- Canada Water

Cultine and composition of the Board

The composition of the Boardis a fundamental driver of its success as

1t provides strong and effective teadership the breadth of knowledge,
skitis and exper ience of our Non-Executive [Jireciors 1s detailed in their
hiographies on pages 68 and 69 The Nomination Committee 15 t esponsible
for reviewing the composition of the Board and Board-level Commitlees
and assessing whether the balance of skills expertence knowledge and
ndependence 1s appropriate to enable them to operate effectively [B 2 21 €

The procedure for the appaintment of new Directors is rigorous and
transparent Gther than the appointment of Laura Wade-Ger y on 13 May
2015 nochanges to the composition of the Board occurred during the year




Non-Execuiive Directors are appointed for specified terms and all
Drrectors offer themselves for election or re-etection by shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM]} each year i the Beard on the
recommendation of the Normination Commuttee deems it appropriate
that they remain in office (B 71 @

Lord Turnbuit has been a Non-Executive Director since April 2006

He has now compleled ten years in office Whilst taking into account the
need 10 progressively refresh its members through new appoiniments
the Board recognises the importance of contmuity and the value

that Dhrectors who serve for many years aie able to bring Whena
Non-Executive Director s tenure goes further than nine years their
independence ts carefully reviewed and monitored The Nemination
Comimiitee has agan rngorously 1 eviewed Lord Tur nbull s contribution
and independence over the years and recommended to the Board that
1L appropriate for um to remain in office and the Boar d 15 sausfied
that he remains independent (B 2 3} @

We continue to have a strong mix of expenenced indviduats on the Board
with the majority being Non-Executive Directors who are independent
and can offer an exlernal perspective on the business and constructvely
challenge the Executive Diwectors parucularly when developing the
Company s strategy (B 1 1@ (B 1 2] @ The Non-Executive Directors
scrutimse the performance of management in meeting their agreed
yoals and objectives and monitor the reporting of performance They
satisfy thermnselves of the integt ity of financial informabion and that
internal controls and systems of 11sk management are effective

The Board culture 1s one of openness and constructive debate the
Oireclors voice their opinions m a relaxed and respectful enviranment
allowing coherent discussion Fhe Chairman ts responsible far mamtaining
this culture He does so by ensuring mformation of an appropriate guality
15 provided in a imely manner hefore Board meetings the opportunity to
properly consider such information in advance leads to focused discussion
in the boardroom When rumining Boar d imeetings the Chairman mamntains
a coltaborative atrnosphere and ensures that all Director s contribute

le debates The Chairman arranges informal meetings and events
throughout the year {0 help bulld constructive relationships between

the Board members

The high calibre of debate and the participation of all Duectors Executive
and Non-Executive altow the Board to utitise the experience and skills
of the indviduat Directors to ther maximum potential and make
well-considered decrstans that are i the best interest of the Company

The Beard considers that Aubrey Adams Snmon Barrows Lynn Gladden
William Jackson Tim Score Lord Turnbull and Laura Wade-Gery are
independent In making this determnation the Board has considered
whether each Director 1s independent In character and judgement and
whether there are relatlanships or circumstances which are likely 1o
affect or could appear to affect the Director s judgement (B 111@

The Board bebeves that the Non-Executive Directors biographies
demonstrate that they ai e of the stature and experience requiied to
properly perform their roles as independent Nan-Executive Directors
Following this year s Board evaluation the Board believes each Non-
Executive Director standing for re-etechion at the next AGM continues to
effectively fuliit and remains committed to thewr role within British Land
The terms and conditions of appomtment of Non-Executive Directors are
available for mspecuon at the Company s registered office and at the AGM
B3IANE

Effectiveness

Reqular Board and Commitiee meetings are scheduled throughout

the year and the [hrectors ensure that they altocate suificient time to
dischar ge their duties effectively Occasionally Board meetings may be
held at short notice when Board level dectsions of & time-critical nature
need to be made Non-Executive Directors letters of appointment set out
the ime commitments expected and each Director s attendance record
Ishown on page 70] 1s considered when assessing whether they should
stand for reappointment by shareholders

The Chairrman considers that all the Directors continue to devoie
sufficient time to discharging thewr duties to the required high standard
Briush Land s policy 1s to allow Executive Directors io take one non-
executive di ectorship at another FTSE company subject to British Land
Board approval Externat appointments of the Di ector s are disclased in
then biogr aphies and fees eat ned by Executive Ou ector s are disclosed
on page 191 of the Remuner ation Report {D12}@

The Directors are required to notify the Company of any potential
conilicts of mterest that may affect thermn in their roles as Directors of
8ritish Land All potential conflicts of interest are recorded and r eviewed
by the full Board at least annually

The Non-Executwve Directors are kept well nformed of the key
developments in the business by both the £xecutive Directors and othar
senior executives threugh reqular reports and presentations Reports
include a Management Repor t delivered by the Chief Executive at each
Board meeting and updates on the activities of the Risk and Sustainatitity
Commuttees

Throughout the year presentations and repor ts on spectfic aspects of
the business and indmdual assets are also delivered along with updates
on the regulatory and external environrment

Care s taken to ensure that information s ¢ culated in good time

before Board and Committee meetings whenever possible and that
reports are presented clear ly and contain the app: opriate level of detail
to enable the Board to discharge its duties it 1s the Cornpany Secretary s
rale to faciitate effective information flows between the Board and

its Commuttees and between senior management and Non-Executive
Directors The Company Secretary is responstble for advising the

Board on governance matters through the Chairman (B 5 21 ©

The Non-Executive Director s are therefore able to monitor the
management of the busimess and the implementation of the strategic
aums effectively and are able to assess the suitability of the current
strategy and the performance of the Chairman and Executive [kreclors
B51@

Board evaluation

The effectveness of the Board and its Commiutiees 1s reviewed annually
with an independent externally facilitated review being conducted at
leasi once every three years Thelast external review was conducted
n2015B621 &

An internal review of the Board and tts Commitiees was conducted in
2016 by the Company Secretary by way of guestionnaire and cover ed

the following areas [ role orgamsation and a cemposition of the Board
and its Committees [u agenda [l corporate governance () guality

of mformation [v) monitoring Company performance and (v} Board
leadership and culture The review concluded that overall the Board
operated very effectively with a continueus  high standard of performance
throughout theyear (B 4611 &
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Govermmee wnd remaneration

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

During the year the Chairman met each Non-Executive Director
individually to discuss thew contribution to the Board and the Semor
Independent Director met with the other Non-Executive Directors (with
Executive Director s present) 1o discuss the pe: formance of the Chairman
{A 4 2)@(B 6 3]@ The Rernuneration Committee was provided with

an appraisal of the Chief Executive s per formance by the Chairman

and an appraisal of the performance of the Executive Directers by

the Cheef Executive

Board training and davelopment

Briush Land prowides for atl Ds ectors a tailor ed and thorough induction
including the appor tunity to meet with sentor executives Lo be given

an overview of their specific areas of responsibilily within the business
and the opportunity to visit the Company s key proper ties and
developments (B 4 1)@

The Company also offers Directors oppartunities to update and refresh
thewr knowledge on an ongoing basis to enable them to conuinue fulflling
their roles as Board members and Committee members effecuvely

This includes traimsng opportunities and fur ther visits to the Company s
properties asrequired In2015/16 the Board held meetings at the
Company s properties Broadgate Estate and Paddington Central

In addition o the Company s head office Updates on the external
environment and regulatory matters are delivered to the Board

and relevant committees by external speakers including corpor ate
gover nance updates (B 4 21

Kev areas discussed and revienwed by the Board
m 2016

- outcomes of the Board Strategy Days and approval of strategy

- approval of nsk appetite

- prnincipal nisks {aced by the Company,

- reports of the actmittes of the Audit fincluding riskl Remuneration
and Normination Cormmattees

- Chief Executive s Management Reports quarterly updates on
the busmess and external enwronment

- updates on the portfolio mctuding developments acquistions
and disposals

- updates on financing

- resutlts of the Board performance evaluation

- reappoirtment of Directors al the AGM

- conflicts of interes!

- approvel of year end results the Annual Report and Accounts
the AGM Circular and dividends

- people development and succession planring

~ health & safety

- sustamability

- nwvestor relations repoerts

~ Remuneration policy

- cybersecunity and

- information technology
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Accountabhlit

The Board is respansible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts
and as confirmedia the Directors responsibility statement the Board
believes that this Annual Report and Accounts taken as a whole 1s fan
halanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
to assess Briish Land s posiion performance business model and
strategy {C 1 11 % The basis on which the Company creates and
preserves value over the long term 1s desci ibed in the strategic
report(C121 %

The Directors Responsibility Statement 1s set out an page 113

Strategic report see pages 1 10 43

The Annual Report and Accounts is compiled by the relevant responsible
individuals across the Company Specific sections are reviewed by
Department Heads and Executive Committee members as app: opriate
ensuring that atl key stakehaolders across the business are invelved

The Executive Girector s are closely invotved in drafting and reviewing
theu relevant sections of the Report before formally signing them off
Finance investor Relations and Company Secretarial conducl a 1 obust
due diligente process verifying key statemenis made within the Annual
Report and Accounts The full Annual Repo: t and Accounts isthen

i eviewed thoroughly by the Audst Committee beforeitis presented

to the Board for approval

The procedure under taken 1o enable the Board to provide the far
balanced and understandable confirmation 1o shareholders has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee The processis enhanced by a specific
meeting between the Chief Financiat Officer Head of Strategy and
Investor Refations and the Group Financial Controller and their relevant
tedm rmembers o review and document the key consider ations

undet taken to ensure that information presented 1s fawr balanced and
understandable Areport detailing those considerations was reviewed
by the Audit Committee alengside a summan y of the detalled procedures
undertaken and the full Annual Report and Accounis

Risk management and internal control
The Board determines the nature and extent of the significam risks
1tes willing to take in ackweving the Company s steategic objectives

The maintenance of the Company s r1sk management and internal
control systems 1s the responsibility of the Board Oversight of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal conti ol system

has been delegated to the Audit Commutlee A top-down risk review

1s combined with a complementary boattom-up approach to ensut e that
risks are fully considered Aswell as complying with the Code the best
praclice recommendations in Guidance for Risk Management internal
Control and Related Financiat and Business Reporting have been
adopted and the Company s internat contr ol framework has been
assessed agamst the internatronally recogrused COS0 Internal Control
Integrated Framework 1he tatter assessment showed that all key
control elementsare in place Appropriate internal cantrol and nisk
management pracesses apply to all entiies which British Land
adrministers inctuding all material joint ventures and funds {C 2 3) ¥

British Land s approach to risk including the roles of the Board the
Audrt Committee and the Risk Commuttee in setting risk appetite and
monitoring risk exposui e 1sdescribed in the Managing risk in delivering
our stiategy section of the report on pages 571063 (L 211%™

Formal and transparent arrangements exist for considering how
corporate reporting risk management and mnternat control principles
are applied and for mantaining an appropreate relationship with the
Company s auditor




Imvestiment- stickmg to our siategy

Executive Directors are mvoived throughout the investment process
and alignment with the Board s strategy i1s considered from the
initiat discussion of a transaction, night through to final approval

Al new investment opportunities are discussed at weekly
deal sourcing meetings atiended by investment exaecutives
Potentially attr active deais that are in line with strategy
are selected {o be investigated and analysed in detait by
project ieams

2 Project teams assess whether investment opportunities
shoutd be pursued conducting detasled property and
corporate due diligence ongoing draloque with the :elevant
Executive Commutiee members takes place throughout
the process

3 Investment opportumities with potential are presented for
Investment Commuittee approval Depending on the size
and nature of a fransacuon the Investment Committee
can approve the proposed transaction outright o
recornmend it for approval by the full Board

@ Investment oppartunities are presented to the fult Board
tor approval when required

The Group s internal contrel system is buitt an the following fundamental

principles and 15 subject to review by Internal Audit

- Adehned schedule of matters reserved for approval by the full Board

- A detatted authorisation process no material comimitrnents are entered
into witheut thereugh review and approval by maore than one
authorised person

- Formal documentation of al{ significant transactions

- A rchust system of business and finanaial planning includes cash flow
and profitabilsty forecasting and scenano analysis performed on major
corporate property and finan¢mg proposals

- Arrobust process for property invesiment appraisals

- Maritoring of key outcomes particularly expenditure and performance
of significant investments against budget and forecast

- Cleatly defined policies and review of actual performance against poalicies

- Benchmarking of property performance against external sources such
as investment Property Databank

- Key controls testing

- A comprehensive property and cor porate insurance programine and

- A formal whistle-blowing policy

The Audit Cammuttee reviews the effectiveness of the Group s system

of internal control over inanoal reporung annually including the
systems of control for material joint ventures and funds During the
course of Its review of the risk management and internal control systems
aver financiat reporting the Audit Committee has notidentified nor

been advised of a failing or weakness which it has dztermined to be
significant (€ 23] 2

A number of policies are in place to ensure that the Campany not only
meets s legal obligattons but also behaves ethically actswith integrity
and protects its assets from the unlawful activities of athers These
inctude an Antt-Bribery and Corruption Policy a Competitton Policy

and a Fraud Awareness Policy All employees are made aware of the
policies and procedures in place with understanding enhanced by staff
communications and tidining

Viability and going concern
To read our viability statement see page 58 [C 2 212

The Group has cons:det able undrawn debt facilities and cash deposits
in excess of current drawn banking facilsttes There 1s subslanbial
headroom againsi the covenants for its unsecured banking facil:bies

it also benefits from a diver se and secure income stream from leases
with long average lease terms

Having assessed the principai risks and other matters discussed in
connection with the viability statement the Directors betizve that the
Group 1s wetl placed to manage its financing and other business risks
satisfactordy and have a reasonable expectation that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to continue 1n operation for at least
12 months frem the date of the Aanual Report They ther efore censider it
appropriate to adopt the geing concer n basis of accounting

i preparing the inancial statements [C 1 3] &

Taxation

Qur prinaiples of good governance extend to our responsibie approach

to tax It remains impertant to our stakeholdet s that the Company s
approach to tax s aligned to the long term values and strategy of the
Group The Group s tax strategy 1s the respansibility of the Chief Financiat
Ofhcer with clese involvement of Executive Directors and senior
management in all activity The Audit Comemnittee 1s presented with

an annual tax update

Employees

Having expert peaple at British Land 1s one of the four core elements
of our husiness model This applies both to the individuals on the Board
who have respons:bility for leading the Company and to the employees
whowork threughout British Land

We encour age a high degree of employee involvement in the Company
and provide regutar information on business actvities and explanations
of strategy through Company meetings training sessions internal
communications and an annual Company conference Ermployee
feedback 1s also strongly encouraged

The Opet ations Commuttee [OpCol which s comprised of semior
individuals across British L and s business functions assists the
Executive Committee with operatonal matters arising in the day-to-day
management of the business The OpCo forms a link between the
Executive Committee and wider tearns of employees enhanuing the flow
of infarmaticn around the Company both upwards and downwards to
improve the strategic and tactical decisions that are made The aim of
the CpCe is to strengthen collaboration across the Company in driving
inrbiatives that help us achieve our objectives The OpCo aiso plays an
increasingly important role ¢ the development of the operstional
leadership areas of our business such as technology

Briush Land continues to implement a number of inittatives to help
develop our employees and grow internal tatent reinforcing the
Company cuiture of excellence and embedding values and behaviours
As a relatively small company i terms of number of employees we are
proud to be ahte o invesl n our peaple on an indwvidual basis taking
time to understand specific requirements Lo progress careers

We have well-estabbished all-employee share schemes to incestivise
employees at allievels i the Company and align their interests with
those of shareholders by building a holding of British Land shares
Separate pension fund reparts are made avallabte to members
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Governanee and remuner:ation

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Staff turnover
2016 2015 2004
Head office 44 [19%) 31 [12%) 32 115%)
Broadgate Estates 53{15%) 78 1% 42 120%)
Total (average) 98 [17%] 59 (12%) 74 [17%)

The benefit of diversity both on the Board and throughout the Company
cantinues to be a key consideration when searching for candidates for
Board and other appamtments Inaddition the Company continues to
support the Pathways to Property programme which aims to increase
diversity within the property mdustry as a whole by attracting students
from a variety of backgrounds into the property sector

Fundng to charnity and good causes

Our Local Charter sets out how we build trust by suppor ting successfut
local communities and develop skills and opportunities to help local
people and busmesses grow Our Chantable and Commurniiy Funding
Guidelines set out how we allocate funding with a parficuiar focus on
imtatives close to our assets that have a positive impact on young people
education employment and training Both docurnents can be found on
our website at www britishland com/policies

The Chanty and Commumity Committea which approves all spend under

the Charity and Community Budget 15 chared by a Semor Retail Asset
Manager and reports to the Executive Comrmittee on an annuat basis

Danations during the year totatted £1 371 D44 compared with £1 287 500
in the previous year British Land does not make any donations (o
political orgarusations

Health and Safety

We have retained formal recogrition of our focus on health and safety
through a successful audit of our OHSAS 18001 accreditation We
continue toimprove our approach to health and safety management to
ensure that we consistently achieve hest practice across all activities in
the business [construction managed portfolio and head office] te delver
Places Peaple Prefer to cur empioyees and cur cuslomers

RIDDOR* Year ended 31 March

Totat RIDBOR
Accidents Acodent Frequency Rate
2016 2015 2016 2015

Constriction 3 8 014 019 per 100000
hours worked
Retast 23 19 001 0 per 150000
foottall
Offices [ 2 18 85 750 per 1000G00
workers
Head Office 0 0 0 0 per 100800
full time

equivalents

“Reporting of injuries Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013
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Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee has recommended that we seek approval
this year of a new Remuneration Policy as owr Matching Share Plan
expires this year We are notintending to renew the Matching Shar e Plan
Amendments to our Lang-Term Incentive Plan are proposed to deliver

a simplified remuneration structure with one {ong term incentive
arrangement The new Remuneralion Policy ss set out on pages 92 to 98

Relanons with shareholders

The Board remains committed to mamtaining open channels

of commurtcation with shareholders Itis impor tant 1o us that
shareholders understand the Company s strateqgy and abjeclives
these must be explained cleai ly and shareholder s feedback must
be heard and the issues and questions 1aised proget ly considered

Briush Land hasa dedicated Invester Relations team which reports to
the Chief Financial Officer Communication with investors and analysts
15 &n ongong process throughouwt the year This includes regular
scheduled Investor Relations events summarised in the box on the page
oppeosite, one-to-one and group meetings with Executive Directors and
tours of our properties aswell as regular centact with the [nvestor
Relations team Duning the year the Chief Executive Chief Finanuial
Officer and our Investor Relations team met with representatives from
over 180 institutions We periedically cornmission an independent
investor perception study which 1s presented to the Board

The tull Board plans to attend the AGM which provides an opportunity
for all sharehelders to guestion the Directors in person

Signiticant emphasis 1s placed on the importance of feeding shareholder
views hoth positive and negative back to the Board Awnitten investor
relations repoert which includes direct market feedhack on actvity during
the period s presented 1o the Executive and Non-Executive Directors

at each scheduled Board meeting for discussion Sharehotder apinions
are also given due consideration throughout the annual Strategy Days

[EHI@EI 2@



Kev imestor relations activities during the year included

May 2015 - Fuli-year results presentation
- Fuli-year roadshow London

June 2015 - Investor property conferences London
and Netherlands
- Investor roadshow Edinburgh

luly 2015 - Q1 sterim management staternent and call
- AGM
- Retail capital markets day Londan

Septembear 2015 - lnwvestor roadshow US
- Prvate Chent roadshow London
- Investor property conference London
- investor property tour The Leadenball Buitding

November 2015 - Hall-year results presentatign
- Half-year resulis roadshow Londan
- Investar property conference London

December 2015 - Investor property cenference London

- Analyst and investor tour Broadgate
January 2018 - Investor property conference London

- Trading statement mvestor video and call
February 2014 - livestor roadshow MNetherlands
March 2014 - Investor conference LS

- Private Client roadshow London

Briish Land aims to be informatrve and accessible to all sharehotders
For results and other key ennouncements we provide infor mation an
a umely basis to both retail and instituticnal shareholders A number
of case studies covering topres that range from profiles of our key
assets to sustainabibty activities are also available 1o view online
Sharehotders can ask questions at any ime via our contacts page on
the corporate website

Contact Britrsh Land
www britishland com/contacts

We are pleased with the tevel of engagement with shareholders achieved
during the year and the Board also recognises the important contribution
of providers of capital other than shareholders namely our tenders and
bond holders We maintain a reqular and open dialogue with our lenders
to help us understand their investment appetite and criteria

Lord Turnbult Semior indapendent Director 15 avallable to address

any concerns shareholders maywish to raise other than via the usual
channels of the Chairman Chief Execuiive or other Executive Directors
A4
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Governanee and remuneration

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We are committed to monitoring
the Group's control environment
and _financial reporting processes

-

Tim Score
Chairman of the Audit Coemmittee

Audit Committee members” attendance during
the year ended 31 Mareh 20161

Tin Score 5/5
Aubrey Adams 5/5
Simon Borrows 5/5

During 2014 senior exaculives were invited to attend and/or present at
meelings of the Committee including the Cheef Financial Officer the Head of
Strategy and Investor Relations the Financial Controtler the Head of Tax the
Head of Financial Reporting and the Head of Financial Planning and Analysis
and Risk Comrmittee Secretary

a121©

Terms of Reference

The Cormmittee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Company s
website at www britishland com/commuttees
{C32A9%Cc339&
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Welconze to the report of the Audit Committee

The key areas of focus for the Comimittee this year have been reviewing
and advising the Board on the vizbility staterment included in the Annual
Report and Accounts scrutinising the process for valuation of
investment and devetopment properties by the G:oup s exter nai valuers
and overseeing the Internal Audit tender

Composition
The Committee comprises Aubrey Adams Simon Borrows and myself
as Commuttee Chairman [C 31} &

Each of the Commitlee members s considered to be appropriately
qualihed and experienced to fulfil their role For the pui poses of the
Code |am the member of the Committee nominated as having
significant recentand relevant financial experence

Activities

During the year the Commitiee has undertaken each of s principal
responsibiliies receving relevant reports from the external valuers
the internal and external auditors the Risk Commuttee and management
and challenging the vatidity of accounting assumptions and judgements
The table on page 81 details the principal responsibilities of the
Commuttee and key areas af focus throughout the year

The Comimitiee perfor ms a detailled review of the content and tone of

the annuat and hatf-year ly press releases and the Annual Repartand
Accounis aswellas trading updates The Committee has satsfied itself
that controls over the accuracy and censistency of information pr esented
in the Annual Report and Accounts are rebust and has confirmed to the
Board that 1t believes this Annual Report and Accounts is fair balanced
and understandable {C 3 4)% An assurance opinian is obtamned for

the Company from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP [PwCl over selected
sustainability data and a verification exercise is performed by manegement
1o ensure consistency end accuracy of infor mation presented

In additton to regutar committee meetings additional ime 15 spent by
members of the Audit Committee meeling wilth executive management
to understand keyissues The Commutiee regularly meets with PwC
and internal Auditwithout management present and the Commiitee
Chairman meets prvately with the exter nal valuers




Principal responsthihties Kev areas discussed and reviewed by the

of the Conmmttee Committee durng 2016

Reporting - Monitering the integi ity of the Company s financial siatemnents - Results commentary and announcements

and External and all format announcements relating to the Company s - Keyarcounting judgements including valuations

Audit financial performance reviewing significant financial reporting ch \
issues Judgernents and estimates inctuding the conststency - Lhanges to accounting policies ‘
quality and appropriateness of accounting policies and the quality - Going concern and the viability statement
and completeness of disctosures - Fair batanced and understandable assessment in relalion |

- Making recornmendations 1 the Board regarding the to the annuat report (C 3 4) & 1

treappointment of the external auditor and approving the externat - External audhtor effectivensss |

auditor s remuneration and terms of engagement {C 3 7} - External auditor reports on plannmg the hali-yearly review

- Monnoring and reviewing the external auditor s independence and the full year audit, nclucding the final opinion

objectivity and elfectiveness - The external auditor s remuneration i
- Reviewing the content of the Annuat Report and Accounts }
I

to ensure 1t s fair batanced and understandable

- Developing and implernenting policy on the engagement
of the external audilor (o supply non-audit services taking
Into account relevant guidance

Valuations - Monitoring and reviewing the valualion process - Effectiveness of the external valuer s
- Reviewing assumptions and methodology - The quality of the vaiuation process and judgements at haif yeat
- Monttaring the externsl vatuers competence and year end
and effectiveness - Valuer presentatiens to the Comrmittee
Risk and - Overseeing the inter nal contro{ environment and risk - Risk register including identihication of the Group s principal
internal management systerns on behall of the Board risks and movement in expasures
control - Monitaring the Company s risk exposure and recormmending - Status of key nsk mdicator s ineluding any breaches of
the Company s risk appetite to the Board for approval thresholds
- Overseeing the assessment of the principal risks and - Activities of the Risk Committee including review of its minutes
mitigating actions - Effectiveness of mternal control systems
- Reviewing the resk management disclosures on the Group s - Responses to audi indings and recommendations for controt
approach to risk inthe half-yearly and annuat reports tmprovements including reviewing the External Audit
- Reviewing the whistle-hlowing policy and its smplementation managernent tetter
(C35% - Anannual fiaud risk assessment
- Cybersecurity .
- The tnsurance programme for property development and i
corporate risks
internal Audit - Approval of arrangements for the provision of internal audit - Annual:nternal auds plan including consideration of its |
services and any termination of such arrangerments alignment to tha prncipal nisks cons:deration of emierging
- Monitoring and reviewsng the effectiveness of the Company s areas of risk coverage across the Group and ts joint ventures
Internat Aadil funcion including its plans levet of resources and review of the Group s processes and controts
and budget - KPMG s execution of the internal audit ptan and reviewing
- Reviewing internal audit repaits recommendations and progress the resultant audst reports and findings
i implementation of those recommendations - tnternal Audit effectiveness
- Coordination between Internal Audit and External Audnt - Internal Auditseports payroll tax compliance 1T
The Leadenhall Building and Broadgate joint ventures
procuremnent {phose 2) Broadgate Estates leasing process
anie-bribery and corruption key financial controls treasury
- Annual internal cantrols overview
- Internat Audit charter defining its role and responsibilities
- Internal Audit tender process
Other - Reviewing the Audit Commitiee s effectiveness and its Terms - The Commitiee s Terms of Reference
of Reference - Etfectiveness of the Commuttee
~ Considening compliance with legal requirernents accounting - Maintenance of the Graup s REIT status

standards and the Listing Rules - Annual 1ax update

- Review of PwC s Sustamability Assurance Repor
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REPORT GF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Sigmficant 1ssuzes m relatdon to hmaneaal statements
The Committee pays pat icular attention to matters it consider s to

be important by virtue of their size complexity level of judgement
requir ed and potentiat impact on the financial statements and wider
business model Identification of the 1ssues deemed to be significant
takes place fotlowing open frank and challenging discussion between
thre Comrmitiee members with input from the Chief Financial Officer
PwC and internal Audit and other relevant British Land employees

A particular area of focus for the Committee has been the viability
statement which 1s mcluded within the strategic report tor the first

time this year on page 58 The Commitiee has discussed the form

and content of the statement and the analysis carned out te support it
with management and PwC throughout the year The Commnuitee has
confirmed to the Board that It believes the viabshity statement adeguately
considers the Group s prinupal risks covers an approprate period s
supported by the assessment prepared by management and includes
disclosure of all retevant matenal assumptions made

The significant issues consider ed by the Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2016 are detailed below alangside the actions taken
by the Commuttee to address these 1ssues IC3 81 &%

Significant 1ssues m 1elation to financial statements
considered by the Comnuttee during the vear

Internal Audit

The Company s Internal Audit function during the year was outsour ced
to KPMG who reported regularly to the Commuttee The Commuittee
monitored the performance of internal Audit throughout the year as
well as performing an annual  eview of its effectiveness The Commuttee
believes KPMG dischar ged its duties effecuvely [C 3 6) &

KPMG has performed the Inter nal Audit function since 1t was outsourced
1n 2012 Itwas deaided that the internal Audit funclion shoutd be put out
to tender in March 2016 to facilitate evaluation of differ ent internat audit
approaches Fellowing a competiiive process Ernst & Young LLP [EY]
was appointed EYwilt report regularly te the Committee and itis
envisaged that its perfor mance wiit be momntored in a sirmlar way

Policy on Pw( providing non-audit services (C3 8) 2
Wilth respect to non-audit ser vices provided by PwC the following
framework was in ptace duning the year

- Audit related services audit related senvaces include formal reporfing
relating to borrowings shareholder and ether arculars and various work
in respect of acquisitions and disposals Where the external auditor must
carry out the wark because of their office the external auditor 15 selected
In other circumstances the selection depends on which firm 1s best suited

How these 1ssues were addressed by the Commnnttee

Valuation of The valuation of investment and development
mvestment and properties which is ronducted by external
development valuers, is inhierently subjective as it is made
properties on the basis of assumptions made by the

valuers which may not ptove to be accurate
The outcorne of the valuation 1s significant

te the Group 1n terms of iInvestment decisions
resuits and remunet ation

The external valuers presented thewr repor!s to the Committee and were
asked to highlight any significant judgements or disagreements with
management Valuation certificates and outcernes were reviewed and
assumpliens challenged with particularly r1goreus serutiny this yesr
given the lower volumes of evidence sething transactions compared

{o recent periods

Risk 1s encounlered through property and
financing transactions as large and non-standard
accounting entries can be required

Accounting for
transactions

The Comimittee reviewed management papers on key judgements
ncluding those for significant transactions as well as the externat
audior s report presented following the conclusion of the audit

The approprateness of preparing the Group

Going concern
financial statements on a going conrern hasis

statement

The Committee reviewed manapernent s analysis supporting the going
concern basis of preparation This included consideration of forecast

cash llows availability of committed debt lacilities and expected rovenant
headroom PwC reported to the Committee the results of testing performed
on rmanagement s analysis

Whether the statement appropriately reflects the
prospects of the Group and covers an apptopriate
period of ime

Viabtlity statement

The Committee considet ed whether the assessment performed by

management adequately reflects the Group s principal risks as disclosed on

pages 59 to 63 whether the period cavered by the statement 1s reasonable in

tight of the mndustrythe Group operates in and 1s a fair reflechion of the

forecast peried typically conswdered by rnanagement and whether the

assumptions made and sensilvities identified represent severe but plausible

scenatos it the context of solvency or iquidity |

Maintenance of the Group s REIT status through
compliance with certain conditions has a
significant impact on the Group s results

REIT status

The Committee reviews compliance with the REIT tests annually

Management presented the methodotogy and results of the REIT tests '
hughlighting any change in tong ter m trends and the cui rent level of

headroem

Judgements affecting  For certain transactions judgement s applied

revenue recognition by management as to whether and to what
extent they shouid be treated as revenue for
the financial year

The Commuttee and PwC considered the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment applied by management in relatien to revenue recognition The
Committee and PwC also considered the scope of the accounting standard
and the reasonableness of the Judgement made
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~ Sustainability asstrance the selection depenrds on which firm s best
suited and 3 reviewed an a five yearly basts Cutrently the external
audnor provides an assurance opinion over selecled sustainabibity data

- Tax advisory the selection depends on which firm is best suited in the
crcumstances

- General consulting the external suditor 15 not selected to provide generat
consultancy services except in certam bmited crcumstances and then
only after consideration that they are best placed to provide the serwice
and that their independence and objectivity will not be compromised

The fotlowing cormmitment protocol opet ated throughout the year and
applied to any engagement lor corducting other work lexcluding audit
and half-yeariy reporting) performed by PwC
~ The total non-audit fees are imited to 70% of the audit fees in any
one year The audit and nen-audit fees for the three-year average
are calculated in hine with the methodology set outin the 2014
EU Regulations and include fees for jomt ventures and funds
~ Audit Cormmittee approval 1s required where there were any doubts
as 1o whether the external auditor had a conflict of interest, and
- Approvat by the Audit Committee Chairman s required for each
additional project over £0 1m 10 vaive where the cumulative fees for
nen-audit work are projected to exceed 50% of the audit fee 1n any
finencial year During the year no project approvals by the Audit
Commuttee Chairman were reguired

Effectiveness of the External Audit process

The Commuttee places great impcertance on ensuring a high quality
effective Externat Audit process Following best practice and in
accordance with s Terms of Reference the Committee annually reviews
the audit requirements of the Group for the business and in the context of
the external environment The Commuttee also conducts an annual review
of the performance of the external auditor and considers its independence
compliance with relevant statutory regulatory and ethical standards and
objectivity [C 38) %

Follewing its appaintmentn 2014 PwC successfully completed its first
audit lastyear The Committee reviewed PwC s performance this year and
was centent with the quality of the audit if had delivered The Committee
reviewed PwC s proposals for the audit and 1s confident that approprale
planswere put1n place to carry out an effective and high quality audit
No signtficant 1ssues wer e raised during the course of the audit Pw
confirmed to the Comymittee that It maintained apprapriate internal
safeguards to ensure its idependence and objectivity The Commuttee
considered and approved PwC s assessment of its iIndependence and
has recommended Its reappointment to the Board approval of which
will be sought from shareholders at the 2016 AGM

The Commuttee has agreed to consider the need for a competitive tender
for the role of external auditor every five year s with a competiive tender
taking place at least every tenyears To the extent that the auditor did
not rotate earlier through this precess the Cempany will rotate audit
paitner asreqused by legislation There are no contractual obligations
which would restrict the selection of a different auditor

The Company has complied with the relevant parts of the Competiion
and Markets Authority Final Order an the statutory audit market for the
year ended 31 March 2016

Yaluations

The external valuation of Bsiush Land s portiolio s a key deter minant

of the Group s batance sheet performance and sentor management s
remuneration |n accordance with its Terms of Reference the Committee
adopts a rigorous approach to menitoring and reviewing the valuation
process and the effectiveness of the Group sveluers Kmght Frank and
CBRE The Committee reviews the effecuveness of the external valuers
biannually focusing on a quatitative analysis of capital values yield
benchmarking availatility of comparabie mar ket evidence and major
outliers to subsector movements

The valuers present directly to the Commuttee at the half-yearly

and annual reviews of results including providing confirmation of the
valuation process market condibions and sigmficant jJudgements made
PwC reviews the valuations and valuation process having full access
to the veluers to determme that due process has been followed and
appropriate information used [t repor ts its findings to the Committee
The valuation process is also subject to regular 1 eview by Internal Audit
the most recent being undertaken in 2013 with another one planned for
later this calendar year In addition | as the Comeittee Chairman meet
privately with the valuers

For the valuation of the Group s whatly-owned assets, the Company

has fixed fee arrangements with Knight Frank and CBRE 1n line with
the recommendations of the Carsberg Committee Report Copies of
the valuation certificates of Knight Frank and CBRE can be found on

the carporate websie al www britishland com/reports

Idenofication and ey aluaton of commerecial nsks and
related control objectives

The Audit Commuttee 1s responsible for overseemng the effecuveness

of sound risk management and internal control systems It futfds this
raole by overseemng the activities of and receving reports from the Risk
Committee and monitoring the risk management processes in place and
the activities of the Internal Auditfunction including its 1eparting on the
effectiveness of controls The Risk Committee minutes are circulated to
the Committee for review with any significant matters hightighted for
discusston Twice yearly the principat risks which are derived from an
assessment of the risk register are presented to the Commiitee along
with commentary on changes in the exposure to these risks in the period
Annually a report on the effectiveness of internal controls and the risk
management system s prepared by Internal Audit for presentation te the
Committee Internal Audit and the Risk Commutiee work closely together
to ensure that identified nsk areas are incorporated in the Internat Audit
programme and sumularly findings of Inter nal Audit reviews are taken
o account midentifying and evaluating risks within the business
British Land maintains a framewaork of controls related to key financial
processes and management of the associated risks The effectiveness
of such controls 1s reviewed annually either by Internal Audit or as part
of the year-end external audit

{ thon

Tim Score
Chatrman of the Audit Committee
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Governanee snd remuneration

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Conunittee
leads the process for
Board appointments

John Gilderslecve
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee members’ attendance durning
the vear ended 31 March 2016

John Gildersleeve 2/2
Willlam Jackson 2/2
Lord Turnbull 2/2
A12)@

Composition of the Board

W Non-Executive Chairinan
Independent Non-Executive [hrectors
... Executve Directors

Directors’ core areas of eaxpertise?

Property

Retait and consumer er. kg !

_—— el
Academic
Public sector

Some Directors are represented in more than one category
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The Board and 1ts Commmnttees

Throughout the year the membership of each Commuttee has comprrsed
independent Non Executive Directors to the extent required by the Code
|B 2 11 &2 We value continuity and experience of British Land s business
and were delighted to recommend that i_ord Turnbull be re-appointed
as Senior Independent Director Lord Turnbullwill however step down
as Chanmman of the Remuneration Commuttee foilowing this year s AGM
atthough he witl remain a member of that Commuttee Willam Jacksen
has agreed to take on the position of Chair man of the Remuneration
Committee [B24@

Asreported lastyear following a nigorous setection process Laura
Wade-Gery was appointed as a Non-Executive Birector of British Land
on 13 May 2015 Laura s bisgraphy demonstrates her huge retait and
consumer experience No further changes to the Board occurred during
the year

Composition of the Board

The Committee considers that the Board consists of individuals with
the right balance of skills experience and knowledge to provide strong
and effective leadership of the Company The majonity of the Board

are independent Non-Executive Directors and the Board s collective
experience covers a range of relevant sectors as illusirated in the left
hand column Aswell as & breadth of property and finarcial experience
many Board members have per sonal experience of wor king in the retail
and corporate environments that are typical of many of our occupiers

Altof British Land s Directors will retire and subimit themselves for
re-election by shareholders at the 2016 Annual Generat Meeting

The Cormmittee believes that all the Directors continue to demonstrate
commutment to then roles as Beard and Committee members continue
to discharge their duties effectively and that each makes a vatuable
contrtbution to the leadershep of the Company

Daversity

Brinsh Land pays full regard to the benefits of diversity including gender
diversity both when the Nomination Cornmittee is searching for
candidates for Board appomntments and when the Campany 1s searching
tor candidates for other appaintments

The Board agreeswith the conclusions of the Wemen on Boards repor t
by Loird Dawies of Abersoch that greater etforts should be made n
improving the gender balance of corporate beards and that quotas

for female board representation are not the preferred approach The
Company currently has three femaie Directors Lynn Gladden and Laura
Wade-Gery who were appointed as Non-Executive Girectors in 2015
and Lucinda Bell who was appainted Chief Financial Officer in May 2011
This currently represenis 25% female Board membership




Principal responsibihities of the Committee

Key arcas discussed and reviewed
by the Commiittee in 2016

Regular review of the structure size and composttion of the Board

Rewiew of the structure size camposition of the Board slongwith
the skills knowledge and experience of its members to ensure that
Dhrector s remain able to discharge then duties and responsibidities
effectively and to the requir ed high standar d

Recommendations to the Board with regard to Board changes
and Commiitee membership changes

Selection and appointment of Laura Wade Gery as a Non-Executive
Director Appeintrment of Willam Jackson as Chairman of the
Remuneration Commitiee

Succession planning for Directors and other sentar executives

Succession planning inctuding idenbification of potenual internat
cand:dates for senior vacancies which may arise on a cnsis short
medium or leng term basis

Reviewing time commitments required from Non-Executive Directars

Time commmitments reguired from Non-Executive Directors were
reviewed as part of the year end process

Recemmendations for re-etection of Non-Executive Director s

Recommendations to the Board regarding Directors standing
{or re-electron by shajeholders at the AGM

Termw of Reference

The Commuttee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Company s website at www britishland com/committees (B 211@

The premation of women 1o the Board and other senior positions
within the Company is dependent on the recruitment developrent
and retention of women in the workforce bath within the Comipany

and more widety throughout the business and professional communily

As of 31 March 2016 Briush Land s employees including Broadgate
Estates] comprised 283 fernales and 306 males (2015 218 and 247
respechively), of the emptoyees considered to be executives 141 were
temale and 257 were male {2015 115 and 205 respectivelyl Sensor
execulives compnising the Executrve Committee ond Operations
Commuttes consisted of 11 fernales and 26 males {2015 8and 17
respectively] To encourage and hetp mothers return to work we offer
enhanced matermity leave payments and support flexible wor king
patterns currently 27 of our female employees take advantage of this
faciliy 2015 31} We also offer enhanced pater ity leave payments and
support flexible warking patterns for all parents and other employees
whose personal arcumstances may make this beneficial Currently 13
menwaork flexibly and 5 men took advantage of enhanced paternity leave
(2015 9 and 14 respectively] Training and menioring programmes are
provided to ensure thal all our employees achieve their potential taking
account of their diverse devetopmeni needs It 1s pleasing that our Chief
Financial Officer Luainda Bell was an internal appointment reflecting
the development of our own people

The Nomination Committee seeks to increase the percentage of female
Board members as quickly as we are able The speed atwhichwe can
achieve this will be subject to the availability of suitable candidaies

and compliance with the requirements of the Equality Act the Board

has a fundamental abligation te ensure that appotntinents are of the
candidates best able to promote the success of the Company and we

do not consider that i would be to the long term benefit of the Company
if appeintments were made on any other basts Subject to these
requirements we have an ongoing commitment to further strengthening
female representatton at Board and top ranagement level

Our people sirategy focuses on creating a team who can deliver

Ptaces People Preter Getting closer to our customers i1s one of our key
strategic prioriies and having a workior re which reflects the diversity

of our customers helps us achieve this The policy throughout Briish L_and
15 10 emptoy the best candidates available (n every posstion tegardless of
sex race ethnicorigin natienality colour age retigion or philosophical
belief sexual orientatron marriage or civit partnership pregnancy
matermity gender reassignment or disability Applications for employment
by disabled persons are always lully considered bearing in mind the
aptitudes of the applicants concerned In the event of members of staff
becorming disabled every effortis made to ensure that their employment
conhinues and that appropriate training 1s arranged The policy provides
that the traiming career development and promotion of disabled people
should as far as possible be identucat to that of other employees

We achieved a key nulestone on our jour ney towards creating a truly
inclusive environment with cur formation of BL Pride our lestnan gay
hisexual transgender [LGBTHand allies network and our Women s
networ k thes year Both networks have been active in the year and we are
pleased that ouwr Chief Executive, Chins Grigg was ranked 1ith i the 2015
Leading 30 LGBT Ally Executives by OUTstanding and the Financtal Times

We are also pilaing a mentaring scheme for women offering help
guidance advice and support where 1115 needed

Ao ers-

John Gildersleeve
Chairman of the Norination Comnmittee
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Govermance and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Remuneration Policy is
designed to align management
incentives with our strategy

Lord Turnbull

Chairman of the Remuneration Cormmittee

Remuneration Committee members” attendance
during the vear ended 31 March 2016}

Lord Turnbhull 3/3
Lynn Giadden 3/3
William Jackson 3/3
LauraWade-Gery” 2/2

' Other ndividuals attend Remuneration Comnuttee meetings by invitation
Alan Judes of Strategic Remuneration attended Cornmittee mazetings during
2016 Alan Judes has been appointed by the Committee as its Independent
Adwisor further detai 15 provided on page 110 Ouring the year by the
Commiitee s invitation the following senior executives attended andfor were
present at Commitiee meetings [other than when their own remuneration was
being discussed] the Company Chairman the Chief Executive the Company
Secretary and General Counseland the Head of Cperations

? Laura Wade -Gery was appointed as a Director and member of the
Remuneraton Committee on 13 May 2015
at121@

Terms of Reference

The Committee s Terms of Reference can be found on the Company s
website at www britishland com/ecommittees (D 211 &(D 2 2}@
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During the year we as the Committee have continued to focus

on ensuring that cur Remuner ation Paticy appropriately reflects

our remuneratian philosophy which is based on three

fundamental principles

- remuneration should align management incentives with strategy
and so encourage actvities that support our strategy of creating
Places People Prefer

- remuneratien packages should be designed to attract and retain
expert people throughout British Land s business ang

- the tevel of remuneration should be directly inked to corporate
and indwtdual performance

We were delighted to recewve over 7% of shareholder votes in favour of
our existing Remuneration Policy at our 2014 AGM As our Matching
Share Plan [MSPlwill expire in July 2016 we have taken the opportursty
to review the current Remunerat:on Policy this yearrather than at its
expiry in 2017 with a particular focus on simplifying our iong term
incenkve arrangements Taking inte account investor sentiment around
matching share plans we have decided nol Lo renew the MSP

As a result we will have one single long term ncentive arrangement
under the proposed new Remuneration Policy

To achieve this we are proposing the following key changes to our
Remuneration Pelicy removal of the MSP and amendments to the
Long-Term incentive Plan [LTIP) which address the removat of the MSP
and respond o investor preferences for the introduction of post-vesting
holding penods and the extensien of bme periods over which awards
should be subject to ctawback Proposed amendments are summar ised in
the box on the facing page Given the level of sharehalder suppor t recaved
for the existing Remuner ation Policy in 2014 we are not proposing 1o make
any other material changes fe our Remuneration Policy

Consultation on proposed changes to Remuneration Policy

We were pleased to be able to engage in meaningful discussion with

kay shareholder s during consultation on the proposed amendments
to our Remuneration Policy A number of opiniens expressed durmng

consuliation have directly influenced the design of the Remuneration
Polscy that will be presented for approval at aur AGM m July 2016

Our proposals to move to 3 singie long term incentive arrangement,
introduce a two year holding period followng LTIP vesting and maintain
the compuwisory déferral of a proporton of an Annwal Incentive awar d
Inlo shares were particularly welt received by investors and have been
incorporated into the new Remuneration Policy

In response to feedback 1 eceived during consultatton we are also this
yeal providing more information about per formance against Annual
Incentive measures over the financial year fincluded on pages 102 to 103
of this Report} and we are reducing the percentage of LTIP that vests for
achieving median performance under the new Policy



Design of new Remuneration Policy

The Remuneralion Committee 1s satisfied that the design of our new
Remuneration Policy remains aligned with our remuneration philosaphy
The elements of our remuneration structure have heen chosen so that
they suppar t cur business model and our four areas of strategic focus
Customer Orientation Right Ptaces Capital Efficiency and Exper L
People Performance measures attached to variable elements of
remuneration are stietching with Annual Incentive starting to be
awarded and LTIP awards star ting to vest only once median performance
has been reached maximum levels of remuneration are only pard out
when upper quartile performance 1s achieved Both short term [Annual
Incentive} end long term [LTIP) perfer mance measures have been
carefully selected to incentivise activities that support our strategy of
creating Places People Prefer The measures thal will be attached to
awards granted under the amended LTIP and their respective inks to
our strategy are summar:sed 1n the box on the next page Page 21 of our
Strategic Report highlighis the relationshup between our strategy and
our incentive measures

Our new Remuneration Policy will be presented to shareholders for

approval at the AGM i July 2016 Sharehotders will aiso be asked 1o

vote on separate resolutions to approve the amendments to the LTIP

(D 2 4162 and to approve the Directors Remuneration Report for the year

ended 31 March 2016 If approved our new Remuner atien Policy wilt

apply from the date of the AGM and will cansist of the following key

elements for Executive Diectors

- Basic salartes and benefits wall be set by reference ta comparator
compantes of a similar position n the FTSE 100 index

~ Annua! Incentive awards will be linked to performance against
quantitative quahtative and personal measures and one third of
each Annual Incentive award granted will be deferred to purchase
Bntish Land shares and

- LTIP awards will be linked to both specific property related performance
measures [TPR and TAR assessing performance at the gioss and net
levets respeciivelyl and TSR performance measures and will be subject
to a two year holding pertod following the three year vesting perod

The Executive Directors are responsible for setting the levets of fees pard
to the Non-Executive Directors In line with other FTSE 100 companies

1t 15 proposed that under the new Remuneration Policy fees payable

to Non-Executive (hrectors will be structured as an annual fee plus
additienal fees for membership of commuttees and/or holding certain
positions as outlined in the box to the nght This represents a change
from the structure under the current Policy whereby Non-Executive
Directors receive fees based in part on their attendance at Board and
Commiktee meetings throughout the year Leveks of fees under the new
Poticy loutlined on page 100} have been selected so that totat fees for the
year commencing 1 Aprit 2016 will not change materially compared to
the fees that would have been received had the current Policy remained
n place based on the anuicipated number of meetings that will take
place during theyear (D231 @

Element ¢f remuneration

Change in Remuneration Policy

Matching Share Plan
{MSP)

No MSP will be included in the Palicy presented
for sharehotder approval at the AGM n July 2016
Under the cut rent Policy one third of an Executive
Director s post-tax Annual Incentive award 1s
deferred and used to purchase shares {MSP
Bonus Shai es} that mus? be held for three years
and a conditional award of additional matching
shares s granted

Annual Incentive
Deferral

The deferral of one third of the post-tax Annual
Incentive into shares will be retained but no
award of addutional matching shares will be
granted This will result in continued alignment
between Executive Directors and shareholders
interests and witl provide a longer term aspect
to the Annual Incentive award One third of an
Executve Director s post-tax Annual ncentive
award will he deterred and used to purchase
AnnualIncentive Shares that must be held
forthree years regatdless of whethes or

not the indmidual rermains an employee of
British Land throughout thss persod Annuat
Incentive Shares will be subject to clawback
during ihe holdmg period

Laong-Term Incentive
Plan {LTiP}

For Executive Directers a two year holding period
will be introduced following vesting of an LTIP
award during which awards will be subject

to clawback The holding period will apply
regardless of whether ot not the indwidual
remains an employes of British Land throughout
this period The maximum award potential wili be
increased trom 200% to 300% of basic salary as
Executive Duectors will no longer be eligsble o
recewve additional matching share awards under
the MSP The propor tion of award vesting on
achievement of the median leve! of performance
wikl be reduced from 25% to 20% of the award
The performance conditions attached to LTIP
awardswilt be amended as detailed in the box

on the next page

Non-Executive
Directors’ Fees

MNon-Executive Dhrectars will recetve an annual
tee with additional fees if they are members of
Board Committees or hold the position of Senior
independent Director or Chatrman of the Audit
or Remuneration Committee This replaces the
current fee structure which s based in part

on meeting attendance




Governancee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Remuneration in respect of the year ended 31 March 20146

Briish Land has had ancther active and successful year demonstrated
in our strong fult year results Relative to the prioryear underlying profit
has increased by 16% our NAV 1s 11% ahead and the dividend has
inureased by 2 5% The results were driven by good performances
across the business with good teasing activity and rentat growth key
features The executive management team was str engthened thr ough
a number of key appointments including Roger Madelin who has been
hyed to tead our impor tant Canada Water project The receipt of the
prestigious 20156 Queen s Award for Enterprise 1s a great endorsement
of gur economi¢ social and environmental achievernents

Performance during the year was in ine with or exceeded expectations
on all but one of the Apnual Incentive measures However overall
performance was less strong than performance in the previous financial
year Consequently Annual Incentives awarded te Executive Dinectors in
sespect of the year ended 31 March 2016 are lower than those swarded n
respect of performance overthe prior financial year The Remuneration
Committee 5 assessment of Annuat Incentive per formance aver the year
15 set out on pages 102 to 103 of thus Report

LTIP performance measures

Key activities of the Comnuttee during the vear
ended 31 March 2016:
~ Approvat of the Remuneration Report presented for shareholder
approval at the AGM on 21 July 2015
- Development of Remuneration Policy to be presented for shareholder
approval at the AGM on 19 July 2016 and preparation for consultations
with key sharehaolders
- Review of corporate and individual performances over the year ended
31 March 2015
- Approval of perfarmance measures for the year ended 371 March 2016
- Review of
- Chairman s annual fee
- Chief Execulive s rermuneration
- Fxecutive Directors remuneration and
- Employees salaries and Annual Incentives
- Approval of discretionary share scherne grants and vestings
- Approval of atl-employee share scheme grants

The following performance measures wil apply to LTIP awar ds granted under the new Rernuneration Policy

Measure Link to strategy

Measured relative to

Total Property Return [TPR]

The rhange in capital value less any capitat
expenditure :ncurred plus net incoma FPRis
expressed as a percentage of capital employed
over the LTiP performance period and 15 calculated
by investeent Property Databank {IPD]

The TPR measure 1s designed to link reward to
strong performance at the gross property level

TPR performance will be assessed against
the performance of an IPD benchmark

Total Accounting Return{TAR]
The growth in Brinish Land s EPRANAV per
share ptus dividends per share paid over the
LTIP per foremance peniod

to shareholders

The TAR measure 1s designed to link reward
to performance at the net property level that
takes account of gearing and our distributicns

TAR will be measured relative 10 a comparator
group consising of the 17 largest FTSE property
companies that use EPRA accounting lincluding
Briush Land)

Total Shareholder Return {TSR)

The growth tnvalue of a British Land
shareholding over the LTIP periormance
period assuming dwidends are remnvested
to purchase addiional shares

to shareholders

The TSR measure 1s designed to directly
carreiate reward with the return delivered

50% of the TSR measut e will be measured
relative to the performance of the FTSE 100

and 50% of the TSR measure witl be measured
relauive Lo the per formance of a compar ator
group censisting of the 17 largest FTSE property
companies that use EPRA accounting (including
British Land}

Performance against the LTiP measures will be assessed over a period of three years For each measure 100% of the part of the award attached

1o that measure will vest if Brish Land s performance 1s at the upper quar tile level If performance against a measure 1s equal to the median 20% of the
part of the award atlached to that measure will vest and  performance 1s betow median the part of the award attached to that measure will lapse There
will be straight-line vesting between median and upper quartile performance for each measure
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Vesting of the MSP and LTIP awai ds granted to Executive Directors in
2013 1s dependent on Brihsh | and s performance aver the three year
perted ended 31 March 20146 Vesting of these awards 1s scheduled to
take place in August 2016 and estimated vesting values are included in
the Executive Diectors single total figuw es of remuneration an page 101
Performance measuies attached to the MSP award measure growth in
gross income znd total shat eholder return [TSR] Half of the MSP awat d
15 expecled to vest as ithe gross income growth target has been fully
achieved however the remaining half of the MSP awardwill lapse as
British Land s TSR over the period was below the median TSR of the
compat ator greup of companies

The two performance measures attached to the vesung LTIP award
measure lotal property return [TPR] and total accounting return [TAR]
The TPR part of the awaid 1s expected to vest at 89% reflecting partal
achievermnent of this condition and the TAR part s estmated to vest at
44% again showing that the performance condition has been metn part
but upper quartite performance {tequired for the full award to vest] has
not been achieved

Executive Directors single total figures of remuneration for the year
to 31 March 2016 have decreased relative to the figures tor the previous
financiat year reflecting the par tial vesting of long term incentive awards
and reduced Annual Incentive awar ds compared to the prioryear The
Committee bebieves this demonstrates that our Remuneration Policy
1s designed so that the third strand of our remuner ation philesophy

the levet of remuneration received should be directly kinked to corporate
and individual per formance” 1s properly reftected in the Policy

Remuneration in respect of the year commencing 1 April 2014

The Commuttee is satisfied that the Executive Directors sataries and
the Charrman s annual fee remain correctly posttioned in relaticn to
our comparator group [being FTSE 100 companies of a similar market
capitabisation to British Land) and these will not be increased for the
year comimencing 1 April 2016

Asexplamned earlier in this letter a new Remuneration Policy and
amended LTIP rules will be presented for sharehotder approval at the
AGM In July 2016 The Commuitee intends to grant the fmal LTIP awar d
under the current Remuneration Policy and rules befare the AGM
therefare the first LTIP award under the new Policy and amended
rules will not be granted until the year commencing 1 April 2017

This s my tast cepar tas Chawrman of the Remuneration Cormimiitee as
lintend to stand down following British Land s Annual General Meeting

in July 2016 {will remain a member of the Cornmittee and leck forward

to continuing to work with Witliam Jackson whowilltake over the
Comruttee Charmanship aswell as Lynn Gladden and Laura Wade-Gery
whowere both appointed Commutiee members in 2015

The Committee very much valued your support of our Remuneration
PoliLy when it was introduced in 2014 We hope thal youwill be
supportive of the proposed changes to our long term incentive
arrangements set out in our new Remuneration Policy and supportive

of our Annual Repart on Remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2016
at the AGM i July 7016

Lord Turnbull

Chantman of the Remuneration Comrmittee
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REMUNERATION REPORT OVERVIEW OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Overview of Remuneration Policy

Hawing exper t people 1s ene of the four core focus areas of our business
model Our Remuneration Policy 1s intended to help retain the expert
peaple we have reciuited and developed and mitigate the risk of tasing
them Our Remuneration Policy is also designed to foster emptoyee share
ownership and align Executive Directors interests with those of investors
The Remuneration Policy outbned on pages 92 1o 98 will take effect from
19 July 2016 subject to shareholder approval at Botish Land s Annual
General Meeting on that day The bar charts below iltustrate the levets of
remuneration r eceivable by the Executive Directars under this proposed
Remuneration Policy for varying levels of performance

Within the remuneration package varigble elements [the Annual
Incentive and Long-Term Incentive Plan [LTIP)) are designed to reward
performance that supports our strategy and cr eates sustainabte long
term value for shareholders [f onty the rminimum tevel of performance 1s
achieved only fixed remuneration elements will be paid to the Directors
In the lllusirative bar charts this mimimum remuneration consists of
bastc salary, henehits pension or pension atlowance and shares awarded
by Buitish Land under the all-employee Share Incentive Plan!

Far performance that s in line with expactations up o hatf of the
maxirnum Annual Incentive award possible will be granted [equivalent
ta 75% of basic satary} and the proporton of the LTIP awar d expecled
to vest 1s equivatent to 140% of basic salary Gne third of the Annual
Incentive award granted witl be deferred into shares which must be
held by the Executive Dhrector for three years {Annuat incentive Shar es)

Hlustration of appheation of Remuneraoon Policy

For the maximum level of per formance the Annual Incentive award

will be granted at a tevel equivalent to 150% of hasic salary and the LTiP
award 1s expected to vest In full [eguivalent to 300% of basic salary) One
third of the Annual Incentive award granted will be deferred into Annual
Incentive Shares Remuneration payable in respect of this maximum levet
of performance has not changed mater saily compared to thal payable
under the current Rernuneration Policy approved by shareholders in 2014

The llustrative bar charts below do not take into account any share
price apprectation hetween grant and vesting of LTiP awards or between
deferral and release of Annual Incentive Shares Share price growth will
resultin the vatues of LTiP awards and Annual Incentive Shar es increasng
in the perod between grant and vesting/release to the Direclor

As exptained on page 89 the first LTIP award grant under the new Policy
fwith maximum level equivalent to 300% basic salary] will not take place
until the year ending 31 March 2018 asstisintended that an LTIP award
witl be granted under the existing Policy [with maximum level equivalent
ta 200% basic salary) in advance of the 2016 AGM

' Calculated using salaries for the year ending 31 March 2017, assuming that
benehit values for the year ending 31 March 2017 will remain ihe same as the
values for the yeal ended 31 March 2014 and that the maxirmum value of shar es
that can be awarded by the Company under the Share Incentive Plan is granted
Pension values are based on the Remuneratian Policy and estrmates supplied
oy the scherne actuary for defined benefit scheme membe: s

Chnis Grigg Charles Maudsley

Chief Executive f£000 Head of Retailand Leisure £000

Minimum £1,187  Mimmum £553

In Line with In line with

expectations £2.993 expectations £1.512

Maxirmum £4,967 Maximum £2.561

Lucinda Bell Tun Roberts

Chief Financial Officer £000 Head of Offices and Residentiat £000

Minimum £609  Mimimum £572
e " In} th

213233’.2'15 37% 2% 41% £1.669  &pectations 37% 22% 4% £1,531

Maximum £2.828 Maximum 22% M 29 £2,580

B| ong Term Incentive

QlAnnual Incentive

M Fixed remyneration
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Executive Ehrectors

?li'l Fixed Remuneration

@ Long-Term Incentwe Plan [LTIP)]

The cornponents of fixed remuneration are intended o provide a hase
package at a level that wil attr act ligh-calibre indwiduals with the
appropriate degree of expertise and experience to carry oul their roles
to the high standards we require Executive Direciors salaries are
posittoned around the median of aur compat ater grovp FTSE100
companies with broadly similar market capitalisations to British Land)
and i addition to salary the fixed remuneration package snctudes the
prowision of benefits a pension or pension allowance and the opportumty
to take partin all-employee share schemes

o
Eﬁg Annua! Incentive

The Annual tncentive forms par L of the vanable p: opor tion of an
Executive Directer s remuneration package 7 he level of Annual Incentive
award recewved i1s directly Uinked to corporate and indwvidual performance
against annually tatlored measures

A proportion of each Executive Director s Annual Incentive award 15 used
lo purchase shares that must be held far three years adding a longer
ter m aspect te the Annual Incentive award

Magntude of Arnual'n erbve award < depr ndert or performar oo
aga mstArn Lo, ntentive meas ares Qver bhe year

One thied (et of taxd is used
{0 purchase shares which must
be hetd tor three years
lAnraal Incent ve Sha' es)

Two thirds 15 pard as
cashon sward

The L7IP1s the second element of vaniable remuneraton The propo: tion
of an LTIP award that 1s actually released to an Executive Director 1s
dependent on British Land s per formance against specified per formance
measures over a three year pertod

LTIP award consats of performance shares
or markat vaiue options or 8 combnation af (he tweo
with performance measures atlached

Performance 15 measured
aver three years

The number of performance shares vesting and the number of optans
becorming exercisable are both dependent on the degree
to whichthe perforinance measures have been mel

Atwoyear holdirg pertad apples io LTIP awards following vesting

Chiarrman and Non-Eaecutive Directors

Fees paid to the Cormpany Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are
posittoned around the medhan of our comparator group of companies
{FTSE100 compames with broadly similar market capialisations o
British Land| with the aim of attracting indmiduals with the appropriate
degree of expertise and experience to work with and challenge the
Executive Oirectors
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Governanee and Remuneration

REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY

Component and Purpose

Executive Directors’ Remuneration Pohiey

Operation

% Fixed Remuneration

Basic salary

To attract and retain expert people
with the appropriate degree of
expertise and experience

The level of basic salary i1s posironed around the median of eur comparator group of FTSE 100
companies with broadly similar market capitalisations Executive Directors responsibilities
are taken into account when basic salaries are set

Basic salaries are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Commuttee with increases usually
taking effect on 1 April for the subsequeat year Employment condiions and salary increases
throughout the Group are taken into account when basic salaries are sat

n addition to basic selary Executive Directors may be eligible to recewve fees for siting on the
boar ds of certan subseiary companies

Benefits and all-employee
share schemaes

To attract and retain
expert people and to
foster share ownership

A caratlowance 1s paid to Executive Directors in lieu of the provesion of a company car

Executive Director s are eligible to receive other taxable and non-taxable benefits which
may include
- private medical insurance [covering the Director spouse and any children under the age of 25}
- life assurance cover under which a lump sum of four ttmes basic satary wall be paid out in
the event of death in service
- permanent health insurance, under which 75% of basic salary will be paid in the event
of long term absence due to certain medicat reasons
- access to independent actusnal inancial and legal advice when necessary
- gym membership subsidised by the Company
~ annual medical checks
- relevant prolessional subscription fees
- ather benefits on substantiatly the same hasis as other employees

Executive Directors are eligible to parbicipate in Briish Land s Share Incentive Plan [SIP)
and Sharesave Scheme on the same basis as other eligible employees

The Company provides Directors and Officers Liability Insur ance and may provide an
indemnity to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Act

Pension or pension allowance

To attract and retain expert people
and to provide an appioprate level
of pension on retirement

Executive Directors may receive pensian benefits through a defined contribution
arrangement may receive a cash altowance in Lieu of pension contnbutions or {provided the
Director jomed British Land before its defimed benefit scheme closed to new member s in
2006l may receve benefits thi ough a defined benefit arrangement as deemed appropt 1ate
by the Committee

Accrual 1ates for Directors recening benefits through the defined benefit scheme are
determined by the rules of the scheme and a1 e dependent an the age at which the Director
Jjomed the Company Benefils up to the bmit permutted by the tax legislatron are provided
inaregistered plan Benefits over that lmit are currently provided i an employer financed
retement benehil scheme [kFRBS) EFRBS participants are currently offered a choice
annually as to whether they wish to accrue benefits in the EFRBS or to recewve a cash
paymentin lieu

[hrectors participatng i a defined caninbution arrangement may choose whether
contributians are made inte Briush Land s dehined contribution scheme or into their
own pef sonat pension ptan Cash allowances in bieu of pension contributions would
typically be pard at the same level of salary as Company contributions under the defined
coenirbubion arrangement
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Maximum Opportunity

Performance Conditicns

The maximum level of basic salary will not be greater than the upper
quartle of the comparator group

Increases will typecally be in ine wathirflation and generai salary
increases throughout the Group If an individual 1s appornted at a
salary positioned below the level aligned with our comparator group
alarger increase may be awarded in order 1o posttion the salary
around the median of our comparator group

Executive Directors fees for sitting on subsidiery company boards
are capped at a maxirnum of £1 500 per annum in aggregate for ail
qualifying appomntments

Not applicable

The maximumn car allowance is £20 0G0 per annum

The maximum cost of other taxable and non-taxabie benefits
permutted under the Poligy 1s the amount 1 equired to continue
providng benefits at a surular level year-on-year

The maxirmum cpporturities under the SIP and Sharesave Scheme
are sel by the rules of the schemes and deterrmined by statutory iimits

Notapplicable

Under the defined benefit scheme the target benehitis the pension
that can be prowided by the 31 Marcl 2012 lfetime allowance [[18
million) uptifted by RP1fiom that date The maximum accrual rate

for a defined benefit scheme member is that which will give the target

henefit at age 60 subject to the accrual rate being no greater than
one thirtieth and no less than one sixtieth of salary

Employer penston cantributions to Executive Directors under

the detined contribution arrangement and cash allowances i Lieu
of pension are made at a fixed percentage of salary between

15% and 35%

Mot applicable
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REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Component and Purpese

Operation

oy - Py
e P S8BT e

Yo reward Company and indmdual
performance that supports the
strategic priorities of the business
and to promote activities that help
the business successfully
implement iis strategy

To foster share ownership and align

participants inlerests with those of
shareholders

=
& Long-Term Incent.ve Plan [LT!F)

Annuat Incentive awards may be granted to Executive Directors each year with the level of
award reflecting Company and indrvidual performance against measures set by the
Remuner ation Committee Awards are granted following the financial year end when actual
performance over that year has been measui ed

Two thirds of an Executive Director s Annual Incentive awar d1s paid in cash when the award
15 granted The remaining third of the Annual Incentive award fnet of tax} 1s used to purchase
British Land shares on behalf of the Executive Director {Annual Incentive Sharest Annual
Incentive Shares must be held for three years from the date of grant of the Annwval Incentive
award befor e they may be transferred or sold regardless of whether or not the ndmdual
remains an ermployee of British Land throughout this period Executive Directos s are entitled
to the dividends paid in respect of the Annual incentive Shares during the holding perod

The Annual Incentive Shares may be ctawed back duning the three year peried following 1ssue
if st is discovered that the relevant Annual Incentive award was granted on the basts of
materiatly imisstated accounts or other data

To link the level of reward to
Company perfarmance against
specified long term measures,
promoting and rewarding activities
that suppert our strategy and create
sustainable long term value for
sharehoiders

To foster share ownership and align
participants interests with those of
shareholders

LTIP awards may be granted annually by the Remuneration Committee to Executive Directors
Awards may consist of performance shares (conditional rights to recewve shares] o market
value ophions or a combination of the two Executwe Directors may indicate a preference asto
the proportions of their award received as per formance shares and/or mar ket value options

LTiP awar ds vest after theee years The number of perfermance shares and/or options vesting
is dependent on the degree to which performance conditions attached 10 the LT#P award have
been met ovei this three year performance perod A payment equivalent 1o the dividends

accrued on vesting performance shares and the interest thereon 1= pard at the pomt of vesting

On vesting suthcrent performance shares may be sold to cover any liability to income tax and
Natienal insurance Contributions The remaineng performance shares rmust be held for two
year s following vesting before they ar e permutted to be transierred or sold regardless of
whether or not the individuat remains an emptoyee of Brinsh Land throughout this period

LTIP oplions may be exercised at any point during the sevenyears {ollowing vesiing If LTIP
optiens are exercised within two years of the vesting date sufficient of the shar es acquired
may be sold to cover the cost of exercise and any lrability to sncome tax and National Insurance
Conlributtons but the remaining shares must be held untl the point twe year s from the
vesting date befor e they are permmitied to be transferred or sold regardless of whether or not
the mdividual remains an ernptoyee of British Land throughout this period

IE1t1s discovered that an LTIP award was granted or vested on the hasis of maternially

missiated accounts or other data

- the Commuttee may reguire some or ail of the performance shares to be forfeited or clawed
back during the five year period following the grant date

- the Cormumittee may require some or all unexercised options to be forfeited at any pomt and

- where an option 1s exercised within five years of its grant date the Committee may require
some or all of the shares acquired to be clawed back duning the five year period {otlowing the
oplicn grant date
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Maximum Opportunity

Performance Conditions

The maximum level of Annual incentive which may be g anted
15 equivatent to 150% of basic satary

The Annual incentive per formance measw es relate to British Land s
strategic focus areas and the Executive Director s indwidual areas of
responsibility The measures are set by the Remuneration Committee
at the beginning of the financial year over which per lormance will be
assessed and are not strictly weighted When determining the level of
an Executive Director s Annual Incentive award the Committee takes
into account performance against all measures and makes an
assessment inthe round

IFf actual performance averaged over all measures s equal to the
median level of performance the Annual Incentive award granted
wili be one quarter of the maximum potential award [equivalent to
375% of basic salaryl Up to half of the maximum potential award
fequivalent to 75% of basic salary) 1s payable for perfermance that
15 line with expectations If average parformance 1s below the
med:an level of performance ne Annual Incentive award wili

be granted

No further performance conditions are attached to the Annual
Incentive Shar es during the holding penad

The maximum value of an LTIP award which may be granted 1s
equivalent to 300G% of hasic salary The value for this purpose
1s the aggregate fair valug of the shares and/or options granted
at the date of awas d¢

The farr value of a shat e i1s the aver age market value of British [ and
shares aver the three dealing days preceding grant The fair value of
a market vatue option 1s such fraction of the fair vatue of a share asis
sel by the Commuttee Thes fraction is currenily one quarter but may
be varied by the Committee 1o reflect the economic models used by
the Company for the valuation of options

The LTIP performance conditions have been chosen to rewar d

per formance that 1s abgned with British Land s strategy

- total property return [TPR) performance 1s assessed relative
to an Investment Property Batabank {IPD) benchmark, rewarding
strong returns at the property tevel

- total accounting return {TAR] performance 1s assessed relative
to a comparator group consisung of the 17 largest property
cornpanies within the FTSE that use EPRA accounting lincluding
Brtish Land] and

- total sharehotder return {TSR] performance 15 assessed against both
the FTSE100 and a comparator group consisting of the 17 largest
property comparies within the FISE that use EPRA accounting
[inctuding British Land|

The relative weighting of the performance conditions may be varied
by the Committee to ensure the L11P best supports Briush Land s
sirategy and to meet investor preferences The Commitige currently
intends to apply the performance conditions with the following
weightings 4G% of the awar d wilt be linked to the TPR conditton
4{1% will be linked 10 the TAR condition and 20% wiil be Unked to

the TSR conditien

TPR performance 1s currently assessed against the IPD UK Annual
Property Index The Commuttee may amend the comparator groups
of companies during the performance period if there 1s a corporate
event affecting any member of the group and may amend the IPD
benchmark If a different benchmark 1s deemed more appropriate

Performance conditions are challenging requiring significant
outperformance for 100% of the LTIP award tovest 20% of the
award witl vest if ithe mimmum performance threshold 1s achieved
perfor mance below the memmum thresheld tor a perfor mance
condition will resutt in the LTH award in respect of that condition
lapsing Upper quartile performarice must be achieved against
each performance measure for the entire award to vest
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REMUNERATION REPORT REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Non-Executne Directors’ Remmumeration Poliey

Component and Purpose

Operation

Maximum Opportunity

Performance Cenditions

Charrman s tee

To attract and retain an individual

with the appropriate degi ee
of experiise and experience

The Chawman s anrual fee

15 set by the Remuneratton Committee
and reviewed annually The level of the
Chanman s annual fee 1s positioned
around the medran of our chosen
comparatar group which consists

of FTSE 100 companies with broadly
simular market capiatisations

The maximurn annuat fee
will not be greater than the
upper quartide of the chosen
cornparator group Typically
increases If required

wilk Be in lime with inflation

Mot applicable

Chairman s benefils

To facititate the Chairman s
travel in the futfilment of his
ot her duties

The Chawrman is provided with 3 car
and chauffeur together with any taxes
thereon

The maximum opportunity
Is the cost o the Company
of providing this grossed-up
taxable benefit at a similar
{evel eachyear

Not applicable

Non-Executive Directors fees
Toattract and retain expert
people with the appropriate
degi ee of exper tise and
experience

Remuneration of the Non-Executive
Directors 1s a matter for the Executive
Directors and fees are reviewed
annually

Non-Executive Directors receve an
annuat fee plus additionat fees if they
are members of a Commttee or (f
they hold the position of Semior
Independent Direcior or Chairman
of the Rernuneration or Audit
Committee

The Company s Policy 13 to deliver a
toial fee al a levelin ine wath sirmilar
positions at our chosen comparator
gioup, which consists of FTSE 100
companies with broadly similar
market capitalisations

The maximum aggregate
amount of basic fees payable
1o all Non Executive Directors
shzll not exceed the £600 000
limit set in the Cornpany s
Articles of Association

Not applicable

Other arrangements for
the Chairman and the
Non-Executive Directors
To support the Directorsn
the fulfilment of their duties

The Company may reimburse
expenses reasonably incurred by

the Chairman and the Naon-Executive
Directors o futfitment of the
Company s business together

with any taxes thereon

The Company provides the Chairman
and the Non-Execubive Directors with
Directors and Officers Liability
insurance and may provide an
indemnity to the fullesi extent
perrmitted by the Companes Act

The maximum remmborsement
IS eXpenses reasonably
incired together with any
taxes thereon

The maximum value of the
Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance and the Company s
indemnity1s the cost at the
relevant time

Not applicabie
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Notes to the Remuneration Policy table

Remuneration Policy for other employees

Salary reviews across the Group are carried out on the same basrs

as salary reviews for the Executive Directors consideration is given

lo the individual s role duties, expenence and performance along

with consideration of typical salary levels of employees in similar

roles in comparable compantes where the data is avarlable Employees
are entitled to taxable and non-taxabke benefiis with executives being
entrled to substantially the same benefits as the Executive Director s

All ernpioyees are eligrble 10 receive an Annuat Incentive the level of
which will be dependent on individual departmental and Company
performance A proportion of a semol executive s Annual Incentive
award may be deferred 10 pur chase Annual Incentive Shares Executives
inay be granted Long-Term Incentive Plan awards Soime executives
{notincluding Executive Dit ectors] are eligible Lo recerve shares under
the Fund Managers Performance Plan [FMPP] The final FMPP awaid
was granted in 2013 and the final FMPP vesting will take place in 2016
Employees joining the company after 2004 are eligible to take partn a
defined contribution pensien arrangement The Company s all-employee
share schemes [the Share Incentive Plan and the Shar esave Schemel
are also open to eligible employees

Pre-existing obligations and commitments

Itis a provision of this Paticy that the Company can honeur all
pre-existing cbbigations and commitments that were entered mto prior to
this Remuneration Policy taking eifect The terms of those pre-existing
obligations and commitments may differ from the terms of the Rermuneration
Policy and may include fwithout imitation] abligations and comsmitments
under service contracts long termincentive schemes [ncluding previous
Long-Term Incentive Plans and the Matching Share Plan} pension and
benefit plans

Considerations when setting Remuneration Policy

In drawing up the Remuneration Policy the Committee took into
account views expressed by sharehalders duning meetings and
communicated to the Company The Company engaqed withuits
sharehaolders via cansultation meetings with mvestor bodies

and by writing to its targest shareholders offering each a meeting
to discuss remuneration proposats

Each year the Remuneration Committee takes tnio account the pay and
ermnployment conditions of employeesn the Group noting the general
inct ease In salary proposed for all employees and levels of iIncentive
payments and performance before setting the remuneration of the
Directors The Comrmuttee did not consult with the Company s employees
or use remuneration comparison measurements when drawing up the
Directors Remuneration Palicy

Approach to recruitment remuneration

Executive Directors

Basic salary s set at a levet appropriate to reci uik @ suitable candidate
laking into account exte: nal market compebitiveness and internal equity
The tevel of basic salary may inihatly be positioned below the median

of the chosen comparatar group wiath the intention of iIncreasing it to
around the median of the comparator group after an imtial period of
satisfactory service

Where a recruitis forfeting incentive awards g anted by hus or her existing
employer compensation in the ferm of a Restricted Share Plan {RSP}
award may be made lin accordance with Listing Rule 9 4 2] the maximum
vatue of which witl he that which the Commuitee 1n its reasonabte apirton
considers [o be equal to the value of the awards which have lapsed

The value of dividends paid on the RSP shares during the vesting perod
ts pard directly to the Director Vesting of the shares granted under the
RSP award will be subject to the Director completing a minimum period
of qualifying service so the award will not be released unit this condition
has been satisfied The vesting of the RSP award may be subject to
additional performance measures being met over the same period

the Cornrmittee will deterimine the most relevant measures to use at

the time of award bearing in mind the responsibilities of the individual
being appointed and the Company s strategic prierities at the tme

The Commuttee may choose lo offer a Co-Investment Share Plan [CIP)
award 10 a new Executive Director on re¢ruitment lin accardance with
Listing Rule 9 4 2] to assist the Directer in building a holding of British
Land shares with the aim of further aligning the Director s personat
interests with those of British Land s shareholders

Under the CIP a dit ector may invest a maximum of 150% salary

[225% salary fer a Chref Fxecutive} to purchase British Land shares
these limuts baing determined by the Director s minimum sharehotding
guideline The Cempany will match the purchased CIP shares on a

1 1 bams [before atlowing for tax Liztxlities that will arise on vesting of
the matching shares) All the CIP shares are then deferted for three
years subect tothe Director rematning employed by the Group and
holding the shares for this ume Should the Di ector leave the Gioup
betfore the gualifying period s completed all of the matching shares
witt lapse and the purchased shares will he released to the Birector
Dmidends paid on the purchased CIP shares during the vesting period
are paid directly to the Director a dividend equivalent payment s made
on vesting to compensate for dwvidends accrued on matching CIF shares
The Commuttee will impose performance measur es on CIP awai ds
which must be achieved over the three-year holding penied for the
matchsng shares to vest The Commuttee will determine the most
relevant measures to use at the trne of award bearing inmind the
respansibilities of the indwidual being appainted and the Company s
strategic priarities at the tirne

The Company s Policy 1s to gve notice periods of no {onger than

12 manths However when recruiing an exter nal canddate 1t may
be necessary to give an imiial notice pertod of up to 24 months thes
teduces at the end of 12 months work to 12 months The remarnder
of the package offered to 2 new Executive Director would be tn line
with the Company s ongoing Remuneratron Policy

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

On recrutment the Chairman will be offered an annual fee and benefits
in accordance with the Policy The level of the annual fee may mitially

be poasitianed below the median of the chosen comparater group with
the intention of mcreasmg it io around the median of the comparator
group after an initial period of sabsfactory service Non-Executive
Direcior s wilt be offered Non-Executive Directors fees in accordance
with the Policy

Appointment of internal candidates

it an existing employee of the Group 1s appainted as an Executive Directer
Chairman or Non-Executve Director, any obligation or commitrment
entered into with that indwidual prior to his or her appointment can

be honoured In accordance with the terms of those obbgetions or
commitments even where they differ frem the terms of the Policy
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Policy en toss of office

Executive Direclors

The Executive Directors service contracts can be lawfully terminated by
either party giving 12 months notice o by the Company making a lump
sum payment in Lieu of notice [PILON] equal to the Executive Director s
base salary for the notice peried Additionally when the Company makes
a PILON 1t may erther pay a lump sum eguat ta the value of any benefits
for the notice period or conbinue to provide benefits until the notice period
expires or the Executive Director starts new employment [whichever

15 the earlier] These lawful terrminaticn mechanisms do not prevent

the Company in appropnate circuimstances from terminating an
Executive Director s employment in breach of fus or her service

contract and seeking to apply rtigation n determining the damagas
payabte Where this1s actievable in negotiation with the outgoing
Director settlernent arrangements are structured so that the
termination paymentis paid ininstalments and the instalments

are reduced by an amaunt equai to any earnings recetved from the
outgoing Director s new employment, consultancy or other paid work

For depar ting Executive Director s and Executive Directors that have left
Britsh Land the Committee may agree to cash commutation of pensian
benefits under the defined benetit scheme lincluding EFRBS benefits)]
and other pension arrangements entered into prior te the adoption of the
2014 Remuneration Policy Any cornmutation would take into account
valuations provided by independent actuarial advisors so as to be
undertzken on a basis considered by the Comrmuittee to be cost neutral
to the Company

The ¢ cumstances of the loss of office dictate whether the individual is
treated as a good teaver or otherwise n accordance with the Company s
Pelicy The Remuneration Committee uses its discretion to form a view
taking into account the circurnstances Gaod legvers typically receve
pro-rata Annual incentive and long term incentive awards subject to
performance measurement and other leavers for feit their entitlements
in the event of a change of controt the rules of the share plans gener ally
provide for accelerated vesting of awar ds subject lwher e applicable)

to time apporticnment and achievement of performance targets All of
the Company s Executive Directors have contracts that pre-date 27 June
2012 but these do not contain contractusl prowisions that could impact
on the amount of any payment for loss of office and which fall outside
the Policy Details of the Executive Directors service contracts and
notiLe periods are gven 1 the table below (D 1 5} &

Normatl Normal

notice notice

Length Date of period lo penod to

of sepvice service  begwenby  begivenby

Director contract contract Company Director
Chris Grigg 12 mths 191208 12 mths 12 mths
Lucinda Bell 12 mths 003N 12 mths 12 mths
Chartes Maudsley 12 mths g3noy 12 mths 12 mths
Tirn Roberts 12 mths 141106 12 mihs 12 mths

The Company may terminate a Director s appointment with immediate
effect without notice or payment in lieu of notice under certain
circumstances prescribed within the Direcior s service contract
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Chairman and Non-Executive Directors

The letters of appointment of Non-Fxecutive Directors are subject

to renewal on a trienmatl basis In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code all Directors stand for election or re-election by

the Company s shareholders on an annual basis The Directors service
contracis and letters of appaintment are available for inspection during
normal business hours at the Company s register ed office and at the
Annual General Meeting The unexpired terms of the Chairman s and
Non-Executive Cirectors letters of appointment are shown helow

Unexpired term of
Date of current  appointment at

Director appointmant 31 March 2016
John Gildersleeve [Chairman) 61/01/2016 33 months
Aubrey Adams 01/0%/2014 17 manths
Simon Borrows 17/03/2014 11 manths
Lynn Gladden 20/03/2015 23 manths
William Jackson 11/04/2014 12 months
Tim Score 20/03/2014 1% months
Lord Turnbull 81/04/2015 24 months

Laura Wade-Gery 13/05/2015 25 months

Although the Chairman s and Non-Executive Director s appointments
are for fixed terms their appointments may be terminated immediately
without notice if they are not reapponted hy shareholders or if they are
remaved fr o the Boar d uader the Cornpany s Ar ticles of Assaciatron
or if they resign and do not offer themselves for re-election In addition
thew appomtments may be termmated by either the individual or the
Company giving three months written notice of terminatien (or for

the Chairman six months wnitten notice of ternunation) Despite these
terms of appointment neisther the Chairman nor the Non-Executive
Directors are entitled to any compensation lother than accrued and
unpaid fees and expenses tar the period up to the termination] for loss
of office for any reason
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How we intend to apply our
Remuneration Policy during the
year commencing 1 April 2016

Pages 99 to 100 detail how the Rermuner ation Committee intends to apply
the Remuneration Policy during the coming yea

Executne Director s’ Remuneration

% Basic salartes

Basic sataries have been set at the following levels for the year
commencing 1 April 2016 Salanes have not been changed relative
to the prior year

Durector Basic salary £
Chinis Grigg 840 000
l_ucinda Bell 493000
Charles Maudsley 446 250
Pim Roberts 446 250

@ Annual incentive awards

During the year Annual Incentive perfermance will be assessed against
arange of quantitative and gualitative measures

Quantitative measures

- Property retumns Unlevered property capital returns relative to IPD
and total property return relaive to IPD

- Accounting returns Total accounting return relative to property majors

~ Rentat growth ERV growth retative to IPD and

— Underlying profit performance Profit performance relative to budget

Qualitative measures supporting the four areas of our business model
—Right Places progress on key projects inctuding developments and
execution of fargeied acquisiions and disposals,
~ Customer Orsentation company reputation with all stakeholders
and supparting the defivery of sustamabjbity objectives
- Capital Efficiency execution of debt financings and progress
on strengthening the dvidend and
~ Expert People quality of people and managerent renewal

The Executive Directors individual performance will also be assessed
against measures retating te thewr specific areas of responsibrlity that
support the corporate measures above Furtherinformation regarding
the measures and the assessment of performance used to determine
Execuiive Direciors Annual Incentive awards for the year ending

31 March 2017 will be disclosed in the 2017 Remuneration Report

@ Long term incentive awards

Matching Share Plan [MSP]

Under the Remuneration Policy approved by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting n 2014 {available on pages 84 1091 of British Land s
2014 Annual Reportl one third of each Executive Directers Annual
Incentive award must be deferred and used o purchase MSP Benus
Shares Therefore the Annual Incentive awards that are due to be paid to
Executive Directors 1 June 2016 in respect of per formance during the
year ended 31 March 2016 will ne subject to such a deferral and an
associated award of MSP Matching Shares will be granted This will be
the final MSP award granted to Executive Direciors as the Remuneration
Policy that will be presented to shareholders for approval at the AGM 1n
July 2016 [detaded on pages 901098 of this Report) does not include &
matching share ptan

Two equally weighted performance measures will be applied to MSP
Matching Share awards each measure relates to half of the total M5P
award meaning no mot e than half of the totat award can vest (f one of the
performance measures does not meet 1ts minimum vesting threshold

The total shareholder return (TSR] part

The comparator graup aganst which TSR performance will be
assessed over the three-year performance period consisls of

Great Portland Estates plc Hammersaon pic Intu Properties plc
l.and Securities Group PLC SEGRO plc Big Yellow Group PLC
Capital & Counties PLC DerwentLondon plc Grainger plc
Hansteen Holdings plc Helical Bar ple LondonMetric Property plc
St Modwen Properties PLC Shaltesbury PLC The UNITE Group plc
UK Commercial Property Trust Ltd and British Land The percentage
of the part of the MSP Matching Award linked to TSR gerformance
will be determined as follows

British Land s TSR refatwe to the comparator group
at the end of the performance pencd

Percentage of TSR part
of award vesting %

Below median 0
Median 25

Furthervesting per each 1% TSR exceeds median
{to a maximum of 100% of TSR pat t of award) 1875
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The gross income growth {GIG) part

Briish Land s gross incosme gi owth witl be assessed relative to the
Investment Property Databank IPB] Quarterly Unwver se lthe IPD
Universe] In order for the part of the MSP Matching Award linked 1o GIG
pet formance tovest British Land 5 GIG over the three-year performance
period must be equal to that of the 1PD Universe (the Growih
Requirement ] The per centage of the GIG part of the MSP Matching
Award vesting will be deter mined as follows

Bntish Land s GIG relative to the IPD Unverse Percentage of GIG part
at the end of the performance period of award vesting %
Below Growth Requirernent 0
Equal to Growth Requirement 25

Further vesting per each 0 5% per annum GIG
exceeds the Growlh Requrrement flo a maximum
of 100% of GIG part of award} 25

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

It 1s intended that the finat LT grant under the Remuneration Policy
approved by shareholders at the AGM in 2014 {avaitable on pages B4 10 91
of Briush Land s 2014 Annual Repor U witl take place i June 2014 Asthe
intention is to grant an LTIP award in advance of the new Remuneration
Policy and amended LTIP rules being presented for shareholder approval
at the AGM n July 2016 no further LTIP award will be granted to
Executive [hrectors during the year to 31 March 2017 Therelor e the first
LYIP award to Executive Directors under the new Policy if approved 1s
not intended to be granted unul the financial year ending 31 March 2018
Two equally weighted perfor mance measures wilt be apphied to LTHP
awards granted in the year ending 31 March 2017 each measure relates
to half of the total LTIP award meanmng no more than half of the total
award can vest if one of the periormance measu es does nol meet 1ts
menimum vesting threshold

The total property return {TPR) part

Baitish Land s TPR over the three-year performance period will be
assessed relative to the iPD UK Annual Property Index {the IPD
Benchmark } The percentage of the TPR part of the LTIP award vesting

Total Accounting Return [TAR}

Briush Land s TAR over the three-year performance period will be
assessed relatve to the same comparator group of compasies that
performance will be assessed against under the M5P TSR measure
The percentage of the TAR part of the LTIP award vesting will be
determined as foliows

British Land s TAR relative to the comparater group Percentage of TAR part
at the end of the performance penod of award vesting %
Below median 0
Medsan 25
Upper quartle 100

There will be straight-tine vesting between median and upper quartile
performance

The performance measures that wilt apply to LTIP awards granted under
the new Remuneration Policy that will be presented for shareholder
approval at the AGM in July 2016 (the first grant of which s not intended
to take place until the financial year ending 31 March 2018] are described
on page 88

Non-Executne Directors’ remuneration

The following fee structure witl apply for the Chair man s and Non-
Executive Directors fees subject te shareholder approval of our new
Remunet ation Policy at the AGM in July 2016 This represenis a change
fram the curt rent structure under which Non-Execulive Direclors receve
feas based in parton their attendance at Board and Committee meetings

The Chairman s annual fee has not been changed relative to the prior
year Itisintended that fees paid to the other Non-Executive Directors
intespect of service between 1 April 2016 and the 2016 AGM [paid in
accordance wath the current Remuneration Policy approved by
shareholders tn 2014) will be deducted fram the annual fees set out
below so that fees received in respect of the Tull year to 31 March 2017
are i bine with the structure set out below

wikl be deter mined as follows Chairman s annual lee £369 340
Brittsh Land s TPR relative to the IPD Benchmark Percentage of TPR part Nan-Executive Director s annual fee L6t 000
at the end of the performance period ofawardvesing% | gonqr Independent Qtrector s annual fee £10 000
Below median 0 Audit Commitiee or Remuneration Committee Chairman s
Median 25 | annual fee £20 000
Upper quartile 130 | Remuneration Committee or Audit Committee members
annual fee £8 000
Normination Committee member s annual fee £4 000

100 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2016




How we applied our Remuneration
Policy during the year ended
31 March 2016

Single total Agure of remuneration (andited information)
The following tables detail all elements of remuneration tecevabte by British Land s Directors in respect of the year ended 31 Mai ch 2014 and show
compar ative igures for the year ended 31 March 2015

Qther items in Pension or

Taxable Annuat Longterm the nature of pension
Salary/fees benefits! mncentve incentives  remuneration’ allowance Total
0% 2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2016
Executive Directors £000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 £000
Chiis Grigg 840 21 840 1,681 33 294 3709
Lucinda Bell 493 2t A0 819 28 82 1853
Charles Maudsley 74 22 416 861 17 &7 1823
Tirm Roberts 448 21 400 861 19 106 1835
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
Executrre Directors £000 €100 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chris Gitgg 800 21 1152 4,259 39 280 6551
Lucinda Bell 465 21 500 1863 17 48 2934
Charies Maudsley 425 22 5400 1470 16 b4 2737
Tim Roberts 427 22 570 1696 21 76 2812

Taxable benefits include car allowance private medicalinsurance and subsidised gym membership The Company provides the tax gross up on subsidised gym
rmembership and the figures included above are the grossed up values An adjustrment has been made to the prioryear s correspending arnount to reflact the fact
that gym membership benefits were not disclosed on a grossed up basis in that year

+ Gther items in the nature of remuneraiion include e assurance permanent health msurance annual medical check-ups professional subscription fees the value
of shares awarded under the all-employee Share Incentive Plan and the notional gain on exercise for any Sharesave Scheme optians that mature during the year

Fees Taxable henefits? Total

216 2015 016 2015 2016 ms
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors £000 £000 £000 £o00 £600 £000
Jokn Gitdersleeve [Chawmant 369 352 40 &0 429 412
Aubrey Adams 48 49 - - 48 &9
Swnon Borrows 48 &7 - - 48 &7
Lynn Gladden &7 1 1 - 48 1
Dido Harding* nfa 3 nfa - nfa 34
Witiam Jackson 70 66 - - 70 bb
Tiwn Score 88 73 1 - 89 73
tord Turnbuil 97 79 - - 97 79
Laura Wade-Gery’ 44 nfa - nfa 44, nfa

3 Taxable berefits inctude the Chairman s chauffeur cost and expenses iacurred by other Non-Executive Directors The Company provides the {ax gross up on these
benefits and the higures shown above are the grossed up values An ad,ustment has been made to the prior year s corresponding amount to reflect the fact that chaufteur
costs wera not disclesed on a gressed up basis in that year

¢ Dhdo Harding resigned as a Director on 10 Decemnber 2014

¥ Laura Wade-Gerywas apparnted as a Director on 13 May 2015
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Notes to the single total figure of remuneration table

@ Annual Incentive

N

The level of Annual Incentive award 1s deter mined by the Remuneration Committee based on Briish Land s perfor mance and each individual
Execulive Director s contribution during the year Annual Incentive measures ar e not strictly weighted and the Commuttee assesses performance
it the round The Comimittee s assessment for the year ended 31 March 201615 set oul below undertaken with reference to performance against

the following quanutative and qualitative measures using data available at the yearend

Quantitative Measures

Range of Range of
pertarnance performance
between hetween
median and in line with
1n bine wath expectations

expectations  and maximum pay-out

50%' pay-out
[performance
In lne with
expectations)

25%' pay-out
[ne pay-out below
this median pointl

160% pay out
{no ncreased
pay-out above
this maximum
pay-out point]

Narrative description of performance against measures

Praoperty
returns

Acceunting
returns

Rental
growth

Underlying
profii

performance

Unlevered property
capitalreturnvs IPD

Total property returns
vs IPD

Totat accounting return
vs property majors

Leasing activity vs ERV

ERV growthvs iPD

Profit growth vs budgel
and proper ty majors

¢

- Capitat growth of 6 8% outperformng IPD by 50bps both
Ratail and Otfices outparformed their sector indices

- Total property return of 11 3% pertorming in bnewith [PD
altraugh both Retail and Offices outperformed their sectar
indices

- Total accounting return above the estimated med:an of the
praperty majors at 15 8% when adjusted to reflect changes
1o UK Commerciat Stamp Duty [as described oppasite)

- Lettings and renewals % 8% ahead of ERV
- ERV growth of & 3% cutperforming 1P0 by 130 bps
both Retad and Offices cutperiormed their sectorindices

- Prohit growth of 16 0% ahead of budget and abave the
estimateo madian of the property majars

Qualitative Measures

Right
Places

Customer
Orientation

Capital
Efficiency

Expert
People

Progress on key
projects mcluding
developments, and
Execution of targeted
acquisitions and
disposals

Company reputzhian
with atl stakeholders
and

Supporting gelivery
of sustainability
objectives

Progress on
strengthening
the dividend and
Execution of
debt hinancings

Qualiy of people and
management renewal

r

- In Offices completed & Breadgate planning achieved at
100 Liverpool Street 1 Finsbury Avenue and Blossom Street
ptanmng application subrmmtted for 2 and 3 Finsbury Avenue

~In Retail completed Whiteley Phase 2 planning consent
received at Speke, planning applicatien submitted for
Eden Walk

- Public consultation for development of 46-acre site at
Canada Water

- Continued repositiening of the portioliowith £3 3tllion of
gross activiy acquisitions and investments balanced with
disposals i line with plan

- Awarded the Queen s Award for Enterprise the UK s highest
accolade for business success forour continued econemic
socral and environmental achrevermnents over five years

- Strong progress on developing Places People Prefer

- Customer satisfaction scare mantained at 79/10

- Maintamned nctusion in the four target £S6 Indices Dow Jones
Sustainabiity indices World and Europe FTSE4AGO0D and
GRESB {Furope Sector Leader]

- Fullyear dividend mcreased by 2 5 % to 28 34 pence per shars

- £915 million refinancings executed including £350 million zero
coupon convertibte bond

- Finance costs reduced further weighted average interest rate
reduced 50bps 103 3%
- Retained One Star rating for employee satisfaction

- Further strengthening of senror team with bwo external
Executive Committee appointments

' 25% of the maximum level = 37 5% of basic salary 50% of the maximum tevel 75 0% of basic salary 106% of the maximur levet = 150% of basic salary

102
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The incr ease In UK Commercial Stamp Duty which took effeclon 17 March 2016 unpacted the total accounting retur n [TARI and IFRS profits of
companies with a financial year end of 31 March 2814 but did not impact those with a financialyear end of 31 December 2615 The underlymng prefit
figure, used to assess Anaual Incentive per formance was not affected by the change to UK Commercia! Starp Duty So that the TAR performance
of British Land for 2019/16 can be compared on a itke-for-like basis with the other praperty majors an adjusted and audited figure for Brinish Land s
TAR which excludes the impact of the UK Commercial Stamp Duty change has been used lo assess performance In assessing the performance
of the comparator group for TAR and profit performance retative to property majors analysts consensus [before the impact of the UK Commerciat
Stamp Duty change) has been used for one company with a March year end and reported data has been used for the Decemberyear end companies

Over the year each Executive Director s individual performance was measured against objectives supporting the key areas of aur business model
Right Places Customer Onentation Capital Efficiency and Expert People The Group does not disclose prospective and retrospective performance
measures for individual performance beyond that disctosed above as the Directors consider this to be commercially sensttive this information will
not be disclosed at future dates for the same reason

Taking nto account corperate performance aganst the quantitative and gualitative measures over the year to 31 March 2014 asweilas each
Executive Director s individual performance the Rermuneration Commuttee set the Annual Incentive awards received by the Executive Directors
at the following tevels

Propartion of rmaximum
polential award granted
Executrve Director Yo

Chris Grigg &7
Lucinda Bell 55
Char les Maudsley &t
Tim Roberts &0

The maximum Annual Incentive award achievable 15 equivalent to 150% base salary The Remuneration Committee set the aggregate Annual
incentive received by the Executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2016 at 62% of the maximum [93% of base salaryl as compared with
B7% of the maximum [130% of base satary} for the yeat ended 31 March 2015

One third of each Executive Director s Annual Incentive award witt be deferred and used to purchase MSP Bonus Shares subjecttoa three-year

lholding requirement under Briish Land s Matching Share Plan [MSP] in accordance with Lhe current Remuneration Policy No further performance
measures apply 1o these deferred shares the MSP s descnbed on pages 99 to 100

@S Long term incentives [audited information)

Figures in the Long termincentives™ cotumn ar e compnised of awards vesting under the Long-Term incentive Plan [LTIP] and Matching Share Plan
[MSP] including where applicable dividend equivalent payments on those vesting awards and mterest accrued on those dvidend equivelents The
LTIP awards and MSP Matching awards granted to Executive Directos s in 2013 are inciuded sn the 2014 Long lerm incensves column Vesting of these
awards 1s subject to performance over the three year period to 31 March 2016 agamst the relevant perfor mance conditions which are detailed on
pages 99 to 100 The esbmated vesting values of these awards have been calculated using the average markel value for a Brirsh Land share for the
petiod from 1January 2016 to 31 March 2016 [702 6 pencel as the vesting share price

LTIP

Two equally weighted performance conditions are attached to the LTIP awards granted in 2013 measuning 8riush Land stotal property return (TPRI
relative to the funds in the December IPDUK Annual Property Index [the index) and tatal accounting return [TAR] relative to a comparator group of
Brissh Land and 16 other property companies These awards are due to vest on 5 August 2016 The inci ease (n UK Commercial Stamp Duty which
took effect on 17 March 2014 smpacied Briush Land s TPR at 31 March 2016 but did not impact the Index So that the performance ot the Company
and the Index can be compared on the same basis an adjusted and audited figure for Briush Land s TPR excluding the impact of the UK Commercial
Stamp Duty chenge has been used to assess LTIP TPR performance This adjustment will not be required in futui e years because when determiming
ETIP vesting lavels the impact of this UK Commereaal Stamp Duty change witi {a] atready have been reflected i the TPR of the Company and

the comparator group for awards granted in 2014 and 2015 and [bl be reflected in the start point for awards granted in 2016 and future years

The TPR partis expecled 10 vest at 69% based on Bntish Land s adjusted TPR of 14 9% compared to the Index median of 13 9% It1s estimated that
the TAR part witi vest at 46% the actual vesting rate of the TAR partwill be calcuiated once results have been published by all of the compantes
within the comparator groug This produces the estimated values on vesting set out in the table en the following page The actual vesting will be
confirmed by the Committee and provided i the 2017 Remuneration Report
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Estimated Estimated dmndend

Award pnce Mumber of percentage of  Estimated vatue of equiva'ent and

[exercise price] performance Number of award vesting awanrd on vesting nterest

Execulive Director LTIP award date [+] shares awarded options awarded % £000 ECCO
Chiis Gnigg 05/08/2013 601 266222 - 57 1057 125
Lucinda Belt 05/08/2013 601 116 056 194 T42 57 549 55
Charles Maudsley 05/08/2013 401 141 430 - 57 261 67
Timn Roberts 05/08/2013 601 141 430 - 57 561 67

The LTIP awards granted to Executive Directors in 2012 (which vested on 14 Seprember 2615 and are shown in the 2015 Long term mcentives column]
were subject to a perfermance condition assessing the growth in British Land s net asset value relative to the mcrease in the capital growth
component of the IPD UK Annual Proper ty Index This condiion is detailed on page 102 of the 2015 Annual Report The vesting values of these awards
have now been caicutaled using the acteal mar ket value on the day vesting replacing the estimated vesting vatues included ¢ the prior year s single
total figure of remuneration table

MSP

Two equally weighted per formance conditions are attached to the MSP Matching awards granted in 2013 measuring British Land s total shas ehaolder
return (TSR] relative to a compar ator group of 47 proper ty companies including British Lanc) and British Land s gross income growth [GIG] 1 elatve
to the IPD Quarterly Univer se {the Universe} These awardsare due to vest en 2 August 2016 Aon Hewitt has confirmed that the TSR part of the award
will lapse as Briish Land s TSR performance over the period was 38 0% compared to a median of 53 7% for the comparater group The GIS paitis
expected tovest at 100% as British Land s annualised GIG over the periad 1s expected te exceed the growth of the Universe by more than the upper
hurdle of 15% This produces the estimated values on vesting set out below The actuai vesting rate witl be confirmed by the Commuttee and provided
in the 2017 Remuneration Repor

Esumated Estimatad Estimated

Numtber of percentage of value of award dradend

Matching Shares awand vesting on vesting equivalent

Executive Director MSP award date awarded % £000 £000
Chrs Grigg 02/08/2013 127096 50 bbb 53
Lucinda Bell 02/08/2013 54 720 50 192 23
Charles Maudsiey 02/08/2013 59428 50 209 25
Tim Roberts 02/08/2013 59428 90 269 25

The MSP awards granied to Executive Dw ectors in 2012 lwhich vested on 7 Septernber 2015 and are shown in the 2315 Long term incentives column)
were subject 1o the same performance conditions as the MSP awards granted in 2013 The vesting values of these awards have now been calculated
using the actual market value on the day vesting replacing the estimated vesting values included i the prior year s singte total figure of
remuneration table

?@ Penston or pension altowance (audited information)

The figures shown in the Pension column represent the differing pension arrangements of the Executive Directors During the year ended 31 March
2016 Chris Grigg receved 35% basic salary as cash in lieu of pension and Charles Maudsley receved 15% basic salary as cash in lieu of pension
Lucinda Betl and Tim Roberts earned pension benehts in defined benefit schemes sponsored by the Company during the year The increase in value
over the year of thewr respeclive pensions 1s shown m the single total figure of remuneration table and further detail 1s provided on page 105

There are no additional benefits that will become recevable by a Director in the event that a Director reures early
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Share scheme interests anarded during the yvear (audited informanon})

Long-Term incentive Plan

The total fair value of each Executive Director s LTIP award for the year ended 31 March 2016 was equivalent to 200% of basic salary at grant Atgrant
each Dinector can indicate a preference as to the proportion of the award that they wish to receive as performance shares and the proportion that
they wish to receive as market value options The share price used to deterrmine the face value of performance shat es and the far value of options

- and theretore the number of performance shares and market value options awarded - 1s the average mar ket value of the Company s shares over
the three dealing days immediately prior to the day of award The performance conditions attached to these awards are detailed on page 100

Performance shares Number of Percentage vesting on
parfermance End of achevernent of rminimum

shares Facevalue  performance performance threshold

Executive Director Grant date granted €000 penod  Vesting date %
Chris Grgg 22/06/2045 154 949 1260 31/03/2018  22/06/2018 25
Lucinda Bell 22/06/2015 121 254 986  31/03/2018 22/06/2018 25
Chartes Maudsley 22/06/2015 109 756 892  31/03/2018  22/06/2018 25
Tim Roberts 22/06/2015 109756 892 31/03/2018 22/06/2018 25
Options Percentage vesting on
Number End of achievernent af minimum

of options Face value Fan value Exercise pnice  perforrance petformance threshold

Executive Director Grant date granted £000 foog' p period  Veshng date %
Chris Grigg 22/04{2015 206 599 1680 420 8245 310372018 22/06/2018 25

' Dptions are currently valued at one quarter of the value of a perfermance share therefure the fair value of each option awarded 1s one quarter of the face value
of the option

Matching Share Plan

The total face value of each Executive Diectlor s MSP Matching Share award for the year ended 31 March 2016 was equal to two thirds of therr
Annual Incentive award inrespect of the year ended 31 March 2015 eguivalent 1o ?1% basic salary at grant for Chris Grigg 68% far Lucinda Bell
81% for Charles Maudsley and 85% for Tun Roberts The share price used to detersmune the number of Matching Shares awarded is the market
value of the Company s shares on the day the proportton of the Annual Ircentive 1s deferred

Matehing Shares Number of Percentage vesting on
Matching End of achwevernent of mmirnum

Shares Facevalue  performance perforrnance threshold

Executive Director Grant date granted £000 pencd  Vesting date %
Chris Grigg 29/04/2015 94 348 768 31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25
Lucinda Bell 29/06/7015 40 950 333 31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25
Charles Maudsley 29/06/2015 44226 360 3/03/2018  29/06/2018 25
Tim Roberts 29/08/2015 46 682 380  31/03/2018  29/06/2018 25

Sharesave Scheme

The following options were granted to the Executive Diyectors during the year under the all-emptoyee Sharesave Scherme The exercise price s set
at a 20% discount to the average market price of the Campany s shares over the tiwree deating days immediately preceding mvitation 1o the Scheme
The cost of exercise 1s met entirely by the Director and s accumutated by deductions from salary over the period between grant and vesting

Cptions Total 1o be
deducied from
salary to cover Number of
exercise cost options Fatevalue Exercise pnce Eartest
Executive Director Grant date £000 granted £000 p o exercise date Expiry date
Luecnda Bell 22/06/2015 9 1291 9 697 01/09/2018  28/02/2019

Inrectors pension entitlements under the defined benefit pension seheme (andited information)

The betow table detads the defined benefit pension accrued by participating Directors at 31 March 2016

Defined benefit pension Normal

accrued al 31 March 2016 retirement

Executive Director £000 age
Luctnda Belt 101 60
Tim Raoberts 81 60

' The acerued pension s based on service 1o the year end and final pensionable salary at that date
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Dircctors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited information)

Directors shareholdings at 31 March 2016
The following table shows the Directors interests in fully paid ordinary British Land shares including shares held by connected persons and
for Executive Directors inctuding Matching Share Plan Bonus Shares and shares held in the Share Incentive Plan Al interests are beneficial

Holding at Helding a1
Director 31 March 2012 31 March 2015
Chris Grigg 1118 090 955 204
Lucinda Bell ) 152 894 164 201
Charles Maudsley 158 887 159 80t
Tim Roberts 173 042 274189
John Gildersleeve 5220 5220
Aubrey Adams 20 000 20000
Sirnon Borrows 300 660 300 000
Lynn Gladden 1665 i
William Jackson 120 304 42983
Tim Score 12 693 6946
lLerd Turnbull 20 471 18 790
Laura Wade-Gery' 14670 nfa

' Laura Wade-Gerywas appointed as a Director on 13 May 2015

Purchases after the year end up to one month befere publicatton of the Notice of Annual General Meeting

On 6 April 2016 Lynn Gladden was atlotted 1 063 shares Willam Jackson was allotted 484 shares Tim Score was attotted 1 414 shares Lord Tur nbull
was allotted 359 shares and Laura Wade-Ger y was allotted 718 shares all at a price of 6%6 3945 pence per share as part of their standmg
instructions to receive shares in full or part satisfaction of their Non-Executive Director s fees

On 14 April 2816 Chris Grigg purchased 20 shares Lucinda Bell purchased 20 shares Charles Maudsley purchased 17 shares and Tim Roberts
purchased 21 shares all at a price of 730 5208 pence per share under the partnership etement of the Share incentive Plan [SIP) Accordingly

Chris Grigg was awarded 40 shares Lucinda Bell was awarded 40 shares Charles Maudsleywas awarded 34 shares and Tim Roberts was
awarded 42 shares under the matching element of the SIP On 4 May 2014 Chris Grigy acquired 68 shares Lucinda Bell acquired 153 shares Charles
Maudstey acquired 50 shares and Tim Roberts acquired 144 shates all at a price of 722 pence per share under the dividend element of the SIP

Executve Directors mimimum shareholding guideline
The rinimum shareholding guidetine requires the Executive Directors to hold fully vested shares of a certamn perceniage of salary The number
and value of shares required as a target s fixed once a year

There isno set imescale required to reach the target but it should be achieved thr ough the regular additions anticipated by vestings of long term
incentive awards No purchases are required either to reach the evel or to respond to share price falls bit Executive Directors are expected to increase
their holding of shares each year unull the target s attained Shares included are those unfettered and beneficially owned by the Director and by his or
her connected persons {notincludmg deferred Annual Incentive Shat es Matching Share Plan Benus Shares or tocked-in Share Incentive Plan shares

The guideline shas eholdings for the year 10 31 Match 2017 are shown below
Percantage of

Percentage Unfettered  basic salary

of basic salary holding at held al

tc be held Suideline 31 March 31 March

Executive Director I shares holding 2016 2016
Chris Grigg 225% 269807 1031183 860%
Lucinda Bell 150% 105 567 122 478 174%
Chartes Maudsley 150% ¥5 557 N 707 183%
Tim Roberts 150% 95557 129031 203%

Although there 1s no guideline holdig for Non-Executive Directors they are encouraged 1o hold shares:n Briush Land The Company facilitates this
by offering Non-Executive Directors the abibity to purchase shares using therr post-lax fees Lynn Gladden William Jackson Tim Score Lord
Turnbult and Laura Wade-Gery received shares in full or part satisfaction of their Non-Executive Directors fees during the year
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Unvested share awards

Number Subject io End ot !
outstandng at  performance  performance
Executrve Director Type Date of grant 33 March 2016 measures penod' Vesting date
Chnis Grigg LTIP per formance shares 05/08/13 266 222 Yes 31/0316 05/08/16
LIIP perfermance shaies 23/0514 233 804 Yes 3103117 23/06/17
LTtP performance shares 22/0515 194 949 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 127 0%6 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/04/14 101 764 Yes 3/03/17 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 94 348 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18
Lucinda Belt LTIP performance shares 05/08/13 114 054 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/16
LTIP performance shares 23/06/14 135 898 Yes 31/03/17 23/06/17
LTIP peifor mance shares 22/06/15 121 254 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 34 720 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 43 816 Yes 31/03/17 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 40950 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18 ‘
Charles Maudstey LTIP performance shares 05/08/13 141 430 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/16 ‘
LTIP performance shares 23/06/14 124 208 Yes 31/03/17 23/06017 \
LTIP performance shares 22/06/15 109756 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 59 428 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/16
. MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 47 584 Yes 31/03/17 30/0617
MSP Matching Shar es 29/06/15 44 226 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18
Tim Roberts LTIP perfor mance shares 05/08/13 141 430 Yes 31/03/16 05/08/14
LTIP performance shares 23/06114 124 208 Yes 310317 23/06/17
LYIP performance shares 22/06/15 109 756 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18
MSP Matching Shares 02/08/13 59 428 Yes 31/03/16 02/08/16
MSP Matching Shares 30/06/t4 47 584 Yes 31/03/17 30/06/17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06N15 46 682 Yes 31/03/18 29/06/18

* Awards with a performance period ended 31/03/2016 are included within the 2016 Long term incentives column of the single totai figure of remuneration table on
page 101 The noles to the single total figure table on pages 103 to 104 outline the degree to which performance measureshave been orare expectedto be achieved
and the resuliant proportions of the awands that are expected lo vest

Unvested option awards fnot available to be exercised)

Number Subject to End of
Executive Director iype Date of gran ;‘r‘la!aarré?n r2\%1a; Opton pnc: per;?er;t;?]r:gg pedurr;:rf:;g‘ Dat:ngr:;gtﬁ; Exercrsg]t_'):ﬁ
Chns Grigg LTIP options 22/06/15 204 599 8245 Yes 31/03/18 22/06/18 22/06/25
Lucinda Bell LTIP epuians 05/08/13 194 742 601 Yes 31/03/14 05/08/1% 05/08/23
Sharesave options 23/06114 1567 574 No n/a 01/0917 28/02/18
Sharesave options 22/06/15 129 897 No nfa 01/0%9/18 28/02/19
[1m Roberts Sharesave options 19/06/13 2.348 511 No nfa 01/09/18 28/02/19
Sharesave options 23/06/14 3135 574 No nfa 01/09/19 29/02/20

' Awards with a performance paniod ended 31/G3/2016 are inctuded within the 2014 Lang term incentives column of the single total higure of remuneration table on
page 101 The notes to the single total figure table on pages 103 to 104 outline the degree to which periormance measures have been or are expected to De achieved
and the resultant proportions of the awards that are expecied to vest
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Vested option awards {available to be exercised)

Number
Executive Diractor Type Date of grant grﬁaargg%fét Opuan prlc: Exemsﬁr?:?l
Chis Grigg LTIP aptions 29/06/09 7751 387 29/06/19
LTIP options 11/06/10 1073 825 447 11/06/20
LTIP options 28/06/11 695 652 575 28/06/2%
LT options 14/0912 T3 494 538 14/09/22
Lucinda Bell LTIP options 11/06/10 67952 447 11/06/20
LTtP options 14/32/10 11764 510 14/12/20
LTIP options 14/09/12 138 289 538 14/39/22

Optiens exercised during the year ended 31 March 2014

Number  Option price

Date became

Market price on
date of exercise

Executive Director Type Date of grant exercised p exercisable Date exercised p
Lucinda Beil Sharesave options 26/06/12 2295 392 01/99/15 D1/0915 8035
Tim Roberts LTiP options 05/12/05 17,483 8234 05/12/08 01/12/15 846
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Further disclosures

Relative Importance of spend on pay

The graph below shows the amount spent on remuneraton of all
employees Including Executive Directors] retative to the amount spent
on distributions to shareholders for the years to 31 March 2016 and

31 Maich 2015 Remuneration of employees increased by 7% relative to
the prior year and distiibutions to shareholders increased by 3%
Distributians to sharehelders include ardinary and scrip dividends and
the split between property income distnbutions (P10} and non-property
necome distributions (non-PI0 s shawn

Relutrr e importance of spend on pay

PWesm
S N, o7

W c7sm

2015/16

2014/15
£277m

Seven-year total shareholder return and Chief Executive s remuseration
The graph to the nght shows British Land s tetal shar eholder return for
the seven years from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2016 against that of the
FTSE Real Eslate Investment Trusts [REIT} Total Return Index for the
same period The graph shows how the total t etur iy on a £100 investment
inthe Company made en 1 Aprit 7009 would have changed ever the
seven-year period measured compared with the total return on a £100
wnwestment in the FTSE REHT Total Return Index The FTSE REIT Jotal
Return tndex has been selected as a suitahle comparator because it is
the index m which British Land s shai es are classified

Remuneration of employees including Directors
W wages & satares

O Annual Incentives

[ Social security costs

H Pension costs

B Cqusty-settled shaie-based payments

Distrsbutions to shareholders

B PIC cash dividends paid to sharehoiders

B PID tax withholding

B net cash equivatent of new shares issued under
Non-PID Sciip dividends

M Net cash equivatent of new shai es 1Issued under
PID Sciip dwvidends

Total Shareholder Return
Rebased to 100, April 2009
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300 //
250 A

/|

///

el
200 7
The 2007 base point required by the reguiations governing this /--._______/
remuneration report disclosure was close to the bottorm of the property /"“--.___
cvcle B 150 A
ycle Brinsh Land s share price had not fallen as much at that trne as [
the average share price of the FTSE REITs Sector thereby setiing a
higher base point for subsequent growth The 1able below detaits the total g
remuneration of the persan undertaking the role of Chief Executive over Aprit April Apnl Apni Apri Apnl Apnl March
the same period calculated o the same basis as the single total figure 200 2m0 am a2 3 s WS 06
of remuneraticn 1able and the Annual Incentive payouts and lang term & The British Land Company PLC
incentive vesting rales as a percentage of the maximum oppartunity ® FTSE REITs Sector
Source Aon Hewitt

2010 201 maz2 2613 2014 2015 2016
Chief Executive Chris Grigg Chris Grigg Chiis Grigg Chns Grigg Chns Gngg Chris Gngg Chnis Gngg
Chief Executive s single totat figure
of remunearation [E00G] 2082 2329 5353 4810 5398 6551 3709
Annual incentive payout against maximum
opportunity [%] &7 83 75 75 90 &7
Long term incentives vesting rate against
maximurm opportunity (%l nfa nfa 99 43 98 54
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Chief Executive s remuneration compared to remuneration of Briish Land employees

The below table shows the percentage changes in different elements of the Chief Executive s remuneratien relative 1o the previous financial year
and the average percentage changes in those elements of remuneration for employees based at British Land s head effice over the same pertod
Head office employees have been chosen as an appropriate comparator group for this purpose as employees hased at British Land s head office
carry out work of the most similar nature to the Chief Executive

Average change

Value of Chief Value of Chief Change m n remungration

Executive Executve Chiefl Executive elament of

remuneration rermuneration remuneration Briish Land

elament 2014 element 2015 element empioyees

Remuneration element £000 £000 % %
Salary 840 800 20 54
Taxable benefins 21 21 0o 27
Annual Incentive 841 1152 =271 -68

Executive Directors external appointments

Executive Directors may take up one non-executive directorship at another FTSE company subject to British Land Board approvat Chris Grigg was
appointed a non-executive director of BAE Systems picon 1 July 2013 During the year to 31 March 2014 Chris Grigg received a fee of £86 495
lincluding £2 495 of expenses deemed to be taxable! fram BAE Systems plc which he retained in full Lucinda Beil was appointed a non-executive
director of Rc&ork plc on 10 July 2014 Duitng the year to 31 March 2016 Lucinda Bell received a fee of £43,625 from Rotork ple which she retained
infull[D12)

Statement of voting at the Annual General Meeting
The table betow details the resulis of the shareholder vote to approve the Directors Remuneration Report at the 2015 AGM and the sharehglder vote
to approve the current Remuneration Policy at the 2014 AGM The Comrmutiee was pleased to note the high levels of sharebolder suppert

Votes % Votas % Total votes Votes
Resolution AGM for for against against cast withheld
Approval of Directors Remuneration Report 201H 680 540 864 9753 17257841 247 697798705 54 059347
Approval of Directors Remuner ation Policy 2014 684 058 054 9730 iB953424 270 703011480 1198 374

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors remuneration

‘Throughout the year the Remuneration Commuttee was chaired by Lord Turnbull Lynn Gladden and William Jackson were members of the
Cornmuttee throughout the year Laura Wade-Gery was appointed as a Director of the Company and member of the Comrmuttee on 13 May 2015
The fotlowing persons assisted the Committee during the year Chris Grigg {Chief Executive] Joff Sharpe [Head of Operations] Elaine Withams
Charles Middieton and Viclonia Penrice {each of whom acted as secretary to the Remuneration Cornmittee during the year] and Alan Judes

of Sty ategic Remuneration

The Comrmittee appainted Atan Judes of Strategic Remunerstion as its independent advisor for the year He also gave advice to the Company on
human resour ces and share plan matters The Committee is satisfied ther e ts no cenflict in fum providing such services to the Company Stratege
Remuneration 1s a member of the Remuneraticn Consultants Group and adheres to the Remuneration Consultants Group s Code of Conduct
Strategic Remuneration was selected by the Chatrman of the Remuneration Committee following a compeltive tender process

The Committee assesses the advice given by Alan Jfudes of Strategic Remuneration to satisty isetl that the advice receved 1s objective and
independent Alan fudes has a private meeting with the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee once a year in accordance with the Code
of Conduct of the Remuneration Consultants Group Fees chat ged by Strategic Remuner ation for the year amounted to £48 400 excluding VAT
[£73 400 excluding VAT for the year ended 31 March 2015) and are charged on a tme basis

This Report was approved by the Board on 16 May 2016

A,\J__,«._ff(_‘w

Lord Turnbull

Chairman of the Remuneration Committes
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DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Ihrectors report and additional disclosures

The Directors present their report on the affairs of the Group together
with the audited financial statements and the report of the auditor for
theyear ended 31 March 2016 information required to be disclosed

in the Directors Reportmay be found below and i the following
sections of the Annual Repor t and Accounts 2016

Each ordinary share carries the rnight to participaie equally in distributions
and dividends There are neither restrictions on the transfer of shaies nor
on the size of a holding

At the AGM 1n 2015 the Directorswere given the power to allot shares
up to a nominal amount of £85 056 863 as well as additional authority
io allot a further £85 054,863 on a nghts issue This authority expires
at thisyear s AGM atwhich a similar resolution wili be proposed

The1ssued share capital has been increased during the year by fully paid
155u¢es as follows

Number of ordinary
shares of 25p

15 April 201510 Sharesin leu of

Section n

Information Annuval Report Page
Dividend recemmended during
the year Strategic Repor t 52
Sustainability governance Strategic Repori 150 17

Governance and
Polical donations and expenditure remuneration 78
Greenhouse gas emissions Strategic Report 48
Financial instruments - nisk management
objectives and policies Strategic Report 54
Future developments of the business of
the Company Strategic Report 5019
Employment poticies and employee Governance and
involvement remuneraton  77and 85
Risk factors and principat risks Strategic Report 57 0 63

Articles of Association
The Carnpany s Articles of Association may only be amended by speoial
resolution at a generat meeling ol shareholders

Subject to apphicable law and the Company s Articles of Assoclation
the Directors may exercise all powers of the Company

Matiers reserved for Board approval see page 73

Bourd of Directors

The Directors bisted on the Board of Directors pages constituted the
Board during the year in accordance with best practice the Directors
will retire at the AGM and wiil offer thernselves for etection and annual
re-election asreguired

Board of Direclors see pages 66 to 6%

Directors' hability insurance and mdemmty

The Company has inderanified sts current Directors The indemnity
arrangements are qualifying indemnity prowvistons under the Companies
Act 2006 and are currently in force at the date of this Report [A13]@

Purchase of owa shares

The Company was granted authority at the AGM in 2015 to puichase 1ts
own shares up to a total aggregate value of 10% of the 1ssued nominal
capital subject to market-standard maximum and minimurn price
constraints That authority expires at thus year s AGM and a resolution
will be proposed for its renewal During the year the Company made no
purchases of its own shares

Share capital

The Company has one class of ordinary share and all shares are fully
paid £25 pence eachl On a poll at a generat meeting every holder or proxy
has one vote for every shar e that they hold On a show of hands at a
general meeting each hotder and proxy has one vole

14 January 2015 Directors fees 12 504
1 April 2015 to On exercise of options
30 March 2014 under the Long-Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP] 603 817
15 May 2015 to Onvesting of shares
21 Decamber 2015 under the LTiP 894 76
7 Apnl 201510 Onvesting of shares
16 September 2015 under the Fund Managers
Perfermance Plan 3609856
15 April 201510 On exercise of options under
4 March 2016 the Sharesave Scheme 134167
5 August 2015 1o
12 February 2016 Scyip altotment 6 407945
21 August 2015 Share Incentve Plan Free
Share Award aliotment 177066
Onvesting of Matching
07 Septerber 2015 Shares under the Matchig
Share Plan {MSP] 182831

Substantial interests
As at 31 March 2014 the Company had been notified of the followmg
major nterests in its ordinar y shares

Percentage of

{nterests in the ordinary shares

Company s €N 1ssue

ordinary shares %

Blackrock inc? 86 222 399 829
Norges Bank 61,739 045 593
APG Algernene Pensioen Groep NV 91212198 492
GIC Private Limited 41042 589 394

' Ofthe 84 222 399 share interests notthed ta the Company by Blackrock 327 645
share Interests are held pursuant to qualifying financial instruments [or financial
instruments with skmilar econemic effect) The remainder of Blackrock s
holding and all other substanuialbinierests listed in the above table arise from
direct or tndirect snterests in ordinary shares

So far as the Company I1s aware no other person holds a notifiable
interest in the Company s ordinary shares

Since the year end but prior 1o the date of this Report the Company has
been notified by GIC Private Limited that its interests in the Cempany s
ordinary shares has increased 1041 226 746
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Warver of dividends

Under the trust deed establishing the British Land Employee Share
Trust the trustee has waived any dividends payable in respect of any
shares held by them unless otherwtse directed by ihe Company [other
than in respect of shares held asa nomineel

Significant agreements
There are no significant agreements to which the Company 1s party that
take effect atter or terirunate upon a change of controt of the Company

Pavments policy

We recognise the importance of good supplier relationships ta the
overall success of our busimess We manage dealings with supptiers
In a far consistent and transparent manner and have signed up o the
UK Government s Prompt Payment Code At the year end there were
34 (2015 36} suppliers days outstanding

Events after the balance sheet date
There were no reportable events after the balance sheet date

Auditor

The Audit Commuttee has recommended resolutions at the 2016 AGM to
reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Company s auditor and
to authonse the Audit Committee to agree the auditor s remuneralian

Disclosure of information to audito

Each cf the persens who 15 a D ector at the date of appt oval of this

Report confirms that

- sofaras the Directorisaware there (s no relevant audit information
of which the Company s auditar 1s unaware and

- the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken
as a Director in order to make himselt/herself aware of any relevant
aud:t information end to establish that the Company s auditor 1s aware
of that information

This confitmatian is given and should be interpreted in accordance with
the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Disclosures under Listing Rule 9.8 4R
Information required to be disclosed in compliance with LR 9 8 4R may
be feund in the following sections

Section in
fnformatton Annval Report Page
Amount of iInterest Financal statemenis 132

capilalised by the Group

Other infotmation 184 (¢ 204
unaudited

Additonal unaudited
financial infor mation

Waiver of dwidends Additienat thsclosures 112

Governance arrangements

Infarmation regarding the Company s governance arrangements is set
out on pages 66 to 85 These pages are incoerporated by 1 eference into
the Directors Report
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Directors’ mterests in contracts and conflicts

of mterest

No contract existed during the year in relation to the Company s business
in which any Dir eclor was materally interested

The Company s policy 1s that Directors notify the Chairman and the
Company Secretary of all new outside interests and conflicts of interest
asand when theyanise The noufication s then annually referred to the
Board for approval Furthermore the Boardieviews the policy on an
annual basis and following the most recent review i November 20151t
concluded that the palicy operated elfectively

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The AGM of The British Land Cornpany PLC will be held at The Montcalm
London Marble Arch 34-40 Graat Cumberland Place tondon WIH 7TW
on Tuesday 19 July 20146 at 1130 am Further mformation will be
availabte on the Notice of ABM ([ 2 4)@ The AGM s the principal
occasion when shareholders aire able to ask questons of their Board
and the chairmen of the mamn committees We togk ferward to seeing
you there [E 2 3@

Management Report

The Strategte Report and the Directors Report together ar e the
management report for the purpeses of the FCAs Dhsclosure &
Transparency Rules [DTR 4 15R)

The Director s Repor t was approved on behalf of the Board on 16 May 2014

F e

Elaine Williams
Company Secretary and General Counsel
16 May 2016




DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Dwectors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
the Directors Remuneration Report and the financsal statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company taw requires the Directors to prepare financial staterments
for each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Group financial statements in accordance with international Financiat
Reporting Standards (IFRSs! as adopied by the European Urion and
the parent Company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdomn Gener atly Accepled Accounting Practice [United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law]

Under Company law the [lirector s must not approve the financial
staternents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the proht or loss
of the Group for that period In preparing these financial statements the
Orectors ate requued to
- select sutable accounting policies and then apply therm consistently
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent
- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Unian and applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject te any materral
departures disclosed and explained in the Group and parent Company
financial statements respectively and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern hasis
unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business

The Directors are respanstbole for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s iransactions and
disclose with reasonable aceur acy at any time the financizl pesition of

the Company and the Group and enable them Lo ensure that the financial
staterments and the Directors Remuneration Report compty with the
Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group financial statements
Articte 4 of the A% Regulation They are also respansible for safequarding
the assets of the Campany and the Group and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other ircegularities

The Directors are respansibie for the maintenance and integrity of the
Company s wehsite Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
tegislatien sn othes jurisdictions

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts taken
as awhole s fair balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s
postion and performance business model and strategy

Each of the Directors whose names and functions are listed In the

governance and remuneration section confirm that to the best of

therr knowledge

- the Group financial statements which have been prepared in accardance
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU give a true and far view of the assets
liabshities financial posttion and profit of the Group and

- the Strategic Report and the Directors Report include a fair review
of the develepment and performance of the business and the position
of the Group together with a description of the principal nisks and
uncertainties that it faces

By or der of the Board

Umeld

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financral Officer
16 May 2016
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Financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 70 THE MEMBERS OF THE

BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC

Report on the financial statements

Our opinton

In our opinion

- the British Land Company PLC s Group hnancial statements and
Company financial staternents the iinancial statements | grve a true
and fair view of the state of the Group s and of the Company s affairs as
at 31 March 2016 and of the Group s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended

- the Group financial staternents have been property prepared in
accordance with International Financial Repor ting Standards [ IFRSs }
as adopted by the European Uman

~ the Company financial statements have been properly prepared
n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Pracuce and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group
frnancial statements Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

Our audit approach

Overview

Our 2014 audit was planned and executed having regard to the fact

that the Group s operations were largely unchanged in nature from

the previous year additionally there have been no significant changes
to the valuation methodalogy and accounting standards relevani to the
Group Inlight of this our approach to the auditin terms of scoping and
areas of focus was largely unchanged

Atull scope audit was perfor med by the Group team for all subsidianies
of the Group and the foflowing joint ventures Broadgate Meadowhall
and Leadenball

Matenality

- Overall Group matenality £138 million [2014/15 €130 milbon] which
represents 1% of Total assets

- Specific Group materiality applied to pre-tax profit £18 mullon [2014/15
£15 mitlion) which represents 5% of undertying pre-tax profit

What we have audited
The financial statements included within the Annual Reporl comprise
- the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016

Areas of focus
-~ Valuation of (nvestment and development properties

- the Company Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016

- the Consclidated Income Statement 2nd the Cansolidated Staternent of
Comprehensive Income for the year then ended

- the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended

- the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and

- the notes to the financiat statements which include a summary of
significant accounung policies and other explanatory information

Certan requi ed disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the
Annual Report rather than in the notes o the financial staterments
These are ¢ross-1eferenced from the financiat statements and are
ilenufied as audited

The financiat reporting framewor k that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and
{FRSs as adopted by the turopean Union The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Company
financial staternents 1s applicable law and United Kingdomn Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework
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- Revenue recognition  specifically focusing on non-standard revenue
transactions

- Accounting for transactions including acguisitions and disposats of
Investment properties review of the accounting lreatment of the deferred
consideration recewved from one of the Group s joink venture partners the
£110 muilton debenture bonds tender offer and purchase and the 1ssuance
of £350 mullion convertible bonds in the year

- Taxation - REI status and 1ax provistions

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted our audit in accor dance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and lreland} [ [SAs [UK & ireland} }

We designed our audit by determining mateniality and assessing the
nisks of material misstatement in the hinangal statements In par ticular,
we looked at where the Directors made subjective jJudgements for
example in signticant accounting estimates that involved making
assumpliens and considering future events that are inherently uncertain
Asin all of our audiis we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls inctuding evalualing whether there was
evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a nsk of matenal
misstatement due to fraud

The risks of matenat misstatement that had the greatest effect onour
audit including the atlocation of our resources and effort aredenttfied
as areas of focus inthe 1able below We have also set out how we
taillored our audit to address these specific areas in order to provide an
opinioa on the iinancial statements as a whole and any comments we
make on the results of o procedur es should be read in this context
This 1s not 3 complete list of alt risks identified by our audit




Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Yaluation of iInvestment and development properties
Reler to pages 8010 83 (Repor t of the Audit Committee} pages 127
to 129 {Accounting policies] and pages 134 to 139 [Note)

The Group s investment proper ty portfelio 1s split between office
and residential properties in London retad and lessure properties
across the UK and the assets at the Canada Water site with a
valisation in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of £9 643 mulbion

The valuat:on of the Group s investment proper ty portfolio 1s inherenily
subjective due to amaong other factors the individual nature of each
property its location and the expected future rentals for that particular
proper ty For developments factorsinclude projected cosls to complete
and tming of practical completion

The valuations were carried out by third party vatuers CB Richard Ellis
and Kmight Frank (the Valuers) The Valuers were engaged by the
Directers and performed their work in accordance with the Royat
Institute of Chartered Surveyors | RICS | Valuduion - Professional
Standards The Valuers used by the Group have considerable
experience of the markets in which the Group operates

In determining a property swvaluation the Valuers take :nte

account property-specific infermation such as the current tenancy
agreements and rental Income They apply assurnptions for yrelds and
estimated market rent which are influenced by prevaiing market yields
and comparable market transactions to arrive at the final valuation

For developments the residual appraisel method 1s used by estimating
the tair value of the comgleted project using a capitalisation method less
estimated costs to completion and a nisk premium

The significance of the estirmates and judgemenis involved coupled with
the fact that only a small percentage difference m individual property
valuations when aggregated could result in a matersal misstatermnent
warranis specific audit focusinthis area

There wer e also a number of specific factors affecting the vatuations

In the year

- a number of developrments that were completed in the year are now
valued as standing investment properties so we have paid pai ticular
focus to the valuation rmethodology applied to those assets

- the nature of the Canada Water site which cemprises three contiguous
sites that Bntish Land are currently mester-planning as a combined
targe scale mixed use development site resulted in our audit paying
particutar focus to the relevant valuatrons and

- the UK supermarket sector rontinues to be an area of focus given
performance n the sector

We read the valuation reports for all the properties and confirmed
that the valuation approach for each was m accordance with RICS
standards and suitabte for use in deterrening the carrying value
for the purpose of the financiat staterents

We assessed the Valuers qualifications and expertise and read thesr
terms of engagement with the Group to determine whether there
were any matters that might have affected their objectivity or may
have iImposed scope timitations upon their work We also considered
fee arrangements between the Valuer s and the Group and other
engagements which might exist between the Group and the Valuers
We found no evidence to suggest that the objectivity of the Vatuers

in their performance of the valuations was compromised

We performed testing on the standing data in the Group s information
systems concerning the valuation process We carred out procedures
on a sample basis to satisfy ourselves of the accuracy of the property
information supplied to the Valuers by management For developments
we conhrmed that the supporting information for construciton ¢ ontracts
and budgets which was supplied to the Valuers wds also consistent
with the Group s records

The audit team 1ncluding our valuation specialists attended

meetings with each of the Valuers at wiich the valuations and the key
assumptions theremn wer e discussed Qur work focused on the largest
properties in the portfolio and those where the assumptions used and/or
year-on-year caprtal value movement suggested a possible outlier

ver sus market data for the relevant sector We also focused on

super stores Canada Water and completed developments for the
reasons referred 1o opposite We compared the investment yields used
by the Valuers with an estimated range of expected yields deterrmined
via reference to published benchmarks We also considered the
reasonableness aof other assumptions that are not so 1eadily comparable
with published benchmarks suchas Estimated Rental Value [ ERV | void
sates and rent-free periods Finally we evaluated year-on-year
mavemnents in capital value with reference to published benchmarks
Where assumpttons were outside the expected range or otherwise
unusual and/or valuations showed unexpected mavements we
discussed these with the Valuers m our meetings held with thern and
abtamed additional audit evidence to support the explanatiens received
e g capies of lease agreements to support new lettings that have
increased vatuation during the peniod i this way professional
scepticism was exercised in our evaluation of whether assumptions were
appropriate in ight of the evidence provided by significant transactions
which had taken place in the market during the year

itwas evident from our interact:on with management and the Valuers
and from our review of the valuabion reports that close attention had
been paid to each property s individual charactenstics at agranutar
tenant by ienant level aswell as considering the overail quality,
geographec locatron and desiratitity of the asset as a whole The
evaluation of what were the appropriate assumptions to apply to any
given property included determining the level of impac! that recent
and sign#ficant market transactions shauld have on each indwiduat
property s valuation, given sts unigue characteristics thd net reveal
any 1ssues We saw evidence that altes native assumptions had been
considered and evaluated by management and the Valuers before
determining the final valuation We concluded that the assumptions used
n the valuations were suppor table in ight of avaslahle and comparable
mat ket evidence
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Financial statements

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Area of focus

How our audt addressed the area of focus

Revenue recognition
Refer to pages 80 to 83 [Report of the Audit Commuttee} pages 127
10 129 iAccountng policies] and page 131 [Note]

Revenue for the Group consists primartly of rental income Rental
mcome s based on tenancy agreements where there 1s a standard
processn place for recording revenue which 1s system generated
There are however certain transactions within revenue that warrant
additional audit focus because of an increased mherent nisk of error
due 1o their non-standard nature

These nclude spreading of occupier incentives and guaranteed rent
tncreases - these batances regutr e agjustments made to rental mcome
lo ensure revenue s recorded on a straight-line basis over the course
aof & lease

We carried out tests of contrets aver the cash and accounts recevable
processes and theretated IT systems to obtain evidence that postings to
these accounts were reliable For rental income balances we then used
data-enabied sudi technigues to identify all standard 1evenue journals
pested using these systems and processes

The remarung journals related to non-standard transactions These
included reclassifications within reverue accrued income and bad debt
provisions For each category of non-standard revenue surmmarised
above we have understood the nature and assessed the reasonableness
of journals being generated and performed suhstantive testing over

a sampie of these iterns There have been no exceptions arising fram
our testing over non-standard revenue i ansactions

Foi balances notincluded within rental income such as service charge
income we perfor med substantive testing on a sample basis Ne issues
were noted

Accounting for transactions
Referto pages 80to 83 [Report of the Audit Commuttee) pages 127
to 129 {Accounting policies) and pages 130 to 164 (Notes to Accountst

There have been a number of transactions during the year
These warranted additienal audit focus due to the magmitude
of transactions and the potential for complex contractual terms
that introduce Judgement into how they were accounted for
Key transactions subject to additional audit focus were
- purchase of additional units in HUT for £59 million
- acquisibion of One Shetdon Square for £210 miition
—1ssuance of £350 rniflion convertible bonds
- recognition of deferred consideration recewved from
one of the Group s joint venture partoers
- profit on disposat of mnvesiment propet ties and trading
properties of £45 millien and
- £110 mitlion debenture bonds tender offer and purchase

For each transaction we understood the natur e of the transaction and
assessed the proposed accounting treatment in retation to the Group s
accounting policies and relevant [FRSs

For the purchase of additional units In HUT we agreed the net asset
value used i the shai e price calculation to supporting information
including external Net Assel Value certificates

For atl acquisitions and disposals we chtamed and reviewed the key
suppor ing documentation such as Sales and Pur chase Agreements
and completion statements Consider ation recewved or paid was agreed
to bank statements and defer red consider ation postings No matenial
issueswere found as a result of these procedures

For the conver tible bond we have inspected the bond agi eernent
and obtamed evidence of all the key inputs into the bond 1ssue price
We have also consider ed the accounting treatment and concurred
with management s treatment

For the deferred consideration recewed from one of the Group s jont
venture partners we have inspected the sharehotder agreement that
gaverns the fee payment oblained evidence that the milestones that
trigger the payment have been met and have inspected the calculation
of the payment amount and agreed the cash 1 eceipt We have assessed
the accounting treatment and concurwith the treatment

For the debenture bonds tender offer and purchase we have agreed
the repayment af the debentures and recalculated the finance charge
ncurred through agreeing the various tender docurnents resolutions
contained in the Committee of the Board and cash payments The
linance charges have been expensed through the income Statement
We have reviewed this treatment and concur with this
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Area of locus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Taxation
Refer to pages 80 to 83 {Report of the Audit Committee}
pages 127 to 129 {Accounting policies) and pages 133 and 146 [Notes]

The Group s status as a REIT underpins its business madel and
shareholderreturns For this reason it warrants special audit focus
The gbligations of the REIT reqrme include requirements ta comply with
balance of business dividend and imcome cover tests The Broadgate
Joint venture 1s also structured as a REIT and as such REIT compliance
15 alse of relevance for this joint venture in adchitian to the overall Group

Tax provisions are in place to account for the 11sk of challenge
of certain of the Group s tax provisiens Civen the subjective
nature of these provisions additional audit focus was placed
On ax provisions

We re-performed the Group s annual REIT compliance tests aswellas
those tests for the Broadgate REIT Based on our work perfoermed we
agreed with management s assessment that all RE17 compliance tests
had been met to ensure that the Group and Broadgate maintains its
REIT status

We used our tax expertise lo evaluate tax provisions and petential
exposuiesas at 31 March 2016 challenging the Groug s assurmptions and
judgements through our knowledge of tax circumstances and by reading
relevant correspondence between the Group and Her Majesty s Revenue
& Customs and the Group s external iax advisors We concluded that the
tax provisions were within an appropriate range based on the supporting
infor mation provided by the Group s tax department

How we tailored the audst scope

We tatlored the scope of our audit to ensus e that we performed ensugh
work to be able to give an opimion on the financial statements as a whole
taking into account the st uctur e of the Group the accounting processes
and controls and the industry in which the Group operates

The Group and Company financial slatements as e produced using
single cansolidation system that has a direct interface with the general
ledger We performed our audit procedus es over the generat ledger
systern and tested the interface with the consolidation system

Afull scope audit was performed by the Group audit team for all
subsidiaries of the Group and the following joint ventures Broadgate
Meadowhall and Leadenhail This gives coverage over substantially
all of the Group

In establishing the averall approach 1o our audit we assessed the risk
of material misstatement taking into account the nature kkelihood and
potential magmtude of any misstatement Following this assessment
we applied professienal judgement to determine the extent of testing
required cver each batance in the financial statements

Matenality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materratity

We sel certam quantitative thresholds for materiality These together
with qualitative considerations helped us to determine the scope of our
audit 2nd the nature timing and extent of our audit procedures on the
indiidual financial statement Line items and disclosures and in evaluaing
the effect of muisstatements both ingividually and on the financial
statements as a whote

Based on our professional judgement we determined matersality
for the financial statements as a whole as lollows

Overall Group matenality £138 milkon

How we determtned 1t 1% of toial assets

Rationate for benchmark applied A key determinant of the

Group s values direct property
tvestments Due tothis the key
area of focus in the auditis the
valuation of nvestment properties
On this basis we set an overall
Group matertality level based

on total assets

In addition we sel a specific materiality level of £18 mallion [2014/15

£15 mullion] for items within underlymng pre-tax proht This equates to 5%
of profit before tax adjusted for capital and ather items Inarriving at this
Judgement we had regard to the fact that the underlying pre-tax profit

1s @ secondary financial indicator of the Group [reter to note 2 of the
financial statements page 130 where the term is defined in full)

We agreed with the Audit Commuittee that we would report to them
misstatements ident:fied during our audit of underlying pre-tax tems
above €1 million [2014/15 £3 milliont as well as misstaternents below
that amount that 1n our view warranted reporting for gualitative reasons
Thisyear we agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to
them any misstaternents identilted during our audit of capital and other
items abave £6 9 mithion [2014/15 n/a) as well as missiatements below
that amount that in our view warranted reporting for qualitative reasons

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors
slatement setout onpage 77 wrelation to gowng concern

We have nothing to repar { having performed our review

Under 1SAs [UK & Ireland] we are required to report to you if we have
anything materiat lo add or to draw atlention to in relation to the
Directors statement about whether they cansidered it appropriate to
adopl the gomg concer n basis i1 preparing the financial statements We
have nothing material lo add or to draw attention to

As noted in the Directors statement the Directors have concluded that ot
1s appropriate to adopt the going concer n basis in preparing the financial
slatements The gowng concer n basis presumes that the Group and
Company have adequadte resources to remain in operation and that the
Directors mtend thern to do so for at least one year from the date the
financial statements were signed As part of our audif we have conctuded
that the Dir ectors use of the going concern hasis 1s appropriate
However because not all fulure events or conditions can be predicted
these statements are not a guaraniee as to the Group s and Company s
abiity to continue as a going concern
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Financial statements

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Other required 1eporting
Conststency of other information

Companies Act 2006 opinion

in our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and

the Directors Report for the financial year for which the finanaial
statements are prepat ed 1s consistent with the financial statements

1SAs {UK & Ireland) reporting
Under iSAs {UK & ireland] we are required to repor t to you if
IR OUF opINION

- Informatton in the Annual Report is We have no exceptions
- matenally inconsistent with the information  to report
in the audited inanoal statements or
- apparently materially incor rect based on or
matenally iInconsistent with our knowledge
of the Group and Company acquired in the
course of perferming our audit or
- otherwise misteading

We have no excepttons
lo report

- The statement given by the Directors on
page 76 in accordance wath provision C 11
of the UK Corporate Governance Code {the
Code ] that they consider the Annuat Report
taken as a whole to be fair batanced and
understandable and provides the mformation
necessary for members to assess the Group s
and Companys perfor mance business modet
and strategy 15 matenially nconsrstent wath
our knowledge of the Group and Company
acquired in the course of performing our audit

We have no exceptions
to report

- The section of the Anrual Report on page 82
as required by prowis:on C 3 8 of the Code
descnbing the work of the Audit Comunitlee
does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit Committee
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The Directors assessment of the prospects of the Group and of
the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or bquidity
of the Group

Under 1SAs [UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if we have
anything material to add or to draw attention {o i relation to

We have nothing matenal
to add or to draw
attention to

- the Directars confirmation an page 76
of the Annual Report in dccordance with
provision G 2 1 of the Code that they have
carried out a robust assessment of the
princtpat nsks facing the Group including
those that would thieaten sis business mode!
future performance solvency or byuidity

- the disclosures in the Annual Report
that descnbe those risks and explain how
they are being maneged or mitigated

We have nothing matenial
to add or to draw
altention o

We have nothing material
to add or to draw
attention to

~ the Directors explanation on page 58
of the Annual Report 1n accordance with
provision C 2 2 of the Code as to how
they have assessed the prospects of the
Group over what penod they have done
so and why they eansider that period to
be appropriate and their statement as
ta whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able
to continue W operation and meetits
labttities as they fall due over the penod
of their assessment including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary qualifications or assumptions

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors
statement that they have cariied out a robust assessment of the
princypal risks facing the Group and the Directors statementn relation
to the longer termviabitity of the Group Ouw reviewwas substanually
less in scope than an audit and only consistad of making inguisies and
constdering the Direclor s process supporiing thenr statements
checking that the staiernents are in alignment with the relevant
prowisions of the Code and considering whether the statements are
consistent with the knowtedge acquired by us in the course of periorming
our audit We have nothing to report having pet farmed our review

Adequacy of accounting records and information

and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if

10 our opinion

-we have not receved all the inforration and explanations we require for
our audit or

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company
or returns adequale for our audit have not been recewved from branches
not visited by us or

- the Company linancial statements and the part of the Directors
Remuneration Report to be audited are not In agreement with the
accounting records and returns

We have no exceplions to report arising {1 om this responsibibity




Directors remuneration

Directors remuneration report - Cornpanies Act 2006 optnion
In our opinion the part of the Directors Remuneration Report

to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with

the Companies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Compeantes Act 2806 we are required 1o repart (o youif
inour opmion certan disclosures of Directors remuneration specified
by laware not made We have no exceptions to report artsing from

this responsibitity

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required 1o review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relabing to ten further provisions
of the Code We have nothing 1o report having perfermed our review

Responsilities for the financial statements
and the aucdht

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Oirectors Responsibilities Staternent
setout on page 113 the Directors are responssble for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satishied that they give a true
and fair view

Qur responsibitity 1s to audit and express an opimon on the financral
statements 1 accordance with applicable taw and ISAs UK & treland)
Thase standa: ds require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board s Ethical Standar ds for Auditors

This report mcluding the opimions has been prepared for and onty for
the Company s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Compames Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not in
giving these apinions accepl or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or 1o any other person to whom this report 1s shown orinto
whose hands it may come save where expi essly agreed by our priot
consent In wiiting

What an audit of financial statements involves
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the hnancial statements sufficient {o give reasonable assurance that
the financial slatements are (ree from material misstatement whether
taused by fraud or error This inctudes an assessment of
- whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group s and the
Company s aircumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed
- the reasonableness of sigriitcant accounting estimates made by
the Drectors and
- the gveralt presentation of the financal statements

We primarily focus our wor kin these areas hy assessing the Directors
judgements against avalable evidence forming our own judgements
and evaluating the disclesures in the financial statements

We test and examine information using sampling and other auditing
techniques to the extent we consider necessary to provide a reasonable
basis for us lo draw conclusions We abtain audit evidence through
testing the effectiveness of controls substantive procedures o: a
combrnation of both

In addition we read all the financial and non-financiat mfarmation in
the Annual Repart 1o identify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to 1denufy any information that1s apparently
materally incorrect based on or materally inconsistent with the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audnt

If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the imptications for our report

Jo

John Waters (Semm Statutory Audrtor)
farand on behaif of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Staiutory Auditors
t.ondon

146 May 2016

= The mantenance and integrity of the The British Land Company PLC website
15 the responsibility of the Directors the work carned out by the auditors does
not Involve consideraiion of these mattars and accordingly the auditors accept
no raspansibility for any changes that may have accurred to the finangial
statermnents since they were inilially presented on the websre

® Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermination
ot hnancial statements may differ from legislation in other Jurisdictions
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2015
Capetat Captal
Undertying'  and other Total Undertying and other Total
Moie £€m £€m £m Em fm £m
Revenue 3 56% 21 590 505 51 556
Costs 3 (128) f11} (13%) {1351 145) {160)
3 441 190 451 390 6 394
Jointventures and funds [see also below) 1 135 262 397 129 597 776
Administrative expenses 93] - (93} (85] - {85)
Valuation movement 4 - 816 815 - 284 884
Profit en disposal of investment propertes and investments - 35 35 - 20 20
Net financing costs
= linancing income [ 8 65 70 7 - 7
- hnancing charges 6 (1111 134} (145] 112) (47) (1591
{104) kil {75) (105) [67) [152)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 377 954 1,331 329 1460 1789
Taxalion 7 33 33 [24) [24]
Profit for the year after taxation 1,364 1765
Attnibutable to non-controthing interests 14 5 19 16 39 25
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 343 982 1,345 313 1397 1710
Earnings per share
- basic 2 131 2p 168 3p
- diluted 2 124 1p 167 3p
All results derve from continuing oper ations
2016 2015
Capital Capital
Undertying'  and other Total Underlying®  and other Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Results of joint ventures and funds accounted for using the
equity method
Underlying Profit 135 - 135 129 - 129
Valuation movement 4 - 245 245 - 589 589
Profit on disposal of investrnent properties tading properties
and Investments - 18 18 B é 6
Taxation - 1} ) - 2 ?
11 135 262 397 129 597 726

' See defintion 1n glossary

? The prior year comparatives have been restated See note 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2014 2019
£m £m
Profit for the year after taxation 1,364 745
Other comprehensive income
items that will not be reclasstfied subsequentty to profit or loss
Net actuarial foss on penston scheme 1 {5l
Valuation movemnents on owner-occupied property 1% 10
18 5
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
[Losses} gans on cash flow hedges
- Gioup (24] (71
—Joint ventures and funds {31 3
- Reclassification of items from the statement of comprehensive ncome - 3a
27] {38}
Transferred to the income statement fcash ftow hedges]
— Forewgn currency derivatives 2 Ny
- Interest rate dervatives 10 8
12 13
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
- Hedgmng and t anslation (3} 6
- Other 3 {6
Beferred tax on iterms of other comprehensive income (18] 10
Other comprehensive loss for the year 12) [26)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,352 1739
Attributable to non-conttolling interests 19 53
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 1,333 1486
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

2016 2055
Nate £m fm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment and development properties 10 9,643 9120
Owner-occupied property 10 95 60
9.738 918¢
Other non-current assets
Investmentsin jomnt ventures and funds 1 3,353 2901
Otherinvestments 12 142 379
Deferred tax assels 14 3 -
tnterest rate and currency derivalive assels 17 167 139
13,403 12 599
Current assets
Trading propet ties 10 325 274
Debtors 13 a3 20
Cash and short term deposits 17 114 108
472 402
Total assets 13,875 13 0%
LIABILITIES
Current bhabiities
Short term borrowings and overdrafts 17 (743 102§
Creditors 14 (218} [261)
Corporation tax {18} {9}
13101 {372)
Non-current labilities
Debentures and loans 17 13,687 13 847]
Other non-curtent liabiities 15 (122) [79]
Deferred tax labisties 16 - (12)
Interest rate and currency derwvahve babilihes 17 [137) {124)
{3,948) {4 064)
Total Labiltties 14,254) 14 436
Net assets 9.619 8 565
EQUITY
Share capial 260 238
Share premium 1,295 1280
Merget reserve 213 213
Other reserves (931 (821
Retained ear nings 7,647 6563
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company 9,342 8232
Non-controlling interests 277 333
Totalt equity 9,619 8565
EPRA NAY per share* 2 219p 2%

* As defined in glossary

John Gildersleeve
Chairman

The financial statements on pages 122 to 164 wer e approved by the Board of Diector s and signed on 1ts behatf on 16 May 2016

Company number 621920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

2016 m5
Note £€m £m
Rental iIncome receved from tenants 435 397
Fees and other income received 58 A9
{perating expenses paid to supplers and emplayees [152) (128}
Cash generated from operations 341 318
Interest paid {124) (124}
Interest received 1 18
Corporation taxation repayments received 8 -
Distributions and other recewvables from joint ventures and funds 11 58 73
Net cashinflow from operating activities 294 285
Cash flows from investing activiies
Devetopment and other capital expenditure (256] {197]
Purchase of investment properiies (243) f1721
Sale of investment and trading properties 564 415
Payments received in respect of future trading property sales 40 32
Purchase efinvestments - (7]
Acgquisition of Speke Umit Trust - 1901
Tesco property swap - {93l
Investment in and loans o joint ventures and funds (241} (173
Capitat distributions and loan repayments from joint ventures and funds 366 134
Net cash inflow {outflow| trom investing activities 230 (11}
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary shares 5 12
Dividends paid 19 1235 (278
Dividends paid to nan-controlling interests i {19}
Acguisition of units i Hercules Unit Trusi {61} (93)
Closeout of Inter est rate dervatives 15 112]
Cash cctlateral iransacuions 124} 10
Decrease in bank and ather borrewings {919} (581}
Drawdowns on bank and other borrowings 373 703
issue of zere coupon 2015 convertibte bond 4k -
Net cash outflow from financing activities (518) {208
Net increase (decreasel in cash and cash equivalents & (34)
Cash and cash equivatents at 1 Apnl 108 142
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 114 108
Cash and cash equivalents consists of
Cash and short term deposiis 17 114 108
* The prior year comparatives have been restaied Seenote |
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORTHEYEAR ENDED 3% MARCH 2016

Hedgng
and Re- Mon-
Share Share translation  valualion Merger  Retained controlling Totat
capital  prermum reserve’ reserve reserve  earmngs Total interests equity
fm £m jag tm £m £m £m fm £m
Balance at 1 April 2015 258 1,280 [78) [8) 213 6,563 8,232 333 8,545
Profit for the year after 1axation - - - - - 1,345 1,345 19 1,364
Losses on cash ilow hedges - - [24) - - - (24) - (24)
Revatuation of owner-occupied proper ty - - - 19 - - 19 - 19
Exchange and hedging movements in jeint ventures and
funds - - - (3} - - (31 - (3
Reclassification of gains on cash flow hedges
- Foreign currency derwvatives - - 2 - - - 2 - 2
- Interest rate det walives - - 10 - - - 10 ~ 10
Exchange dhiferences on translaton of foreign operations - - (3 3 - - - - -
Net actuartal toss en pension schemes - - - - - m 1 - "
Deferred tax onitemns of
other campr ehensive iIncome - - 18] 1 - - (15) - (15)
Qther comprehensive ltoss) mcome - - (311 20 - {1 (12) - 112)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - t31] 20 - 1,344 1,333 19 1,352
Share 1ssues 2 15 - - - 1121 5 - 5
Fai value of share and shar e optron awar ds - - - - - 8 8 - 8
Purchase of uniis from nan-controtling interests - - - - - - - 59) [59]
Loss on purchase of units from non-contrelling nterests - - - - - (4] 4} - 1]
Dividends payable i year (28 Op per share) - - - - - [287] (287 - [287]
Dividends payable by subsidianes - - - - - - - (16} sl
Adyustment for serip dividend elerment - - - - - 52 52 - 52
Balance at 31 March 2014 240 1,295 [107) 14 213 7,667 9,342 277 9.619
Balance at 1 April 2014 255 1267 {321 [38] 213 5091 & 746 37N 7117
Profii for the year after taxation - - - - - 1710 1710 55 1765
Lasses on cash ilow hedges - {69) - - - {691 2) (73}
Revaluation of owner-occupled proper ty - - - 10 - - 10 - i0
Exchange and hedging movements injoint ventures and
funds - - - 3 - - 3 - 3
Reclassification of items from the statement
of comprehensive income - - - 30 - - 30 - 30
Rectassification of (losses] gains on rash flaw hedges
- Foreign currency derwatives - - WA]] - - - (m - (11}
- Interest rate denivatives - - 8 - - - 8 - 8
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations - - & 6] - - - - -
Net acluarial lass on pension schemes - - - - - 151 (5] - 5]
Deferred tax on items of other compr ehensive income - - 22 15} - 7 10 - 10
Other comprehensive [lossl mcome - - [44) 3z - 2 (24) (2} (24)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (44) 32 - 1698 1486 53 1739
Share issues 3 23 - - - (18 16 - b
Non-controiling inierest on acquisition of subsidiary - - - - - - - 3t 3
Fair value of share and share option awards - - - - - i0 10 - 10
Purchase of urits from non-controlling interests - - - - - 2 2 [103] o
Dividends payable myear {27 3p per sharel - - - - - 277} [277] - (277
Dividends payable by subsidiaries - - - - - - - 119l (19
Adjustment for scrip dnidend element - - - ~ - 49 49 - 49
Balance at 31 March 2015 258 128G (74] 16] 213 6563 8232 333 8565

The balance at the beginning of the year includes £10m in relation to translation and [£84mlin relation to hedging
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 Basis of preparation significant accounting
poheies and accounting judgements

The financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2016 have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revatuation of
properties investments held for trading and denvatives The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with Inter national
Financial Repor ting Standards [IFRSs) as adepted by the European
Unien and therefore comply with articte 4 of the EU 1AS regulation
and in accordance with the Comparues Act 2006

Inthe current financial year the Group has adopted Annual improvements
ta IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle and 2011-2013 cycte and Defined Beneht Plans
Employee Coniributions ~ Amendments to 1AS 1%

The adoptton of these standar ds has not had a matertal impact on the
Group and otherwise the accounting polictes used are consistent with
those contained in the Group s previous Annual Report and Accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2015

A number of new standar ds and amendments to standards and
interpretations have been ssued but ar e not yet effective for the current
accounting period None of Lthese are expected to have a materal impact
an the consolidated financial statements of the Group except the
following set out below
- IFRS ¢ - Financial Instruments will impact both the measurement and
tisclosures of financial nstruments and 1s eftective for the Group s year
ending 31 March 2019 The Group has not yet completed its evaluation
of the effect of the adoption
- IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts wath customers does not apply
lo gross rental sncome but does apply to service charge income
management and performance fees and trading property disposals
and 15 effective for the Group s year ending 31 March 2019 The Group
dees not expect adoption of IFRS 15 to have a materal impact on the
measurement of revenue secognition but additional disclosures will
be required with regards to the above sources of income
- {FRS 16 - Leases wiliimpact both the measurement and disctosures
of the Group s head leases and 15 effectve for the Group s year ending
31 March 2020 The Group has not yet cornpleted its evaluation of the
effect of the adoptien

Restatement

During the year the accounting for Broadgate Estates a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group which acts as a property manager has been
reviewed resulting in a reclassificatton of items presented i the
Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows

Thts rectassification had no tmpact on either IFRS profit befor ¢ tax

ot Underlying Profit Itresulted ina £29m increase in other fees and
commissions received offset by a £26m increase in ather fees and
commissions expenses and a E3m increase 1n administrative expenses

This reclassiication had no impact on the net cash inflow from operating
activittes presented in the Consolidated Staternent of Cash Flows

It resulted i £33mincrease m fees and other income recerved and a
£35m increase m operating expenses paid to suppliers and employees

naddition the format of the Consolidated Income Statement bas been
thanged to aid ihe ctarity and usability of the financral statements and the
prior-year comparalives have been re-presented to reflect this change

Going concern
The financial staterments are prepared on a going concern basis as
explamed the corporate governance section on page 77

Subsidianes, joint ventures and assocsates [including funds)

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Briish Land
Company PLC and all subsidiaries lentites controtled by British Land]
Controlis assumed where British Land has the power and the ability
to affect the financial and operating policies of an investee entity $o as
to gain benefits from s activities

The results of subsidraries |oint ventus es or assocrates acquired ot
disposed of duning the year are included frem the effective date of
acquisiion or up to the effective date of disposal Accounting poticies
of subsidtaries jomntventures or associates which diifer from Group
accounting policies ai e adjusted on cansolidation

Busmess combinations are accounted for under the acquisttion method
Any excess of the purchase price of business combinations over the fair
value of the assets labilises and contingent biabilities acquired and
resulting deferred tax thereonisiecogrised as goodwill Any disrount
recewved I1s credited to the iIncome statement in the period of acguisition

All intra-Group transactions balances income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation Jaintventures and associates including
funds are accounted for under the equity method whereby the
consolidated balance sheet ncorporates the Group s share [investor s
share) of the net assels of its joint ventur es and associates The
consotidated income statement ncorporates the Group s share

of joint venture and associate profits after tax

Their profits include revatuation movements on invesiment properiies

Distributions and other recewables from joints ventures and associates
[including funds] are classed as cash flows from operating activities
except where they relate to a cesh ilow aiising from a capital transaction
such asa property orinvestmentdisposal In this case they are classed
as cash flows from investmg actiities

Properties

Properties are externally valued on the basis of fair value at the balance
sheet date Investment and owner-occupted properties are recorded at

valuation whereas trading properties are stated at the tower of cost and
net realisable vatue

Any surptus or dehicit arising on revaluing investment proper tiesis
recognised in the capital and other colurnn of the income slatement

Any surplus arising on revatuing owner -occupred propei ties above
costis recognised in ather camprehensive income and any deficit auising
1n revaluation below cost for owner-occupied and trading properties s
recegnised in the capital and other column of the incorme statement

The cost of properties in the course of development meludes atiributable
interest and other associated outgoings including atinbutable
development personnel costs Interestis calculated on the development
expenditure by reference to specihic borrowings where relevant and
otherwise on the weighted average 1 ate interest rate of Bntish Land PLC
borrowings Interestis not capiialised where no development acuwily s
takmng place A property ceases tobe treated as a developrnent property
on practicat completion

Investment property disposals are recogrised on completion Profits

and losses arising are recogmsed through the capiial and other colurmnn
of the income statement The profit on disposal 1s determined as the
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset at the commmencement of the acceunting pertod plus capiial
expenditure in the peried

Trading propeti ty disposals are recogrused in line with the revenue
policies outlined below

Where imvestment proper ties are appropniated to rading stock
they are transferred at market value if properues hetd for trading
are appropriated lo investment they are transferred at book value
In determining whether leases and related properties sepresent
operating or finance leases consideration Is given to whether the
tenant ot landlord bears the nisks and rewat ds of ownership

Financial assets and liabilities
Trade debtor s and creditor s ar e initially recognised at fau vatue and
subsequently measured at amortised cost and discounted as appropriate

Other investments include loans and recevables held at amortised

cost and investments held for trading classified as far value through
profit or loss Amortised cost of loans and recewvables 1s measured using
the effective inter est method less any impairment Interestis recogmsed
by applying the effective interest rate Investments held for trading are
inibatly recorded at fair vatue and are subsequently exiernally velued on
the same basis at the balance sheet date Any surplus or deficit arising
on revaluing investments held for trading Is recogmised 1n the capital

and other column of the iIncome statement

Where an investment proper tyis held under a head lease the head
lease 1s inttially recognised as an asset being the sum of the prermum
paid on acquisition plus the present value of minimum ground rent
payments The carresponding rent Liahility to the head leaseholder

1s inciuded :n the balance sheet as a finance tease obligation

Debt instrurnents are stated at their net proceeds on 1ssue Finance
charges including prernia payable on settlement or 1 edemption

and direct issue costs are spread aver the perrod Lo redemption using
the effective interest method Exceptional finance charges incurt ed due
to ear ly redemption (iIncluding premiurns) are recegnised in the income
statement when they occur

Conver tihle bonds are designated as fair vatue through profit or loss
and so are presented on the balance sheet at fair value with all gamns
and losses wncluding the write-off of 1Issue costs recognised in the
capital and other colurnn of the income statement as a component of
net financing costs The mterest charge in respect of the coupon rate on
the bonds has been recogmised within the underlying component of net
financing costs on an accruals basis

As defined by IAS 3% cash flow and fair value hedyes are carried at far
value on the balance sheet Changes in the fair value of dervatives thet
are destgnated and qualify as effective cash llow hedges are recognised
direcsly through other comprehensive income as a mavement in the
hedging and translalien reserve Changes in the fair value of dersvatives
that are designated and gualtfy as effective fair value hedges are
recorded in the capital and other cotumn of the income statement along
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that 1s attinbutabte
to the hedged risk Any ineffective portion of atl dervatives i1s recogrused
in the capital and other column of the income staternent Changes i the
fair value of derivatives that are notin a designated hedging relationship
under IAS 39 are recarded directly in the capital and other column of the
income statement These derivatives are carrted at fair value on the
balance sheet
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Cash eguivalents are birnited to instruments with a maturity of less than
thi ee months

Revenue

Revenue comprises rental incorne and surrender premia service charge
income management and performance fees and proceads from the sale
of irading properties

Rentat income ncluding fixed rental uplifts from investment preperty
leased out under an operating lease 1s recognised as revenue on a
straight-lme basis over the lease term Lease incentives such as rent-free
periods and cash contrshutions to tenant fit-out are recognised on the
same straighi-line basis being an integral part of the net consideration for
the use of the investment property Any rent adjustments based on open
market estimated rental values are recognised based on management
estimates fiom the rent review date in relaticn to unsettled rent reviews
Contingent rents being those tease payments that are not fixed at the
inception of the lease including for example turnover rents are
recogmised i the periad in which they are earned

Surrender prermia for the earty determination of a lease are recognised
as revenue immediately upon receipt net of dilapidations and non-
recoverable outgoings relating to the {ease concerned

Service charge income ts recogmised as revenue i the period to which
It relates

Management and performance feesrecevable are recognised as revenuse
In the period to which they relate Per formance fees are recegnised at the
end of the performance period when the fee amount ¢an be estimated
reliably and it s wirtually certain that the fee will be received

Proceeds from the sale of trad:ng properties are recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the purchaser
This generally occurs on completion Proceeds from the sale of trading
properties are recognised as 1evenue it the capital and other coiuma of
the income statement All other revenue described above 1s recogmised
in the underlying column of the income statement

Taxation

Current tax 15 based on taxable profit for the year and 1s calculated using
tax rates that have heen enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
Income statement because 1 excludes items of income or expense that
aie not taxable {or tax deductible]

Deferred tax s prowded on items that may becorne taxable in the future
ot which may he used to offset against taxable profits in the future on the
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financral reportng purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes on an undiscounted basis On business combinations
the deferred tax effect of far value adjustraents s incorpor ated in the
consolidated balance sheet

Employee costs

The fair value of equity-setited share-based payments to employees s
deterrmined at the date of grant and i1s expensed on a sti aight-tine basis
over the vesting persod based on the Group s estimate of shares or
options that will eventually vest In the case of oplions granted fair value
15 measured by a Black-Scholes pricing madel

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using fair values
Pension scherne tabilities are measur ed using the projected urit credit
method and discounted at the rate of return of a fugh quabity corporate
bond of eguivatent term to the scheme Liabilities The net surplus




[where recoverable by the Group) or deficitis recogmised an full in the
consolidated balance sheet Any asset resuluing from the calculation 1s
Limned io the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contribuiions to the plan

The current service cosl and gains and losses on setttement and
curtailments are charged to operating profit Actuanal gains and losses
arerecognised in tull in the period in which they accur and are preseated
in the consaolidated statermment of comprehensive iIncome

Contributions ta the Group s defined coniribution schemes are expensed
on the basis of the contracted annual contribution

Accounting judgements and estimates
In applying the Group s accounuing policies the Qirectors are required
to make judgements and estimates that affect the financial statemenis

Sugmificant areas of estimation are

Valuation of properties and mnvestments held for trading The Group
uses external professional valuers to deter mine the relevant ameunts
The primary source of ewdence for property valuations should be recent
comparable market transactions on an arms-length basis However
thevaluation of the Group s property portfolio and investments held for
trading are inherently subjective as they are made on the bass of
assumptions made by the valuers which may not prove 1o be accurate

Otheriess significant areas of estirnation include the valuation of fixed
rate debl and interest rate derwvatives the determination of share-based
payment expense and the actuanial assumptions used in caleulating the
Group s retirement benefit abligations

The key areas of accounting judgement ate

REIT status British Land ts a Rea! Estate Investment Trust {REIT]

and does not pay tax on Its properly income or gains on property sales

pr ovided that at least 0% of the Group s property income 1s disiributed
as a divtdend 1o shareholder s which becomes taxable in then hands

In addition the Group has to meel certam conditions suich as ensuring
the properly rental business represents mare than 75% of total profits
and assels Any potential or proposed changes to the REIT legislation are
monitored and discussed with HMRC 1t 1s Management s intention that
the Group will contsnue as o REIT for the foreseeable future

Accounting for jont veniures and funds In accordance with [FRS 10
Consolidated financial statements 1FRS 1t Jomnt arrangements and
IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests n other entities an assessmentis
required to determine the degree of control or influence the Group
exercises and the form of any control to ensure that the financial
stalement treatment 1S approp:iale

Interest in the Group s joint ventures 1s commonly driven by the terms

of the partnership agreements which ensure that control s shared
between the partners These are accounted for under the equity method
whereby the consolidated balance sheet ncorporates the Group s share
of the net assets of 1ts joint ventures and associates The consolidated
mecome statement incorporates the Group s share of joint veniure and
associate profitsafter tax

Accounting for transaclioins Property transactions are complex in
nature and can be material to the financial statements Assessmentis
required to determine the most appropriate accounting treatment of
assels acquired and of potential contractual arrangements in the legal
documents for both acqursitians and disposals Management consider
each transaction separately and when considered appropt rate seek
independent accounting advice
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

2 Performance measures

Earnings per share

The Group measures hnancial performance with reference to underlying earnings per share the European Public Real Estate Association (EPRA)
earmings per share and IFRS earnings per share The relevant earnings and weighted average number of shares [including ditution adjustments)

tor each performance measure are shown below and a recanciliation between these s shown within the supplementary disclosui es {Table B on page 1791

EPRA earnings per share 15 calculated usmg EPRA earnings whichis the IFRS profitatter taxaticn atirtbutable to shar eholders of the Company
excluding investment and development proper ty revaluatians gatns/losses an invesung and tracing property disposats changes in the far value
of financial instruments and associated close-out costs and thesr related taxation EPRA earnings [diluied] also takes inte account ditution due

to the 2012 converuble bond

Undet lying earmings per share 15 calculated using Under lying Profit adjusted for undet lying taxation fsee note 7] Underlyting Prohit 15 the pre-tax
EPRA earnings measure with addittanal Company adjustments No Company adjustments were made in either the current or prior year For the yeas
ended 31 March 2015 the 2017 conver tible bond was not dilutive for underlying earnings as the contingent conditions associated to the bond had not
been met The conver tible condimans period ended on 25 September 2015 and therefor e the bond was treated as dilutive in the current yeal

2014 2015
Retevant Relevant

Relevant number Earnings Relevant number Earmings

earmings of shares per share earmngs of shares per share
Earmings per share £m mithion pence £m million pence
Underlying
Underlying basic 365 1,025 354 313 1014 308
Underlying diluted n 1,089 341 313 1022 304
EPRA
EPRA basic 365 1,025 354 n3 1016 308
EPRA diluted n 1,089 341 319 1080 295
IFRS
Basic 1,345 1,025 1312 1710 1016 1683
Diuted 1,351 1,08¢ 1241 1710 1022 1673

Net asset value

The Group measur es financial position with 1efer ence to EPRA net asset value (NAV] per share and EPRA triple net asset value INNNAV] per share
The net asset value and number of shares far each performance measure i1s shown below A reconciliation between IFRS net assets and EPRA net
assets and the 1elevant number of shares for each performance measure 1s shown within the supplementary disciosures [Table B on page 1801
EPRA net assetsis a proportignally conselidated measure that is based on IFRS net assets excluding the mark-to-market on ctfective cash flow
hedges and related debt adjustments the mark-to-market on the convertible bonds as well as deferred taxation an property and derwative
vatuations Theyinclude the valuation surplus on trading properties and are adjusted for the dilutive impact of share options and the £408 million
convertsble bond maturing in 2017

2018 2015

Relevant Net assot Retevant Net assel

Relevant number value per Relevant number value per

net assets of shares share net assets of shares share

Net assot vatue per share £m malkion pence £m million pence
EPRA

EPRA NAY 10,074 1,098 91 2035 1090 a29

EPRA NNNAV 9,640 1,096 880 8 359 10%0 767

IFRS
Basic 2.619 1,029 935 8565 1020 840
Diluted 10,017 1,096 914 8 565 1032 830

Total accounting return
The Group also measures financial perfor mance with reference 1o total accounting return This s calculated as the increase in EPRA net assel vaiue
per share and dividend paid in the year as a percentage of the EPRA net asset value per share at the start of the year

2016 2015
Increasein  Dwidend per Total Increase n NAY  Dwidend per Total
NAY per share share pard accounting per share share pad accounting
pence pence raturn pence pence return
Total accounting return 90 28 02 14 2% 141 2730 24 5%
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J Revenue and costs

2016 M5

Capital Capual

Underlying  and other Underlyng and other

£m £m £m Em

Rent recevable 437 - 369 -
Spreading of tenant :ncentives and guaranteed rentincreases 12 - 26 -
Surrender prenua 2 - 4 -
Grossrental income 451 - 399 —
Trading preperty sales proceeds - 21 - 5
Service charge income 72 - 45 -
Managerment and performance fees [from joint ventures and funds) ] - 7 -
Other fees and commussions 38 - 34 -
Revenue 569 21 505 51
Trading property cost of sates - (1t - {45)
Service chal ge expenses (72] - [65) -
Property operating expenses {26 - [24) -
Other fees and commissions expenses 130 - {26] -
Costs (128 (1) [115] (45}
L&) 10 390 b

The cash element of net rental iInceme recogrised during the year ended 31 March 2016 from properues which were not subject to 2 security
interest was £229m (2014/15 £182m) Property operating expenses relating to investment properties that did not generate any rental income were
C1m (2014115 £2mi Contingent rents of £3m (2014715 £3m) were recognised in the year

4 Valuation movements on property

2014 2015
fm £m
Consotidated income statement
Revaluation of properttes &16 884
Revaluatien of properties held by joint ventures and funds accounted for ustng Lhe equity method 245 589
B&1 1473
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Revaluatign of owner-occupted properties 12 10
880 1483
5 Auditors’ renmmnet ation — PricenaterhouseCoopers LLI?
2016 015
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audst of the Company s annual accounts 02 02
Fees payable to the Company s auditor s for the audtt of the Company s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 04 04
Total audit fees 06 06
Audit-retated assurance services 01 01
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 07 67
Other fees
Tax advisory services - -
QOther services 01 01
Total 08 08

In addition to the above PricewaterhouseCooper s LLP wete remunerated for non-audit fees in PREF an equity accounted property fund [see note 1]
The Group s share of fees totalled £0 2m [2014/15 £0 2ml PricewaterhouseCocopers LLP are not the external auditors to PREF
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Financial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

6 Net financing costs

2016 2m5
£m £m
Underlying
Financing charges
Bank loans overdrafts and derivatives (30] [34)
Other loans [88] t88)
Obligations under head leases 12) 2l
[120) 126
Development interest capitalised L 14
(111) m2
Financing income
Deposits securities and iguid investments 3 2
Loans 1o joint ventures 2 3
5 7
Net financing charges ~ underlying [108] 11051
Capital and other
Financing charges
Veluation movements on translation of foreign currency debt 2 (1
Hedging reserve recycling (2 "
Valuation movements on fair value derivatives 54 108
Valuation movements on fau value debt 53] [104)
Recycling of fair value movemnent on close-out of dervatives (8] 12}
Capital fimancing costs' (2] {2}
Fan value movemnent on conver tible bonds - 135
Valuation imovemeni an translation of foreign currency net assets - i
Farr value movernent on non-hedge accounted derwalives - 1]
(34 47}
Financing income
Fau value movement on convertible bonds &4 -
Faw value movernent on non-hedge accounted derivatives 1 -
&5 -
Net financing income [charges) - capital 3N 147]
Net financing costs
Total financing income 70 7
Total financing charges (145] {15%)
Net financing costs {758} (152

 Primarily debenture bonds tender offer and purchase

Interest payable on unsecurad back loans and related interest rate derivatives was £19m (2014/15 £24m] Interest on development expenditure
1s caprtalised at the Group s weighted average interest rate of 2 6% {2014/15 3 3%} The weighted average nterest rate an a propor tionately

consolidated basis at 31 March 2016 was 3 3% [2014/15 3 8%)
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7 Taxation

2016 2015
£m &m
Taxation income (expense)
Current taxation
UK corporation taxation 20% [2014/15 21%) {15) {1
Adpustments in respect of prior years 17 -
Total current taxation income lexpense) 2 f]
Deferred taxation on revaluations and derivatives 3 123)
Group total taxation 33 {24)
Attributaile to joint ventures and funds ) 2
Total taxatien income {expense) a2 (22]
Taxation reconciliation
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,331 1789
Less proht atinbutable (o joinm ventures and funds {397) {726}
Group profiton ordinary activities before taxation 934 1063
Taxation on pi ofit on ordinary activities at UK corporation taxation rate of 20% [2014/15 21%] (1871 (223
Effects of
REIT exempt income and gains 181 232
Taxation losses 1 {10
Detferred taxation on revaluations and deratives N 23]
Adjustments in respect of prior years 1? -
Group total taxation income lexpense] a3 (24}

! Acurrent taxation expense of £1m [2014/15 £2m expense) and a defarred taxation expense of £t [2014/15 £4m credst] arose on profits attributable to joint ventures

and funds

Taxation attributable to Underlying Profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 was a credit of £2m [2014/15 €nil] Carpor at:on taxation payable at 31

Mai ch 2014 was £18m [2014/15 £9m] as shown on the balance sheet

8 Staff costs

2015 205

Staff costs hincluding Directors) fm tm
Wages and salaries 57 B\
Social security costs 7 6
Pension costs 7 ]
Equity-setiled share-based payments 10 14
81 76

The average menthly number of empioyees of the Company during the year was 260 [2(14/15 249} The average monthly number of Group
employees mcluding those employed directly at the Group s properties and their costs secharged to tenants was 692 (2814/15 598]

The Executive Director s and Non-E xecutive Directors are the key management personnel Their emoluments are sumrnarised below and further

detat (s disclosed in the Remuneration Report an pages 84 te 110

2016 2015
Directors emoluments £m Em
Short term employee benefits 54 58
Service cost in relation ta defined benefit pension schernes 02 0?2
Equity-settled share-based payments 59 64
15 12 4
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Finaneial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

8 Staff costs continued

Staff costs
The Group s equity-settled share-based payments compnise the Long-Term Incenuive Plan [LTiP] the Matching Share Plan IMSF} the Fund
Managers Performance Plan {FMPP] and various savings related share option schemes

The Company expenses an estimate of how many shares are likely to vest based on the markel price at the date of grant taking account of expected
per formance against the relevant performance tar gets and service per iods which are discussed in further detaid in the Remuneration Repart

For all schemes except the Company s Long-Ter m Incentive Plan share options the fair value of awards are equal to the market value at grant date
The key mputs used tovalue share options using a Black-5cheles modet granted under the Company s Long-Term incentive Plan are shown betow

22 June
Long-Term {ncentive Plan Awards in the year ended 31 March 2016 205
Share price and exercise price at grant date 825p
Expected option Life in years ?
Risk free rate 19%
Expected volatility 34%
Expected dividend yield 3%
Value per option 201p

Movements in shares and cplions ate given in note 20

9 Pensions

The British Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme [ the scheme ] is the princtpal defined benefit pension scheme in the Group The assets cf the
scheme are held in a trustee-adrmimistered fund and kept separate from those of the Company Itis not contracted out of SERPS {State Earnings-
Related Pensien Schermne] and 1t 1s not planned to admit new employees to the scheme The Group has thiee other small delined benefit pension
schemes There 1s also a Defined Contribution Pension Scherme Contributions to this scherne ar e at a flat rate of 15% of satary for non-Directors
and pawd by the Company

The total net penston cost charged lor the year was £7m [2014/15 £6m] of which £4m {2014/35 £3m] relates to defined contribution plans and £3m
(2014115 £3m| relates to the current service cost of the defined benefit schemes

Afull actuarial valuation of the scheme was cart ied out at 31 March 2012 by consulting actuaries AON Hewitt Associates Ltd The employer s
contributions wilt be pand in the future at the rate recommended by the actuary of 54 4% per annum of basic salaries The best estimate of empioyer
cantributions expected to be pard durning the year to 3t March 2017 s €3m The major assumptions used for the actuanal valuatien were

2016 2015 204 2013 2012
% pa % pa % pa % pa % pa
Discount rate 32 31 44 4% 46
Salary inflation L8 48 52 47 47
Pensions increase 32 32 35 31 31
Price inflation 33 33 37 32 32

fhe mortality assumptions are based on standard mortality tables which allow for future mortality improvernents The assumptions are that a
member currently aged 40 will Live on average for a further 29 7 years i they ar e male and for a further 31 5years if they are female Fora member
who retires in 2036 at age 60 the assumptions are that they will Live on average for a further 31 6 years after retirement if they are male and for a
further 33 1 years after retirement if they are female

Composition of scheme assets

2016 2ns

£m fm

Equities 52 55
Bversified growth funds 77 81
Other assets 8 3
Total scheme assets 137 139

The vast majority of the scheme assets are guoted In an active market
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9 Pensions continued

The amount inctuded in the balance sheet arising from the Group s obligations i respect of its defined benefit scherne s as follows

206 2015 014 2013 2012
£m tm £m £m &m |
Present value of dehned scheme obligations 143} [145) 25} (119 f107) :
Farr value of scheme assets 137 139 3 120 109
irrecoverable surplus - - (4] {1 (2l
Liability recognised in the balance sheet 03] (6] - - -
History of expenience gains and losses
206 2015 2014 2013 202
£m fm £m £m £m
Total actuarralioss recogrised in the consolidated statemient of comprehensive incorne!
Armount? (i {5) (2] [4) 13l
Percentage of present vatue on scheme liabilitses 0 7% 38% 16% 31% 2 7%
' Mavements stated after adjusting for irrecoverability of any surplus
2 Cumulative loss recognised in the statement of comarehensive income 13 £37m [2014/15 £38m}
Movements in the present value of defined benefit abligations were as follows
2016 2015 1
£m £m
At April {145) {125]
Current service cost 13) K]
Interest cost H]| (sl
Actuariat gan llossh
Gain fram change in demographic assumptions - 14
Gam {loss] frern change in inancial assumptions 4 (32)
Gam on scheme habilities arising from experience 3 4
Benefits paid 3 2
At 31 March [143) (145)
Movernents in the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows
20%4 2013
£m £m |
AL Apri 139 131 !
Interest mcome on scheme assets 4 6
Contributions by employer 4 2
Actuarial [toss] gan 7
Benefits patd 13 izl
At 31 March 137 139

Through its defined benelit plans the Group 15 exposed to a number of nsks the most signiftcant of which are detailed below

Asset volatility

The liabitiies are calculated using a discount rate set with a reference to corporate bond yields i assets underperform this yietd this will create
a deficit The scheme holds a significant por tion of growth assets [equities and diversified gr owth funds) which although expected to outperform
corporate bondsin the long term create volatiitty and risk in the short term The allocation 1o growth assets ismonitored ko ensure It femains

appropriate given ihe scheme s long term objectives

Changes in bond yields

Adecrease tn corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the scheme s liabilies for accounting purpases although this will be partially

offset by an increase in the value of the scheme s bond holdings
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Finzmneizl statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

9 Pensions continued

Inflation risk

The major ity of the scheme s benefit gbligatiens are linked o tnflation and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities [atthough in most cases, caps
on the level of inflationary increases are m place (o protect against extreme inflation] The majonity of the assets are erher unaffected by or only
loosely correlated with inflation meaning that an increase innilation will also increase the deficit

Life expectancy

The majority of the scheme s obligauons are to provide benefits for the Ufe of the member saincreases in life expectancy will result in an increase

in the liabibities

10 Property

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2014

Canada Water was added as a proper ty sector inn the year 1eflecting the key role the campus has in the strategy of the Group Consequently the prigr

year comparatives in this note have been restated to reflect this additional property sector

Investment
Investrnent
and
Relall & Offices & Canada development Owner-
leisure  reswdential Water Developments  properties Trading occuped
Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Level 3 Level3 properties Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m £m fm £rm Em

Carryingvalueat t Aprii 2015 5,584 2,902 249 385 9120 274 40 9,454
Additions

- property purchases 4 234 - - 238 - - 238

- development expenditure 4 6 1 43 54 59 - 113

- capitalised interest and staff costs - - 1 3 4 5 - g

- capital expenditure on asset management

Inttlatives 91 24 - 118 - - 114
99 2464 3 46 412 64 - 4756

Depreciation - - - - - - (1} i1
Disposats 1372 130} - in (5091 1) - (520]
Reclassifications 135 22 - 172} (15] (2] 17 -
Revaluations in¢luded i incame statement 16 349 4 82 616 - - 614
Revaluation included in OCI - - - - - - 19 1%
Mavement in tenant incentives and contracted
rent uplift batances 10 9 - - 19 - - 19
Carrying value at 3t March 2014 5,617 3,436 256 334 2,643 325 95 10,063
Head lease liabilities [note 15) [37)
Valuation sus plus on trading properties 85
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2014 10111
Naon-controtling mterests {324)
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2014 attributable to shareholders 9,787
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10 Property continued

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2015

Investment
Investment
and
Retall & Difices & Canada development
leisure  resudential Water Oevalopments  properties Tr